6 M EEIB{R 1T @

China Construction Bank (Asia)

N

BN
= I 3 K ok

EMBRACE NEW TECHNOLOGY
BUILD A BETTER FUTURE

ANNUAL REPORT

2024 ==



— 0 FE=R
BN B E S —RE R ABIRT

——— O f£®

RE PR E I RS
RERENEE KEE
REBTHERERNERTYA
AteFAEEENEEAREE

—— 0 ®AMEES
. mE
R1E
e

=l

O VISION

To become a first-class medium to large bank in Hong Kong

O MISSIONS

Provide better service to our customers

Create higher value to our shareholders

Build up broader career path for our associates
Assume full responsibilities as a corporate citizen

O CORE VALUES

Integrity
Impartiality
Prudence
Creation
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CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA)

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“CCB (Asia)") is the
comprehensive and integrated commercial banking platform of China
Construction Bank Corporation ("“CCB") in Hong Kong. Currently, CCB (Asia)
has 35 service outlets in Hong Kong and offers a wide array of banking
products and services to customers, including personal banking services,
commercial banking services, corporate banking services, private banking
services, treasury business and cross-border financial services, etc.

For personal banking services, CCB (Asia) excels in providing customers
with comprehensive and diversified products and services through online
banking, mobile banking and branches. Our product offerings include
deposits, loans (including personal loans, credit card loans, residential
mortgage loans, auto loans, insurance financing and wealth financing),
foreign exchange and cash transaction services, as well as investment
services (including securities trading, fund investment, structured product,
bond and precious metal trading), comprehensive wealth management,
insurance (including life insurance, general insurance and insurance
broker), MPF referral services, RMB products, credit cards and safe deposit
boxes services. As expert on cross-border finance, CCB (Asia) offers our
customers an extensive array of cross-border wealth management and
financial products.

For commercial banking services, CCB (Asia) provides a diverse range of
financial products and services to medium-to-large corporations, mid-
caps and SMEs, both non blue-chip listed as well as private companies,
including bilateral commercial loans, syndicated loans, project finance,
property development loans, trade finance, commercial mortgage loans,
SFGS loans, corporate green finance solutions, profit tax loans, machinery
loans, FX products, as well as corporate wealth management, corporate
online account opening/lending services, integrated merchant acquiring
service, corporate online bill payment service, cash management and
deposit services. CCB (Asia) also capitalizes on the extensive branch
network of CCB to create synergy in businesses such as RMB cross-border
collaboration services including SBLC loans, LC discounting, RMB deposit,
remittance and foreign exchange services. To support the needs of small
and medium-sized enterprises for cross-border and inclusive financial
services, SME Centres are opened in major industrial and commercial
districts offering customer professional one-stop financial services.

For corporate banking services, CCB (Asia) provides comprehensive
banking services to Chinese conglomerates, large multinational enterprises,
Hong Kong blue-chip enterprises and local large and medium-sized
enterprises, including bilateral loans, syndicated and club loans, green
finance, M&A financing, trade financing, bond issuance, diversified fund
management services and deposit services, etc. CCB (Asia) also provides
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ABOUT US

comprehensive financing solutions for large state-owned enterprises and
Chinese mega-conglomerates, including credit enhancement for Mainland
enterprises’ overseas bond issuance, and cross-border businesses such as
entrusted payments, risk participation in export accounts receivable, bill
discounting and more. With the strong support from the parent company,
CCB (Asia) also leverages on Hong Kong's unique regional advantages
to fulfil its role as a "dual circulation” connection point. Focusing on the
strategic development of “go global” and “bring in” strategy, it seizes the
opportunities of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
interconnection policy and provides comprehensive cross-border financial
services to Hong Kong and Mainland customers in collaboration effort. In
addition, CCB (Asia)’s other business developments include supporting
the "Belt and Road” initiative and active participation in the Regional
Comprehensive Economic Partnership Agreement (RCEP), regional
construction and development in Southeast Asia and the Middle East
regions.

For private banking and private wealth services, CCB (Asia) provides
exclusive professional investment and financing services to high-net-worth
private banking and private wealth customers, including foreign exchange
trading, foreign exchange-linked deposits, structured investment/notes,
equity-linked investment/notes, principal-protected structured products,
global bond/certificate of deposit trading, securities trading, fund
investment, gold trading, securities margin financing/collateralized loans,
IPO financing services, insurance financing, leverage investments and
collateralized lending services.

For treasury business services, CCB (Asia) manages the bank’s bond
portfolio, issues bank debt instruments, carries out money market lending
and borrowing, bond repurchase, foreign exchange, interest rate and
derivative products proprietary trading and market making. Designated by
The Hong Kong Monetary Authority, CCB (Asia) is Primary Liquidity Provider
(PLP) for offshore RMB market and Eligible Market Maker for Exchange
Fund Bills and Notes (EFBNs) in Hong Kong. CCB (Asia) also provides
customers with treasury products sales and trading services including
foreign exchange, interest rates, derivatives and securities. Comprehensive
and integrated trading and financing solutions are offered to customers.
CCB (Asia) supports all-round capital market activities, including bond
issuance, syndicated loan, structured finance, project finance, mergers
& acquisitions, IPO, etc., requiring corporate trust and agency, global
depositary receipt depositary services, custodian and fund services. CCB
(Asia) acts as common depositary for the international clearing systems,
handling the settlement of bonds or other type of financial instruments.
CCB (Asia) has established extensive treasury business relationships with
bank counterparties, corporate and institutional customers. Flexible and
diversified investment, trading, financing and hedging products are also
provided to local and overseas customers.
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China Construction Bank Corporation (“CCB"), headquartered in Beijing, is
a leading large-scale commercial bank in China. Its predecessor, People’s
Construction Bank of China, was established in October 1954. It was listed
on Hong Kong Stock Exchange in October 2005 (stock code: 939) and
Shanghai Stock Exchange in September 2007 (stock code: 601939). At the
end of 2024, CCB's market capitalization was approximate US$212,427
million, ranking sixth among all listed banks in the world. CCB ranks second
in “Top 1,000 World Banks Ranking” in 2024 by The Banker magazine and
second in the “Top 500 Banking Brands” by Brand Finance.

CCB provides customers with comprehensive financial services, including
corporate finance business, personal finance business, treasury and asset
management business and others, serving 771 million personal customers
and 11.68 million corporate customers. Moreover, it has subsidiaries in
various sectors, including fund management, financial leasing, trust,
insurance, futures, pension and investment banking. At the end of 2024,
the CCB Group had 376,847 staff members and 14,750 operating entities.

The CCB Group fully recognizes the political significance of financial work
and its importance to the interest of the people, and conscientiously
upholds these principles in practice. It enhances high-quality financial
services for major national strategies, key areas and weak links, makes
significant efforts in the “Five Priorities”, i.e., technology finance, green
finance, inclusive finance, pension finance and digital finance, actively
supports the development of new quality productive forces, effectively
serves the real economy, and assists in high-standard opening up and
coordinated regional development. The CCB Group remains steadfast in its
core responsibilities and primary businesses focus, continuously enhances
its "Three Capabilities” in serving national construction, preventing financial
risks, and participating in international competition, proactively integrates
into the broader framework of further deepening reform comprehensively
and unswervingly promotes high-quality development.
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ABOUT CCB

VISION

Build a world class banking group with top value creation capability

MISSIONS

Provide better services to our customers

Create higher value to our shareholders

Build up broader career path for our associates
Assume full social responsibilities as a corporate citizen

CORE VALUES

Integrity, impartiality, prudence, and creation

PHILOSOPHY

Business concept: Market-oriented, customer-centric

Service concept: Customer first, detail-focused

Compliance concept: Proactive compliance by all employees, and
value creation through compliance

Risk concept: Steady, prudent, comprehensive, and proactive
Innovation concept: Encouraging, open, inclusive, and prudent
Talent concept: Respect talents, make a good use of talents, and
retain talents

STYLE OF WORK

Diligent, disciplined, truthful, and practical
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CCB (Asia) originated from

of Canton and its banking business was
quickly back on track. It soon became the
largest Chinese-owned remittance and
The Bank of Canton which foreign exchange bank in Hong Kong in
was established in Hong the post-war era.
Kong in 1912 by Chinese office was located at 6 Des later. In 2001, Hongkong & Shanghai
Voeux Road Central a L

Insurance Company Limited merged
with QBE Insurance (Hong Kong) Ltd, a
wholly owned subsidiary of QBE Group
and was renamed QBE Hongkong &

Shanghai Fire & Marine Insurance Co.
Ltd. became a subsidiary of The Bank of
Canton and was renamed Hongkong &
Shanghai Insurance Company Limited

businessmen Li Yuk-tong

and Look Pong-shan. It

was the first Chinese-owned bank in Hong Kong.
The headquarters was located at 6 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong, which is now the flagship
branch of CCB (Asia) .

Shanghai Insurance Limited.

B ERRITRIL3SBE (1947F)
Celebration of the 35th Anniversary of The Bank of Canton (1947)

W 1088 M 1993

1912 >4
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XBBEEERM - N ZERRITRMMEAR The Bank of Canton officially
7 AERABRPIEMEEEET - announced its cooperation with
he bank " ) Security Pacific National Bankin 1971, e ina T
T e. an expand§ : its business to Macau by In 1988, The Bank of Canton was s
setting up a subsidiary called Bank of Canton - ) . |
: . ) officially renamed Security Pacific
(Macau) , which was the first Chinese-owned )
) e ) ) Asian Bank.
financial institution registered in Macau.
AR EMIRITIER IR AR
The inauguration of Security Pacific Asian
Bank
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Security Pacific Corporation merged with Bank of America Corporation.
BRI Security Pacific Asian Bank became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of
Service counters of Bank of Canton in the past America Corporation and was renamed Bank of America (Asia) in 1993. In

2001, the Chinese name of Bank of America (Asia) was changed to align
with its English name.
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The inauguration of CCB (Asia) (2007)
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China Construction Bank (“CCB") acquired a 100% interest
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Business integration of CCB (Asia) and China
Construction Bank Hong Kong Branch.

The three buildings of CCB in Hong Kong were
officially inaugurated. CCB Tower in Central is
the head office of CCB (Asia) . CCB Centre in
Kowloon Bay is the mid-to-back office of CCB's
entities in Hong Kong. Located in Sai Wan,
CCB Hong Kong Training Centre is CCB's first
offshore training centre.

in Bank of America (Asia) from Bank of America and was

renamed China Construction Bank (Asia) ("CCB (Asia)").
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CCB (Asia) acquired AlG Finance (Hong Kong) and
was renamed China Construction Bank (Asia) Finance,
laying the solid foundation for expanding the credit
card and personal loan businesses in Hong Kong.

AIG]
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St o SEAEAN
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Signing ceremony of the acquisition of AIG Finance (Hong Kong)

RBRFHH— I EAEI—EIRE IKD) ERIRE
ML RERENR - RETHREMNNEBERTABRANES

1T (EEM) B
OUR HISTORY

Hong Kong Business Integrati

CCB Centre Grand Dpening Ceremany
a

c @RI R
China Construction Bank.

BRITEBIRRERSRME

CCB Hong Kong Business Integration Ceremony

(REER)PERZRRTH
0 PERRETAR P
BRSBTS L
(From left to right) CCB Centre,
CCB Tower, CCB Hong Kong
Training Centre

CEmETEN 2

After five-year effort, the successful completion of “New Generation System Overseas
Integration Project” marked the launch of CCB (Asia)’s brand new core banking system
which powers the bank’s strategic transformation and business development in the future.

[F—RAEHNE D
HiL—fERE ]
Y ERIRE
“New Generation
System Overseas
Integration Project”
successfully
launched
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CCB (Asia) continues to increase its coverage and support for business development in key countries or
regions covered by the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP) Agreement and the Belt
and Road Initiative. In addition to bringing more regional development opportunities to the bank, it also
strengthens the capabilities of regional internal business collaboration.
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TO CUSTOMERS AND SHAREHOLDERS

In 2024, trade protectionism, divergence in monetary policies and geopolitical risks continued to reshape the global economy.
To continuously push ahead with high-quality development for organic growth, China deepened its supply-side structural
reform and facilitated an innovation-driven transition. Hong Kong, empowered by national strategies, has solidified the position
as an international financial hub with sustaining momentum for recovery. Against the backdrop of business environment
where strategic opportunities, risk and challenges co-existed, CCB (Asia) adhered to the philosophy of “Compliance first, steady
development and progress while maintaining stability” and scaled new heights in quality development with a record year in
operating results, underpinned by maintained operating stability, strengthened core businesses, improved operating quality
and efficiency, and optimized structure. Consolidated profit after tax for the year amounted to HK$5,920 million, representing
an increase of 47.8% from the previous year. Profit before impairment losses climbed 26.1% year-over-year to HK$7,249 million.
As at the end of the year, non-performing loan ratio was 0.32%, enhanced by 0.75 percentage points versus that at the end of
2023. At the end of 2024, all the regulatory ratios were maintained at sound levels and well above regulatory requirements,
constantly creating value for clients, shareholders and stakeholders and providing strong impetus to the long-term economic
advancement.

Developing a blueprint of coordinated regional development that pivot on national strategies. A steadfast champion of
the national financial strategies, we have made providing services under new development pattern of “dual circulation” as our
fundamental mission and have deeply involved in the regional economic integration. The coordinated development among
the region continued to pick up steam as the Bank continued to develop its customer operating capabilities of regions under
the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP), alongside acceleration of the establishment in new business areas
and efficient implementation of key projects. Focusing on the building of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
(GBA), application scenarios, including “Northbound Travelers Page” on CCB Lifestyle APP as well as “Cross-boundary Wealth
Management Connect 2.0”, have also been launched to innovatively offer integrated online and offline financial services, such
as cross-border payment, cross-border financing, and wealth management, for the purpose of building a premium life circle
across the GBA. In addition, we have signed the Memorandum of Understanding about supporting and participating in the
Northern Metropolis development with the HKSAR government as a joint effort to advance the infrastructure construction and
energy solution in the Northern Metropolis, establish a demonstration area for low-carbon development and promote stable
and sustainable economic growth in the region.

Fortifying Hong Kong’s position as a financial hub with cutting-edge digital technology. CCB (Asia) has been playing
an active role in the “early and pilot implementation” of various schemes. It has endeavored to enhance Hong Kong's
competitiveness in the global emerging financial fields under the framework of national development. As one of the
participating banks in Hong Kong for the Minimum Viable Product stage of Project mBridge by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (HKMA), CCB (Asia) has settled various cross-border transactions via central bank digital currencies (CBDC), breaking
new ground for the improvement in cross-border transaction efficiency and lowering of payment costs. To fully satisfy the
increasing demand of individual wealth management amid the digital financial era, we have persisted in the adoption of
emerging technologies to drive the new retailing businesses and forged ahead "Digital Wealth 2.0". We have been active in
exploring the e-Payment era through the participation in a series of studies of CBDC, including the e-HKD Pilot Programme
of HKMA and e-CNY pilot in Hong Kong. Our pursuit of innovation and change can likewise be evidenced by our profound
involvement in the HKMA's Ensemble Sandbox testing as well as innovative development of Hong Kong's tokenization market,
effectively promoting the advancement of the financial services for digital assets in the city and fortifying its position as an
important asset and wealth management center in the world.
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Cultivating the soil for business development to set the direction for high-quality growth. In 2024, we centered
around our main businesses to better comprehensive financial service capabilities and build up future growth drivers with
visionary framework. We became a primary market maker of HKD and offshore Renminbi HKSAR government bonds under
the Infrastructure Bond Programme and Sustainable Bond Programme launched by the HKSAR government. First-ever in
CCB Group’s history, we issued Panda Bond (bonds denominated in RMB and issued within mainland China by overseas
institutions) on the China Interbank Bond Market, furthering the Group's breakthrough and long-term development in cross-
border RMB businesses and making contributions to the strategy of RMB internationalization. To help protect the environment,
as a financial player, we have stepped up the involvement in green finance to increase green loan balances and the scale of
green bonds underwritten each year. We put emphasis on upgrading consolidated inclusive, extensive, and high-frequency
services capabilities and enriched the offering of cash management product spectrum, significantly enhancing the capacity
of transaction banking services. We continued to follow through on the strategy of integrated operation across the Group
and have led various high-profile syndicated loans, pushing back the boundaries of multiple structured financing projects.
We marched on the path of fintech self-reliance and have completed migration of overseas businesses onto distributed core
banking system, thus maximizing the synergy between head office and branches.

Shoring up stable operation capabilities with the groundwork of risk management and compliance. Firmly believing
the indispensability of lean management to high-quality development, we have practiced it across customer management,
business process, risk control and resource allocation to lay a foundation that consists of more agile and efficient operation. We
have enhanced the coordinated risk control across “three defense lines” and in turn maintained a balance between growth and
security. We have operated within our risk appetite and strengthened preventive management and control with a focus on the
resolution of risks in key and critical areas. During the year, regulatory indicators such as credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk were
within our control. We have kept up with the momentum in high-quality development for years with constant enhancement in
operating efficiency and value.

Relentlessly fulfilling the mission of responsible finance and expanding the reach for people livelihood'’s service. CCB
(Asia) has stood side by side with Hong Kong for over 110 years, remaining true to our original aspiration. The Bank is steadfast
in leveraging financial strength to foster social development and inclusion. We continuously enhance our inclusive finance
efforts, with four inclusive finance branches deeply embedded in local communities, providing robust support for the growth
and development of small and medium enterprises in Hong Kong. Actively participating in various social, cultural, and public
welfare activities, we organized over 40 volunteer events throughout the year, sharing the dream of public welfare through
small acts of kindness. Deeply practicing the concept of “mobilizing the employees, customers and institutions for charity and
integrating business with charity”, the Group has developed a new charity model that includes cross-border collaboration,
blossoming with hope on the path of philanthropy. The Bank has, for the first time, established a scholarship program,
dedicated to building a larger reserve of financial talent for Hong Kong society. It also continues to support Hong Kong's
cultural and sports events through title sponsoring the “CTA 1000 CCB (Asia) Hong Kong Open”, empowering the development
of cultural and sports industries with finance, promoting integration in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area,
and contributing to the acceleration of building a strong sporting nation.
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Looking ahead to 2025, the global economic landscape is undergoing profound adjustments, with increasingly complex and
volatile development. The long-term positive trajectory of China’s economy remains firm as supported by stable conditions
and fundamentals. Hong Kong, leveraging its unique position of “enjoying strong support of the Motherland and being closely
connected to the world,” will continue to play a pivotal role in serving national strategies and global resources allocation.
As the flagship of the Group’s overseas operations, CCB (Asia) will closely align with the national development strategy of
“dual circulation”. On top of addressing the needs of diversifying Hong Kong's economic portfolio, it will focus on areas such
as regional collaborative development, RMB internationalization, cross-border financial services, green transformation, and
technological innovation. We will strengthen the interconnected development of the mainland and Hong Kong capital
markets, enhance the Group's competitiveness in the global arena, and chart a new chapter of high-quality development. At
this critical juncture of building on the past and forging ahead, CCB (Asia) will continue to reinforce its strategic role as a pivotal
point, leveraging Hong Kong's strengths to meet the nation’s needs. We are committed to contributing financial strength to
consolidate and elevate Hong Kong's position as an international financial center and to better blend it into the master plan of
the country’s development.

Last but not least, we would like to extend our sincere gratitude to the head office and the members of the Board of Directors
for their strategic guidance and the visionary insights, which injected impetus into the high-quality development of the Bank.
We shall also extend our gratitude to the management and all employees of the Bank for their concerted efforts and diligence,
which has laid a solid foundation for the sustained and steady growth of CCB (Asia)’s business. Furthermore, we should thank
our customers for their trust and support over the years, and the community and partners for their invaluable assistance.

Zhang Jun
Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, March 21, 2025
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ZHANG Jun

LI Qianxin (appointed on Decermber 13, 2024)

KWOK Pui Fong Miranda s

AUYEUNG Rex Pak-kuen ags, p

FOK Glenn

LEUNG Kwok Wai Jimmy

LEUNG Wing Lok

WANG Bing (cessation of appointment on Novernber 22, 2024)
LI Min (cessation of appointment on October 22, 2024)

FENG Xi |a| (cessation of appointment on May 28, 2024)

SECRETARIES

ZHAO Shuo Amy (cessation of appointment on February 7, 2025)
WANG Zi (appointed on February 7, 2025)

FOI’]g Chin Man Ada (appointed on February 7, 2025)

In 2024

Vice Chairman, Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Chairman, Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Secretary to the Board of Directors & Company Secretary
Secretary to the Board of Directors

Company Secretary
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In 2024

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

ZHANG Jun

Vice Chairman,

Executive Director &
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhang is the Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of China
Construction Bank (Asia) (appointed with effect from March 26, 2018), and is the Chairman
of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors and a Member of the Strategy and
Corporate Governance of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Mr. Zhang was appointed as the
Dean of CCBU Hong Kong Institute and Non-Executive Director of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited since December 14,2018 and March 4, 2021 respectively.

Mr. Zhang joined China Construction Bank in 1988 and has over 30 years of banking experience.
Before taking over his current position in March 2018, he was the General Manager of China
Construction Bank New York Branch since 2013. Mr. Zhang worked in the International Business
Department of Shandong Branch of China Construction Bank for many years, and later served as
Deputy General Manager of China Construction Bank Singapore Branch, Frankfurt Branch and
was in charge of the project team for setting up the Ho Chi Minh City Branch. From September
2008 to April 2013, he served as the Deputy General Manager of China Construction Bank Hong
Kong Branch.

Mr. Zhang is currently the Executive Director of The Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association,
Director of The Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Charitable Foundation, Vice President of Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers, Vice Chairman of Chinese Banking Association of Hong Kong and
Adjunct Professor of HKU Business School, The University of Hong Kong. He was the Vice
Chairman of China General Chamber of Commerce — USA (CGCC) and the Chairman of CGCC
Finance Committee.

Mr. Zhang is a Senior Economist. He graduated from Shandong University in 1988 with a
Bachelor's Degree in Operations Research and obtained a MBA from University of Hull, United
Kingdom in 1999. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) charterholder.
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In 2024

| Ms. Li has served as Non-Executive Director of the Bank since December 13, 2024 and is a
Member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Bank.

Ms. Li has been appointed as the Chairman and Executive Director of CCB International
(Holdings) Limited (“CCBI") since November 2019, and is the Chairman of the Decision-Making
and Strategy Committee as well as a Member of the Audit Committee; the Risk Monitoring
Committee; and Personnel and Remuneration Committee. She was Vice Chairman and Deputy
Chief Executive Officer of CCBI from December 2018 to November 2019. She was Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of CCBI from June 2016 to December 2018. She was Head of Strategic Projects

Department of CCBI from October 2015 to June 2016. She was Deputy Head of Strategic
Projects Department (main in charge) of CCBI from May 2013 to October 2015. During Ms.
Li's tenure at CCBI, she successively served as the Deputy General Manager from November
2014 to May 2016, Vice Chairman from May 2016 to May 2019 and Chairman from May 2019
to November 2021 of CCB International (China) Co. Ltd. Also, Ms. Li was concurrently served as
Associate Director of the Direct Investment Department and Joint Deputy General Manager of
CCB International Asset Management Co. Ltd from August 2011 to March 2013 and from March
2013 to June 2016 respectively.

Prior to Ms. Li's joining of CCBI, she was successively served as Analyst, Senior Manager and Vice
President of Executive Office of CITIC Capital (Hong Kong) from July 2008 to August 2011 and
Analyst of Special Investment Department of CITIC Capital (Beijing) from June 2007 to July 2008.

Currently, Ms. Li is concurrently served as Vice Chairman of the Council of the Belt and Road
General Chamber of Commerce, Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association, Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Charitable Foundation
Limited, Vice Chairman of Chinese Securities Association of Hong Kong Company Limited,
Member of the Steering Committee of the Research, Academic and Industry Sectors One-plus
(RAISe+) Scheme.

Ms. Li obtained a Bachelor of International Economics and Trade from Northwestern
Polytechnical University in 2003 and a Master of Science in International Management from
University of Reading in 2005.
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In 2024

Ms. Kwok is a Non-Executive Director and a Member of the Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and the
Risk Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Ms. Kwok has been serving the Bank for over 37 years. Prior to her retirement in April 2022,
she was the President and Executive Director of the Bank. Prior to July 2013, when China
Construction Bank reorganized its Hong Kong business by integrating CCB (Asia) and the Hong
Kong Branch, she had been the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank.

Ms. Kwok's banking career began in 1984 as a Management Trainee of Bank of America,
Hong Kong. In 1996, Ms Kwok was transferred to Bank of America (Asia) (renamed CCB (Asia)

KWOK Pui Fong Miranda in December 2006). Ms Kwok served consecutively in various departments and had been
P the Chief Risk Officer and Chief Credit Officer of the Bank. She has extensive experience and
knowledge in banking and financial services industry, especially in the areas of business

Non-Executive Director

management and strategy, capital markets, corporate governance, risk management and

sustainable development.

Ms. Kwok is the Honorary Advisor of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, Chairman of
Process Review Panel for Securities and Futures Commission, Director of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Council and Member of the Council of City University of Hong Kong, Risk
Management Committee of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, and the Standing
Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service.

Ms. Kwok graduated with an Honorable Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Economics and
Management from The University of Hong Kong in 1984, and graduated with honors from
the Graduate School of Retail Bank Management of the Consumer Bankers Association in the
United States in July 2001. In addition, she was appointed a Justice of the Peace in 2022.
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| Dr. Auyeung has been appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank with
effect from September 8, 2018 and is the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors and a Member of the Risk Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Bank.

Dr. Auyeung is the Non-Executive Chairman of MTR Corporation Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 66) and a Director of
MTR Academy (HK) Company Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of MTR Corporation Limited).
He is also an Advisor to Nippon Life Asia Pacific (Regional HQ) Pte. Ltd (a company incorporated
in Singapore). Currently, Dr. Auyeung is also the Vice Chairman and an Independent Non-
| Executive Director of C-MER Medical Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 3309).

Dr. Auyeung has over 40 years of experience in the insurance industry in Canada and Hong
Kong. Prior to his retirement in June 2017, Dr. Auyeung was Chairman — Asia of Principal
Financial Group Inc. (‘PFG"), a Fortune 500 company, responsible for PFG's overall businesses
in Asia. During his time with PFG, Dr. Auyeung represented PFG and its member companies
across Asia in building and expanding PFG's relationship with clients, joint venture partners and
strategic investors, and assisting in business development across all product lines of PFG.

Dr. Auyeung also actively serves the public sector and is currently a Board Member of Bo
Charity Foundation (Food Angel) and a Convenor of the Advisory Committee of the Jockey
Club Community eHealth Care Project. In addition, he is a Member of the Board of Advisers
of Healthcare Dispute Resolution Centre Limited. Dr. Auyeung also is an Ex-officio Member of
the Election Committee under Engineering subsector in his capacity as the Chairman of MTR
Corporation Limited.

Dr. Auyeung was previously an Independent Non-Executive Director of HSBC Provident Fund
Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited, the Chairman of Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy Sub-
committee on Stakeholder Coordination and Collaboration, a Member of the Independent
Review Committee on Hong Kong's Franchised Bus Service, the Chairman of the Council of
Lingnan University and an Observer of the Independent Police Complaints Council Observers
Scheme. He was a Member of the Board of Directors of the Investor and Financial Education
Council (“IFEC") under the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC") and the
Chairperson of the Financial Education Coordination Committee of IFEC under SFC from 2018
to 2024 and from 2019 to 2024 respectively. Dr. Auyeung was also a Member of the Public
Shareholders Group, a Member of the Committee on Investment-Linked Assurance and Pooled
Retirement Funds of SFC and a Member of the Investment Sub-committee of The Community
Chest of Hong Kong from 2000 to 2007, from 1999 to 2006 and from 2001 to 2020 respectively.

Dr. Auyeung holds a Bachelor of Environmental Studies (Urban and Regional Planning) Honours
Degree from the University of Waterloo, Canada. He was awarded an Honorary Fellowship
by the City University of Hong Kong in 2013 and Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration by the Lingnan University in 2020. In addition, he was appointed a Justice of the
Peace in 2018 and was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2022.
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®

FOK Glenn
Independent Non-Executive
Director

LEUNG Kwok Wai, Jimmy

Independent Non-Executive

Director

Mr. Fok has been appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank with effect
from June 18, 2019 and is a Member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and the
Risk Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Mr. Fok is a Senior Consultant of Moelis & Company Asia Limited, a leading global independent
investment bank listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Fok served as a Board Member
of the Financial Services Development Council from January 2018 to January 2024 as well as a
Member of the Board of West Kowloon Cultural District Authority from October 2018 to October
2024. Mr. Fok currently serves as a Member of the Board of Governors of The Hong Kong
Philharmonic Society Limited. From November 2022, Mr. Fok was appointed as a Committee
Member of Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme.

Mr. Fok was formerly a Vice Chairman and Managing Director of UBS, responsible for senior
client coverage. During his 32 years of investment banking and corporate finance career, he led
many landmark initial public offerings, domestic and cross border mergers and acquisitions,
complex debt and equity issuances, corporate restructuring and re-organization, and strategic
financial advisory transactions. Prior to joining UBS, Mr. Fok was the Head of Investment Banking
Services and Joint Head of Corporate Finance of Schroders Asia Limited. He had served as a
Member of the Board of Bank of America (Asia) Limited, the Securities & Futures Commission
Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts, the Hang Seng Index Advisory Committee, the
Board of Trustee of United College of the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and the Council of
The Education University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fok holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemistry from Occidental College and Master of
Business Administration from University of Southern California.

Mr. Leung has served as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank since August 4, 2022
and is the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and a Member of the Risk
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Mr. Leung is a Professional Accountant with over 38 years of Public Accountancy experience
in Beijing, Shanghai, Hong Kong and London. Mr. Leung was PwC China’s Financial Services
Leader and a Member of its global banking leadership team. He led a team of about 5,000
PwC professionals in financial services industry and provided services of organizational
transformation, assets restructuring, risk management, recapitalization and listing, performance
enhancement, accounting advisory and financial statement audits. He was admitted into PwC
Partnership in Hong Kong China in 2000 and in Mainland China in 2013 respectively. Prior to
joining PwC, Mr. Leung earned his professional experience in KPMG China, Hong Kong China
and United Kingdom from 1984 to 2000, he admitted into KPMG Partnership in 1997.

Mr. Leung had been focusing on auditing, initial public offering (“IPO”) transactions and financial
due diligence during his career. He was specialized in auditing and IPO transactions for banking
institutions in China and Hong Kong China. Mr. Leung was Engagement Partner for audits of
China Construction Bank Corporation from 2011 to 2015, Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
from 2004 to 2010 and from 2014 to 2018, and Agricultural Bank of China Limited for 2020.
He was also the Quality Review Partner of China CITIC Group Corporation, Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd., and Postal Savings Bank of China Co,, Ltd. from 2015 to 2020.
In addition, Mr. Leung also led the H Share IPO Services on Bank of Communications Co,, Ltd.
in 2005, China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited in 2009, Huishang Bank Corporation
Limited, Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd. and China Zheshang Bank Co,, Ltd. in 2013 and Luzhou
Bank Co,, Ltd. in 2018.

Mr. Leung obtained Professional Diploma in Management Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1984. He obtained his professional qualifications of Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountant and Chartered Management Accountant in 1989 and Chartered
Global Management Accountant in 2012.
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In 2024

Mr. Leung has served as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Bank since December 5,
2023 and is the Chairman of the Risk Committee of the Board of Directors, a Member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors of the Bank.

Mr. Leung has worked as financial management and senior management positions in several
banks and listed companies in Hong Kong and The Hong Kong Stock Exchange for over 35
years, and has extensive experience in the local banking industry and the financial management
field.

Mr. Leung currently is a Non-Executive Member of Board of Governors of The Hang Seng
LEUNG Wing Lok University of Hong Kong and a Non-Executive Director of Hang Seng School of Commerce.

Independent Non-Executive He has been appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of Bank of China Group

Insurance Company Limited and BOC Group Life Assurance Company Limited since August

Director

2024 and July 2023 respectively. Mr. Leung is also serving as a Member of the Finance

Committee of the Scout Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Leung served as a Senior Advisor of Hang Seng Bank Group from September 2022 to March
2023, after he retired from the position of Chief Financial Officer and Alternate Chief Executive
of such group since 2009. Prior to serving the above positions, Mr. Leung worked as Deputy
General Manager, Financial Management of Bank of China (Hong Kong); Senior Manager,
Corporate Finance of Hang Lung Properties Group; Senior Manager, China Business, Corporate
Banking and Financial Control of Hang Seng Bank Group; Assistant Director of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange; Head of Finance of UniCredit Bank Austria AG; Financial Manager of Australia
and New Zealand Banking Group and Senior Auditor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Leung
was formerly the Council Member and Treasurer of the Hong Kong Committee for UNICEF.

Mr. Leung holds qualifications, including Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Chartered Secretaries and Chartered Governance Professional of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute, United Kingdom,
Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom and
Chartered Professional Accountant, Canada.

Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor of Social Sciences (Management) Degree from The University
of Hong Kong in 1984, Master of Science, Data Processing Degree from University of Ulster
in Northern Ireland in 1992, Bachelor of PRC Law Degree from Peking University in 1997 and
Master of Science in Electronic Commerce and Internet Computing Degree from The University
of Hong Kong in 2002.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

As of March 21, 2025

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

ZHANG Jun Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
WU Jian Deputy Chief Executive

QlJun Deputy Chief Executive

Daphne WAT Wing Kam Deputy Chief Executive

YANG Yunchao Deputy Chief Executive, Chief Risk Officer

Annie CHEN POONIS
Tiffany LIU Huifen
Jason JIAO Jingshan
WANG Zi

Justin WONG Hon Yu
GUO lJingtang

Alias LEUNG Wing Yin
George FAN Qiufeng
Grace CHOY Yuk Shun
Rita MAN Yuet Ching
FU Ling

Marvis FOK Ka Yan
Charmaine LI Ching Ming
Vincent CHO Wai Sing
Jimmy LI Linfeng
ZHENG Yugeng
Stanley WU Ching Luk
SU Lin

Jivyali

Minda LIU Man
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Deputy Chief Executive

Chief Retail Banking Officer, Head of Private Banking Division

Chief Operating Officer, Head of Fintech Division

General Manager, Head of Executive Office

General Manager, Head of Finance Division

General Manager, Head of Human Resources Division

General Manager, Head of Risk Management Division

General Manager, Head of Credit Division

General Manager, Head of Internal Audit Division

General Manager, Head of Legal & Compliance Division

General Manager, Head of Corporate Banking | Division

Deputy General Manager, Deputy Head of Corporate Banking Il Division
General Manager, Head of Institutional Banking Division

General Manager, Head of Commercial Banking Division

General Manager, Head of Transaction Banking & Capital Market Division
General Manager, Head of Treasury Division

General Manager, Head of Consumer Banking Division

General Manager, Head of Digital Banking Division

General Manager, Head of Operations Division

General Manager, Head of Data Management Division
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Better Chief Limited
26/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

CCB Nominees Limited
20/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong (SAR) Hotel Limited
26/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

CCB Securities Limited
18/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

CCB Properties (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
26/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

CCB (Asia) Trustee Company Limited
G/F, 6 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong

CCB (Asia) Insurance Broker Limited
23/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong

JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

Diamond String Limited
11/F, Lai Sun Commercial Centre, 680 Cheung Sha Wan Road,
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Outstanding Award for Green and

Outstanding Award for Green Outstanding Award for Green and Sustainable Loan Facilitator
and Sustainable Loan Facilitator Sustainable Loan Facilitator
o . (Integrated Property Development Industry)
(Telecommunication Industry) (Hotel and Commercial Real Estate) f .
- Largest Single Sustainability-linked Largest Single Sustainability-linked Loan - Largest Single Social and
Loan Sustainability-linked Loan
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Outstanding Award for Green and Outstanding Award for Green and
Sustainable Bond Lead Manager Sustainable Bond Issuer
(Confronting Climate Change Themed (Confronting Climate Change Themed
Financing Project of Banking Industry) Financing Project of Banking Industry)
- Visionary Green Bond Framework - Visionary Green Bond Framework

BEmERER
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
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HKET Excellence Awards 2024 Corporate Brand Awards of Financial Services Awards of
- Awards for Excellence in Cross- Excellence 2024 Excellence 2024
border (Private Banking) - Outstanding Inclusive Finance - Awards of Excellence (Private
Award Banking)
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Hong Kong Economic Times Hong Kong Economic Journal
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2024
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The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business
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- Best Digital Wealth
Management Services
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The Hong Kong Council of Social Serwces Hong Kong Police Force HKO1
REHFET 105 PHBESHEE
Good MPF Employer 10 Years Best All-round MPF Employer

BHMEAEEEEER
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Rooted in Hong Kong for over a century, CCB (Asia) always upholds its unwavering commitment to serving Hong Kong, and
is committed to building the city via finance and collaborating with different sectors in the society to embrace co-prosperity
and inclusivity with Hong Kong. In 2024, while actively pursuing business growth, CCB (Asia) embraced the Group’s notion of
“serving the common good with finance”. Striving to implement inclusive finance in Hong Kong, CCB (Asia) deeply integrated
corporate social responsibility into its business strategy, actively promoted economic, environmental, and social sustainability.
Through corporate contribution, talent development and employee engagement, it dedicated itself to giving back to society
and collectively building a better Hong Kong.

BUILD A GO BEYOND WELL WORK ENVIRONMENT WITH EMPLOYEES’
WELL-BEING AND DEVELOPMENT AS PRIORITY

CCB (Asia) has been dedicated to building a sound corporate culture, enhancing employees’ sense of belonging to the  ——
Bank and promoting their physical and mental health and personal development. In recent years, under the theme

of "Building a Go Beyond Well Work Environment”, CCB (Asia) has been active in creating an equal, caring, inclusive,

and dynamic work environment. In 2024, CCB (Asia) continued to launch new initiatives under this theme, offering a
number of employee benefits tailored to their daily lives. Even more, in celebration of the 70th anniversary of the parent

bank CCB, over 100 engaging activities were organized for our employees, enhancing their sense of belonging as a
member of the CCB Group. Moreover, a number of staff recognition activities were held, including the Best 10 Employee
contest, instant award program (“CARE Program”) and long service awards, etc. to recognize employees’ outstanding
performance and empower them to unleash their self-value at work, fostering collaborative development of both the

Bank and the employees.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Regarding talent development, CCB (Asia) continuously implemented the “Mentoring Program” to provide care and support
to our new joiners and inherit our corporate culture. In order to assist employees in keeping pace with time, and enhancing
their skills and learning new ones, aligning with the industry trend, the Bank provided comprehensive training for employees
under the theme of "Future Bank Capacity Building”. Green finance is one of the key directions for the future development
of the banking industry. To broaden employees’ understanding and application of green banking, the Bank has particularly
invested more training resources in green and sustainable finance to further enhance employees’ professional capacities. In
2024, CCB (Asia) rolled out the “Internal Accreditation Mechanism”. Through comprehensive upskilling and reskilling, it focuses
on nurturing talents in fintech, cross-border wealth management, green and sustainable finance, as well as the business
development for the Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP), providing employees with a systematic platform
to equip themselves with necessary skills for the future.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

PROMOTE SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT WITH THE POWER OF FINANCE CARE FOR
THE COMMUNITY THROUGH PARTICIPATION

CTA1000 CCB (Asia) Hong Kong Open 2024

CCB (Asia) is committed to empowering the development of culture and sports sectors in Mainland China and Hong Kong
with the power of finance and promoting the integration in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. In 2024, the
Bank was the title sponsor of “CTAT000 CCB (Asia) Hong Kong Open 2024", a national-level tennis tournament, for the second
consecutive year to support the holding of the nation’s highest-level professional tennis tournament in Hong Kong. As an
iconic stop for the CTA Tour, this event not only promoted the interconnected development of “Sports + Culture” and “Sports
+ Tourism" between Mainland China and Hong Kong, but also contributed to the establishment of Hong Kong's vibrant image as
a center for major international sports events.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CCB (Asia) New Alliance Volunteer Team heeds feedback from the society and engages in community caring

Since its establishment in 2016, the CCB (Asia) New Alliance Volunteer Team has been committed to uniting colleagues to
actively participate in community services, injecting fresh and positive energy into society. The volunteer team heeds feedbacks
from the society, understands the needs of grassroots communities and responds with proactive initiatives. In view of the
increasing prevalence of financial frauds in recent years, the volunteer team leveraged its financial knowledge and expertise and
collaborated with local organizations to launch the “Financial Literacy Seminars by Chinese Enterprises” project, visiting schools
and communities to educate students, the elderly and others on preventing fraud, in a bid to foster a strong defense against
scams. By sharing recent cases of real-life scams, not only did the volunteer team help students enhance their ability to identify
scams at early ages, but also reminded the public to stay vigilant in daily life to protect their financial assets with the growing
popularity of internet and mobile banking. Furthermore, during traditional festivals, the volunteer team visited the grassroots
and the elderly in the communities, showing them the support and company from society with their warmth and care.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Hong Kong Red Cross “Home-based Chronic Disease Management Service for the Elderly (CDME) and
Healthy Ageing in the Community” Volunteer Project

Over the years, CCB (Asia) has been cooperating with a number of local major charitable organizations. In 2024, the Bank further
collaborated with Hong Kong Red Cross as the first enterprise to carry out volunteering service projects. Apart from regular
blood donations, a one-year project “COME and Healthy Ageing in the Community” was launched. Referred by the Hospital
Authority, the service targeted individuals aged 65 or above with chronic illnesses. Services under the project included home
visits, care calls and follow-ups, free haircuts and community outreach activities. These diversified daily care activities provided
the elderly with continuous support and care from society while improving their quality of life.

G pEmamta.
EaLl+FEREARE
HEHEERTIR

N m iI2tR{T
= .
° China Cm%uclt‘smgrnggiijff\si;?m)

4. CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

SUPPORT YOUTH EDUCATION AND INHERITANCE TO CULTIVATE FUTURE
ELITES

CCB (Asia) Scholarship

CCB (Asia) is committed in nurturing financial talents. Through the establishment of the CCB (Asia) Scholarship and the  ———
collaboration with The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, the Bank encourages tertiary students in Hong
Kong to explore key topics in the financial industry from a forward-looking perspective. The scholarship endeavors to
establishing a reserve of financial elites for Hong Kong society and enhancing the city’s long-term competitiveness
as an international financial center. In addition to academic achievement and internship experience, the scholarship
selection emphasizes students’ insights and innovative thinking in the areas of fintech, green finance and inclusive
finance, facilitating academic exchange and professional growth. The first scholarship application received enthusiastic
responses from outstanding students with diverse backgrounds, who showcased the potential and ambition among
students in Hong Kong. With the scholarship, the awarded recipients will continue to sharpen their professional
knowledge and skills, with aspirations to pursue careers in and contribute to the development of Hong Kong’s financial
industry in the future.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Joint Growth Mentorship Program

CCB (Asia) collaborated with Fresh Fish Traders' School, a local primary school, to launch the Joint Growth Mentorship Program,
under which the Bank mobilized employees to serve as volunteer mentors to provide English learning support and guidance to
the students, igniting their interest in learning. Mentors meticulously designed a series of engaging and creative English courses
with activities, such as interactive games, singing and art, reading inspiration sessions, making language learning enjoyable and
enabling the students to learn in a relaxing atmosphere where learning is combined with good fun. Through the program, the
Bank aimed to build mutual trust and encouragement between the students and the mentors, transforming English learning
from a dull and stressful task into an exciting journey. The activities were not only designed to help students gradually overcome
their anxiety about learning English, but also allowed the mentors to deeply appreciate the value of mutual growth throughout
teaching activities.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Support education in remote areas in Mainland China Engage in cross-border public welfare activities

In addition to local education, CCB (Asia) also actively supports education in remote areas in Mainland China. For years, ——
the Bank has donated teaching materials to schools in these areas to reach its helping hands to the underprivileged
communities. In 2024, CCB (Asia) donated computers, books, sports equipment and other supplies to two impoverished
schools in Jinggangshan, Jiangxi Province, improving local educational infrastructure to meet diverse teaching needs.
Furthermore, the Bank organized the CCB Hope Primary School Hong Kong Exchange Program 2024, inviting students
and teachers from Jinggangshan Primary School for their first-ever visit to Hong Kong, one of the world’s international
financial centers, to broaden their horizons. In the exchange program, students and teachers not only participated in a
simulated banking setting to deepen their understanding of future careers, but also participated in a series of cultural
explorations and delved into Chinese civilization. A highlight was the visit to the Legislative Council where students
from a local school were also invited to foster exchanges between the two regions. The exchange program provided
rural students in Mainland China a valuable opportunity to broaden their international exposure, inspiring them to set
ambitious aspiration and laying a solid foundation for their future growth.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

INCORPORATE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT AND BUILD A GREEN
BRAND IMAGE

CCB (Asia) spares no effort in integrating green concepts into its overall strategic planning, operation and management, as well
as corporate culture. In terms of sustainable finance development, the Bank has been actively responding to the “dual carbon”
targets of our country and HKSAR in recent years, continuously exploring and promoting a comprehensive green transformation
of economic and social development. It has been vigorously developing green deposits, green loans, green bonds, and other
green financial services, establishing a professional green finance team to support corporate clients in implementing green
transformations, and playing a pioneering role among its Chinese peers in the financial sector to establish green operation plans.
CCB (Asia) is also the first retail bank in Hong Kong to adopt Morningstar ESG Ratings, incorporating ESG elements into fund
investments. In recognition of its excellent performance in green finance, the Bank was honored by the HKSAR government as
a “Carbon Neutral” partner. During the year, CCB (Asia) was further recognized by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency,
receiving eight awards in the Hong Kong Green and Sustainable Finance Awards 2024, making it the most honors won bank in
the awards, demonstrating its leading position in green finance and further consolidating its green brand image.

Additionally, supporting environmental protection and nature conservation is also an essential part of CCB (Asia)’'s commitment
to promote sustainable development. In 2024, the Bank collaborated with Ocean Park Hong Kong to present a new ecological
conservation exhibit, Croco Land, providing a permanent, safe and comfortable habitat for Passion, a female crocodile found
in Pat Heung, Hong Kong. The launch of Croco Land not only protected biodiversity but also provided an important platform
for the public to understand and appreciate ecological conservation. CCB (Asia) hopes to raise public awareness of protecting
Hong Kong's natural ecology and encourage more people to participate in environmental protection, collectively making
contribution to sustainable development.

Az
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2024.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“the Bank”) is a
licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at 28/F, CCB Tower, 3
Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) are the provision of a range of banking and
related financial services through the Bank's branches and subsidiaries.
Other particulars of the Bank’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating segments
is set out in Note 20 to the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the financial year ended December 31, 2024
and the state of the Bank's and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 261.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2024 (2023: HKD Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no movements during the
year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, charitable donations made by the Group amounted to
HKD720,455 (2023: HKD932,632).
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CRTHEZE - AHEER CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT, MEDIUM TERM
B3 NOTE AND DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

RAREEAR - AEBHTARKEIEITES  During the year, the Group issued RMB3 billion panda bond. The bond
5 BAUARKESE - HIR B35 - B is denominated in RMB, has a maturity of 3 years due in 2027, bears a
2027 BIH - BT FFIERAE205%  FFAME  fixed interest rate of 2.05% per annum payable annually. No certificates of
—R e MAFEER  AITUWEIEITIMAFR  deposit and medium term notes were issued by the Bank during the year.

FENAHEER -
BRTHMERTE OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS ISSUED

RAEEAN  RITEITTUATITALME  During the year, the following instruments were issued by the Bank to
CERME(EERS)) (RUEIBRE HIETE —  fulfil the Loss-Absorbing Capital Requirements as set out in the Financial
RITR)MRBIN(FE628BE )R RUEEEL A Institutions (Resolution) (Loss-absorbing Capacity Requirements — Banking

BRER o Sector) Rules (Cap.628B).
Consideration
Amount Issued received
BITHE WEL AR E
k=] Class UsD'000 USD'000
(F%mT) (F=%=T)

RETHABHMIERIERREIN  Undated non-cumulative subordinated
—MERTA additional tier 1 capital instruments 2,000,000 2,000,000

DRETHEMERT EFESHNGEE KA Details of the other equity instruments are set out in Note 44 to the

ffzta4 o consolidated financial statement.
REH R EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

RAREFR » AT AR EMIRIEC(A  During the year, the Bank has not entered into any equity-linked
A BEREVHBINFBe22DS ) HIEZ 4 agreement under Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Cap 622D).
Wik ©
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors of the Bank

The directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of the
report were:

ZHANG Jun (Vice Chairman)
KWOK Pui Fong Miranda Jp
AUYEUNG Rex Pak-kuen Gs, Jp
FOK Glenn
LEUNG Kwok Wai Jimmy
LEUNG Wing Lok
LI Qianxin
(appointed on December 13, 2024)
WANG Bing
(cessation of appointment on November 22, 2024)
LI Min
(cessation of appointment on October 22, 2024)
FENG Xilai
(cessation of appointment on May 28, 2024)

Pursuant to Clause 111(3) of the Bank’s Articles of Association, Ms.
Kwok Pui Fong Miranda and Mr. Leung Kwok Wai Jimmy shall retire
from office and being eligible offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Bank for three
years up to the date of the AGM of year 2028. Ms. Kwok Pui Fong
Miranda and Mr. Leung Kwok Wai Jimmy will offer themselves for re-
election.

Pursuant to Clause 111(3)(iii) and 111(4) of the Bank's Articles of
Association, the term of office of Mr. Fok Glenn will be expired at the
forthcoming AGM of the Bank. The Bank considered that Mr. Fok has
performed his duty of loyalty and care with exceptional diligence
during his services and fulfilled the independence and fit and proper
requirements of director of the Bank, and intended to propose the
Shareholder appropriately extends the term of office of Mr. Fok.

The extension of term of office of Dr. AUYEUNG Rex Pak-kuen for
an additional year was approved at the AGM of year 2024, and
will be expired at the forthcoming AGM of the Bank. The Bank
considered that Dr. Auyeung has performed his duty of loyalty and
care with exceptional diligence during his services and fulfilled
the independence and fit and proper requirements of director of
the Bank, and intended to propose the Shareholder appropriately
extends the term of office of Dr. Auyeung.

Other remaining directors of the Bank shall remain in office for the
ensuing year.
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BEE ) DIRECTORS (conminuep)

(@) ATITHES(#E) (@) Directors of the Bank (continued)

FREE  EREEREEREEED Mr. WANG Bing, Mr. LI Min and Mr. FENG Xilai ceased to be Non-
BIF20245F 11 228 ~ 2024510822 H executive Director of the Bank on November 22, 2024, October 22,
N2024F5 A28 BB EARTTIENITE S 2024 and May 28, 2024 respectively. Mr. WANG Bing, Mr. LI Min and
PG o TIobdE - EREAERFEDT KA Mr. FENG Xilai confirmed that they have no disagreement with the
FERREEZSWEEMNERTE - Board and nothing relating to the affairs of the Bank needed to be
BUWEEMAR 2 SEERSATTIRE brought to the attention of the shareholder of the Bank.

FF o

(b) FITHBRAEIMNES (b) Directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries
FRAMEEAREER  RELLERE
FEAT—RENBAREZESRE - 77
WMEARFRANEE ARES BIEEN

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. ZHANG Jun
is also a director of a subsidiary of the Bank. Other directors of the
Bank's subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this report

HepgEEmT include:
raE4 WU Jian
B k= WAT Wing Kam
PREERA CHEN POONIS Annie
Eeas LIU Huifen
BR3ZEX (B4 © Joseph) CHENG Tat Kin (Alias: Joseph)
R LAI'King Lun
EST LEE Sui Man
g2 SIT Pui Chan Rita
RN WU Ching Luk
HAGE WU Man Tik
(CE YEUNG Sze Wai
TH WANG Zi
(FR20245F 8 H26 HIEZ(E) (appointed on August 26, 2024)
£ LI Angela Lai Yeung
(FA2025F 2R 11 HEZRME) (appointed on February 11, 2025)
-3 YE Lin
(F20245F8 H26H BE(E) (resigned on August 26, 2024)
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EEEHRE
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or joint venture company was a party, and
in which a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or joint venture company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Bank to hold any interests in
the shares or debentures of, the Bank or its specified undertakings or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that every director, secretary or other
officer of the Bank shall be entitled to be indemnified by the Bank against
all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by him in the
execution and/or discharge of his duties and/or the exercise of his powers
and/or otherwise in relation to or in connection with his duties, powers
or office. The Bank has maintained appropriate directors and officers’
liability insurance which provides personal protection for the directors
and management against any financial loss arising from the potential
exposures associated with supervising or managing the Bank.

COMPLIANCE WITH HONG KONG BANKING
(DISCLOSURE) RULES

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2024 comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Hong Kong
Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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ELTED AUDITOR

TFAMBERROELKETEEBAER © The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young
DEBMGEETAIFAE SR REEEIEE  who shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
£ o BB K &HEN BB AN EBAZSED A resolution for re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the

RBREREERAFHKERG LIRS - Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
EEEEMm By order of the board of directors

REE ZHANG Jun

BIEFER PITEFFRITR Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
HE 0 20253 A21H Hong Kong, March 21, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

/ Ernst & Young TGRS AT Tel E5E: +852 2846 9888

27/F, One Taikoo Place BRBABREBITHR Fax {8E: +852 2868 4432
979 King’s Road Kty —E2718 www.ey.com
E,i Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the members of China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (the “Bank”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 261, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at December 31, 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS conminuen)

Key audit matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowances for Expected Credit Losses on Advances to
Customers

Refer to material accounting policies in Note 4(c)(xv), and
disclosures on credit risk in Note 8(a) and Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, gross advances to customers
amounted to HK$277.9 billion, representing 53% of total assets;
and the expected credit loss ("ECL") allowances for advances to
customers amounted to HK$2.2 billion, representing 91% of the
total ECL allowances for financial instruments.

The assessment of credit risk and the measurement of ECLs
are required to be based on unbiased and probability-
weighted possible outcomes, and reasonable and supportable
information at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group has adopted a forward-looking expected loss
impairment model to recognise ECLs in respect of advances to
customers. Significant management judgement and estimates
are involved in the development and the application of
complex models and the choices of inputs in the calculation of
ECLs, including:

- segmentation of financial assets according to credit risk
characteristics

- criteria to determine whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred

- determination of the ECL stage, estimation of probability
of default, loss given default, exposure at default and
discount rates

- selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios
and their probability weightings

For individual impairment allowances, management judgement
is required to determine the probability of multiple exit or work
out scenarios and estimate the impact that the uncertainties
observed in current economic environment, including
heightened risk associated with the Mainland China and Hong
Kong real estate sector, may have on these exit strategies, the
time to collect, and collateral valuation.

In view of the significance of ECL allowances and the
management judgement and estimates involved, the ECL
allowances for advances to customers are considered a key
audit matter.

We obtained an understanding of the Group’s credit
management policies and procedures, including
measurement and recognition of ECLs. We read the minutes
of the Group’s Risk Management Committee, Credit
Committee, and Special Assets Management Committee
meetings, to understand ECL model governance and
monitoring and the approval of the internal credit risk
ratings and assumptions used in the ECL model.

We performed walkthroughs of credit management
processes and evaluated the Group’s impairment
methodology, including management judgement in
respect of the segmentation of portfolio, the criteria on
significant credit deterioration and the measurement
approach of expected credit losses. We assessed the design
and tested the operating effectiveness of the key controls
over the systems and processes of credit assessment, loan
classification, stage classification and calculation of ECL
allowances. Our testing of the loan impairment processes’
controls included, amongst others, an evaluation of the
governance in respect of the selection and probability
weightings of economic scenarios and the controls over
data input.

For the ECL allowances as at 31 December 2024, we
performed testing on the completeness and accuracy of the
data used in the ECL calculation by comparing the individual
loan data to the relevant data source on a sample basis;
evaluating the calculation logic and data processing; and
recomputing for a sample of management’s calculation of
the ECL allowances.

We engaged our modelling specialists in evaluating the
impairment methodology and model enhancements.
We assessed the appropriateness of the ECL model used
by management in determining impairment allowances,
including changes made to forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios, and evaluated the key parameters and
assumptions adopted in the model. The key parameters and
assumptions included ECL stages, probability of default, loss
given default, exposure at default, and probability weighted
economic scenarios.

In addition, for the corporate lending portfolio, we adopted
a risk-based sampling approach to perform loan review
procedures, with focus on high-risk industries including the
Mainland China and Hong Kong real estate sector, in order
to assess the appropriateness of management’s credit risk
rating and ECL staging by reviewing the borrowers’ financial
performance, valuation of collateral and other available
information. As part of our loan review procedures, we
selected samples of credit-impaired loans and advances
and assessed their stage 3 ECL allowances by evaluating the
timing and means of realisation of collateral, the forecast of
recoverable cash flows, the viability of recovery plans and
other credit enhancements.

We also evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the Group's key controls related to
disclosures on credit risk.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS conminuen)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of financial instruments

Refer to material accounting policies in Note 4(c)(xvii), and
disclosures on fair values and the valuation hierarchy of financial
instruments in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value amounted to HK$156,829
million and HK$23,779 million, respectively. In connection
with this, HK$70,477 million and HK$229 million of the Group's
financial assets measured at fair value were categorised within
level 2 and level 3, respectively; and all the Group’s financial
liabilities measured at fair value were categorised within level 2.

The Group has applied valuation techniques to determine the
fair value of financial instruments that do not have quoted
prices in active markets. These valuation techniques, in
particular those that include significant unobservable inputs,
involve management using subjective judgements and
assumptions. Valuation results can vary significantly under
different valuation techniques or assumptions.

Financial instruments that do not have quoted prices in
active markets are classified as level 2 or level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy. In view of the complexity and significant
management judgement involved in the determination of fair
value for level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, the valuation
of financial instruments is considered as a key audit matter.

We obtained an understanding of the Group's financial
instrument valuation policies and procedures, including
recognition and measurement of valuation adjustments.

We evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key controls over valuation and model
approval.

We focused on the valuation methodologies and
assumptions of financial instruments that were classified as
level 2 and level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. We involved our
valuation specialists in evaluating the valuation techniques,
inputs and assumptions through comparison with the
valuation techniques that are commonly used in the market,
benchmarking of observable inputs using external market
data, comparison with valuation outcomes obtained from
various pricing sources, and performing independent
valuation for a sample of level 2 financial instruments and all
level 3 financial instruments.

We also evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the Group's key controls related to
disclosures on fair value.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Bank are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors of the Bank either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Bank are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conmvuep)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeqguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Lam Yiu Wah.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
21 March 2025
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mEEFER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

#HZE2024F 1231 B IEFE | For the year ended December 31, 2024
(BB RIFERRSN - LABEEFITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

B 5
Note 2024 2023

FEMA Interest income 22,249,389 20,244,185
MBS H Interest expense (14,156,925) (13,697,212)
FMEWAZEEE Net interest income 11 8,092,464 6,546,973
FEERASBA Fees and commission income 1,882,888 1,707,960
FEENATIH Fees and commission expense (174,651) (156,947)
FEERMHLSWAFEE  Netfees and commission income 12 1,708,237 1,551,013
R U FEE Net trading income 13 916,239 705,052
BEBRAREBMETTAE Netlosses from financial instruments designated

HHE R T EIBAEEE  atfair value through profit or loss 14 (516,670) (17,475)
HEZE AL BESERHE Netgains from disposal of financial assets

BEE AEMEEUZ  measured at fair value through other

He R E EWE TR comprehensive income 146,187 71,178
E b g8 & WA Other operating income 15 70,187 70,330
mEIWAEEE Total operating income 10,416,644 8,927,071
KEE R Operating expenses 16 (3,167,415) (3,178,640)
RBRBETRE Operating profit before impairment losses

REREA 7,249,229 5,748,431
TEERE 1B RETIR/EEE  Net charge on expected credit losses 17 (217,580) (957,972)
R EF Operating profit 7,031,649 4,790,459
HEBFEERK Losses on disposal of fixed assets (120) -
BlEaEhERF Share of profit of joint venture 31 14,982 9,257
BB AR R Profit before taxation 7,046,511 4,799,716
| Taxation 19 (1,126,650) (795,491)
FEER Profit for the year 5,919,861 4,004,225

Mt BANAR A M ISRV B D

financial statements.

The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated
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SEETHEWER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#HZE2024F12A31BIEFE | For the year ended December 31, 2024
(BRAERIFERASN - ABEETITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

2024 2023
FEERF Profit for the year 5,919,861 4,004,225
Hit 2wk Other comprehensive income
HETHEEEF I EZEEN Items that may be reclassified
HE subsequently to profit or loss:
BEAnBEFAEMEZEKEN Debt instruments measured at fair value
BB TA through other comprehensive income:
FADHERNAREBES Changes in fair value recognised
during the year 756,700 1,434,694
EABSRSBEEN YA Reclassification adjustments for amounts
transferred to profit or loss (146,187) (71,178)
RIEEEERCBEEREX Expected credit losses recognised in
profit or loss 30,548 22,450
DS Tax effect (101,748) (224,707)
HETSEHF L/ EEZEFEMER :  Item that may not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
BERZARBEFAEMEZE Equity instruments designated at fair value
Warm T : through other comprehensive income:
FAEBRN AR BEE Changes in fair value recognised during
the year 54,792 75,329
CHBRHENFEELM2EWE  Other comprehensive income for the year,
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 n e,!P,f,t,a,),(,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 594,105 1,236,588
FEZEWRSEAE Total comprehensive income for the year 6,513,966 5,240,813
Mizr B A4S B ISR MBI - The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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mEMBARRE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2024412 318 | As at December 31,2024
(B RIFERRSN - LABEEFITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

B 5
Note 2024 2023
BE ASSETS
IR e MAERTT KA RIEIT Cash and balances with banks and central
ke banks 21 34,863,923 46,954,109
FHERITRUR Placements with banks 22 37,534,839 40,632,740
BARBESAEBEHZEE  Financial assets measured at fair value
ABENEHEE through profit or loss 25 4,037,977 1,906,328
WOEREEANSRERE  Financial assets held under reverse
repurchase agreements 23 - 2,023,967
TTESRT A Derivative financial instruments 28 8,024,916 1,971,341
RITER Advances to banks 24 7,305,833 265,597
TEERLESFERE Advances to customers and trade bills 24 275,688,645 259,717,847
BEAnBEGAEAHES Financial assets measured at fair value
T AH AL 2 E KA through other comprehensive income
eWMEE 26 144,765,736 128,717,611
IREE AR ARET EME M EZE  Other assets measured at amortised cost 27 722,500 1,576,306
REEDLENER Interest in a joint venture 37 1,857,162 1,856,180
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 32 534,778 633,945
& E & E Fixed assets 33 2,123,365 2,219,069
ERERE Right-of-use assets 34 1,176,550 1,302,952
Hith & & Other assets 36 3,615,584 4,079,683
EEAE Total assets 522,251,808 493,857,675
o RERLRIEST () RBRAT 2024555 (67—



EMBRRE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2024412 4318 | As at December 31,2024
(B4 RIEERASN - ABEE T ITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

B 5
Note 2024 2023
=R LIABILITIES
IRITH T RNEETT Deposits and balances with banks 37 13,742,642 10,014,023
ZEER Deposits from customers 38 371,761,774 381,073,831
EEHE THERNSEIEE  Financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements 39 3,425,121 9,370,572
TESRmIA Derivative financial instruments 28 6,488,813 1,331,114
HEEALAAEBESERE  Finandial liabilities designated at fair value
BEEt ABRNSHAasE through profit or loss 40 17,290,359 6,368,794
BREITEMERES Other debt securities issued 4 3,195,926 660,058
HEaE Lease liabilities 35 724,543 853,346
JE & HAFR IR Current tax payable 32 348,584 447,954
EERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 32 17,850 18,012
HiaE Other liabilities 42 6,024,039 6,257,308
EEH5 Total liabilities 423,019,651 416,395,012
R EQUITY
& Share capital 43 28,827,843 28,827,843
HibfEm TE Other equity instruments 44 23,325,106 7,777,601
G Reserves 45 47,079,208 40,857,219
A RE Total equity 99,232,157 77,462,663
EENEEAE Total equity and liabilities 522,251,808 493,857,675

EEEeMN2025FE3 A2 B EN R o

KRB FEFKR HTEFHRTR

BT FHTEFE

B AER A SR AVERE D
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financial statements.

Non-Executive Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 21,

ZHANG Jun Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
KWOK Pui Fong Miranda Jp

The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated




GEEREER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#HZE2024F 12831 B IEFE | For the year ended December 31,2024
(B4 RIEERASN - LA T ITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

Efh k&
itz Rr  BHRIE CERE EfRE EERE HbRE  AHEE  REE EE]
Other Investment
Share equity  General revaluation Regulatory Other ~ Merger  Retained

Note capital instruments  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  eamings Total
R04E R1B R & Balance as at January 1, 2024 28,827,843 7,177,601 750956  (458,060) 572,887 15913 62,262 39913261 77,462,663
WUEERES - Changes n equity for 2004;
EEGT Profitfor the year - - - - - - - 5919861 5919861
E2EMNE(BEE)  Othercomprehensive income, net of tax - = - 594105 - - - - 594105
FELENGESR Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 594105 - - - 5919861 6,513,966
BIEMERIR Issuance of other equity instruments - 15,547,505 - - - - - - 15,547,505
TRHEMESZTENHZS  Coupon paid for other equity instruments - = = = = - - (291977 (291977)
EERE Requlatory reserve - - - - 180,544 - - (180,544) -
20245128310 #0148  Balance as at December 31,2024 28,827,843 23,325,106 750,956 136,045 753,431 15913 62,262 45,360,601 99,232,157
RUBEIA1RRES Balance as at January 1, 2023 28821843 7777601 75095 (1,694648) 909,600 15913 62260 35805469  725149%
WIEERES - Changes in equity for 2003;
EERA Profitfor the year - - - - - - S A0S 4004205
E2EWE(BRE)  Othercomprehensive income, net of tax - - - 1,236,588 - - - - 1,236,588
ERPENGLE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1036588 - - — 4004205 5240813
TITEMERTENHZE  Coupon paid forother equity instruments - - - - - - S (%348 (093149)
EERE Requlatory reserve - - - - 36713 - - 336713 -
R023F12 4318458 Balance as at December 31,2023 28827843 7777601 750956 (458,060) 572887 15913 62200 39913261 77462663
B ARGRE BRI AR - The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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GERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#HZE2024F12A31BIEFE | For the year ended December 31, 2024
(BRAERIFERASN - ABEETITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

NS
Note 2024 2023
HEEMGRY) FARIE  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
EFHE operations 50(a) (24,238,453) 34,971,744
BREBENER Hong Kong Profit Tax paid (1,215,515) (460,775)
BRI Withholding tax paid (13,189) (12,453)
HEEEHMGRE) KA Netcash (outflow)/inflow from
MRS EEE operating activities (25,467,157) 34,498,516

BARAABESERESE  Purchase of financial assets measured at

FEFAEMEEKENE fair value through other comprehensive

BEE income (162,140,346) (34,271,576)
EORHERANABETTE  Proceeds received from redemption and

HE'Q‘“‘ FTAE M EmEU disposal of financial assets measured at fair

SHERMEEMMSIIE value through other comprehensive income 147,835,158 21,398,369
LEAEI) &?Zﬁﬁﬁ?@(zﬁu‘l'g Proceeds received from redemption and
R E At & EFT1S R0E disposal of other assets measured at
amortised cost 842,372 1,506,114
PN EINET -] Purchase of property and equipment 33 (141,549) (170,618)
B EERERE Dividend received from a joint venture 31 14,000 25,000
P ETRIELETEERE  Dividends received from listed and unlisted
investments 1,866 5,792
?&ﬁ}%i}] ﬁ'ﬁ};’ﬁ, .':I:.' E’SJE%}%?E _Net cash outflow from investing activities (13,588,499) (11,506,919)
YATERI AR TEMAAS Issuance of other equity instruments 15,547,505 -
ST EMERTEMNEZR Coupon paid for other equity instruments (291,977) (293,146)
HENFOAREE D Principal portion of lease payments (238,442) (237,080)
EREFEMmMAA (FRH) Netcash inflow/(outflow) from financing
m@fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁwmmwmmgcﬁtﬁingigsi 777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 15,017,086 (530,226)
RENBLEEYWORL),” (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash
$Ehn equivalents (24,038,570) 22,461,371
A1A1ENEREMRLZEY Cash and cash equivalents as at January 1 73,181,732 50,459,251
HNEE o5 A SR G B = L Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (500,037) 261,110
M12B31BWBREMIEE  Cashand cash equivalents as at
EEY December 31 50(b) 48,643,125 73,181,732
BEFEEELMNEELHRE  Cash flows from operating activities
/4 include:
FEWA Interest received 22,026,717 19,010,050
MBS H Interest paid (14,191,840) (13,305,753)
MEZHE —MHERMFEFE  Interest paid — interest portion of lease
5 payments 35 (16,786) (16,737)
M T B A 4R A B B R R AV AR 2B o The accompanying notes are the integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRAFRIRERASN -
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Bl IRIT RNE281E -
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Al R EREIRIT MR & BARFS o

HE204F 12831 BILFEMNGEEY
BRERERAEBRAEEREAE
PEER - AP BIREKE 1K2025
FIANHEESSZE -

BIESHE N

RiFEMBHRRRERRBBEGFA
SRGNAEERN(EBM B REE
AD(ESREE S MAEANEIKEE
MG REER)  (FEGFHERDNZ
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PR AR AT IR ATER A © B RESTRAE
A ERERZEERMS &R
HEMEN  MZEFEMRABRER
£ B & AN 177 R 1 78 I BR 1E & AT AUA
EEFHENGEEMBRERA

AR FITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited (“the Bank”) is a
licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at 28/F, CCB Tower,
3 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as “the Group”) are the provision of a range of banking
and related financial services through the Bank's branches and
subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2024 comprise the Group and the Group's interest in a joint
venture. The consolidated financial statements were approved by
the Board of Directors on March 21, 2025.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collectively include all individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Bank. Note 5 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group and the Bank for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position
in order of liquidity based on the Group’s intention and perceived
ability to recover/settle the majority of assets/liabilities of the
corresponding financial statement line item. The Group uses the
calendar year as the accounting year, which is from January 1 to
December 31.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Going concern

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis, as the directors are satisfied that the Group and parent
company have the resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the directors
have considered a wide range of information relating to
present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except that: (i) financial instrument
measured at fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL") are
measured at fair value; (i) financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") are measured
at fair value; (iii) derivative financial instruments are measured
at fair value; and (iv) the carrying values of recognised assets
and liabilities that are hedged items in fair value hedges, and
otherwise carried at amortised cost, are adjusted to record
changes in fair value attributable to the risks that are being
hedged. The measurement basis of major assets and liabilities
are further explained in Note 4.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars,
unless otherwise stated, rounded to the nearest thousand,
which is the functional currency of the Group.

4@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conminuep)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

Judgments that have a significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustments in the subsequent period are discussed in Note 6.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported
gross in the consolidated statement of financial position
except when HKFRS netting criteria are met.

Local regulatory reporting

In preparing the capital adequacy ratios of the Group, they are
prepared according to the basis of consolidation for regulatory
purposes. The main difference between the consolidation
basis for accounting and regulatory purposes is that the former
includes the Bank and all its subsidiaries and a joint venture
whereas the latter excludes CCB Securities Limited (“CCBS"),
CCB Nominees Limited ("CCBN”") and CCB (Asia) Trustee
Company Limited (“CCBT") which conduct non-banking related
business.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conminuep)

i BEE R E (&) (f)  Local regulatory reporting (continued)
TEEAEE RigEe EWAH Details of the subsidiaries which are not included in
BARIFBENT : consolidation for regulatory purposes are as follows:
EEAE Emam
Total assets Total equity
20245 2023 20245 20234
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H318
Name of December31, December31, December31, December 31,
DNAIEHE  company TEEHK Principal activities 2024 2023 2024 2023
BITES (RS BAITIDERE  Securities brokerage business 775,255 781416 510,028 617617
BIIREBA (BN #EER Custodian and
REARS nominees services 10,248 10,360 9,623 9,668
BOTEE (BT EEE Trustee and
TEANEHR custodian business 170,813 129,958 146,723 117,746
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Consolidated financial statements

(i)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group has the power over the activities
of the entity, and is exposed to, or has the rights to the
variable returns from its involvement with the entity,
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(@) Consolidated financial statements (continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries (continued)

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so
that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any
voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the
relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements. The Group is considered to control
another entity if, in addition to ongoing involvement
with the entity, it had a key role in establishing the entity
or in bringing together relevant counterparties so the
transaction that is the purpose of the entity could occur.
The Group is generally not considered to control another
entity if the only involvement with the entity is merely
administrative.

The financial results and performance of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. When preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the Group makes necessary
adjustments on the accounting period and accounting
policies of subsidiaries to comply with those of the
Group.

Intragroup balances and transactions, and any profits or
losses arising from intragroup transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

RERLREST () RARAT 2024555 (75—



mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B4 RFERRSD -

4 BAETHEHE#
(a) GABBE®RED)

(i)

(ii)

WEA ()
EPS BN eSS
(REB RS 2 VR HIERS - H

B EMRBERBEN
u%%%%ﬂ“a%&ﬁﬁ
B8 E@EZEmEEE
EINN %é%m%#ﬁwoﬁ
B E’H%E/‘\ﬁ%ﬁ@w% RN
IR ﬁﬁiiﬂéﬁ
ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁw%m%
BREEE - ttoh - BAERE
HEEWRTEREEZE
B2EMEE  TMERERA
AEBEEZELEHEBEEN
BEZABRAFARE - 5%
TBERE M2 AU S iR
RZBESEFHEEHFSE
J{,E\ml%

EARITHERE AR &K
A RHTBRRMNRE R
AR ERERBRX(NE)
1588

BERNANEELREZH
E NGBR3 080
MERFENDE - EXF
EREHRIREDENR

MEERRA S ERKE
H o BIAE %%ﬂi%ﬁ

Hth 7 —#E LRI I 5E LR
BRI -

AT ITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(@) Consolidated financial statements (continued)

(i)

(ii)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as a joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any.

Associates and joint arrangements

An associate is an enterprise in which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policy decisions.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(@) Consolidated financial statements (continued)

(ii)

Associates and joint arrangements (continued)

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control. The classification of a
joint arrangement as a joint operation or a joint venture
depends upon the rights and obligations of the parties
to the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control over an economic activity, and
exists only when the strategic financial and operating
decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing the control. The Group
has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures.

Interests in associates or joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements. Under the equity method, the interest in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at
cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted
to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets
of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition
date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
not tested for impairment separately.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the
Group's share of the results of operations of the associate
or joint venture. Any change in OCl of those investees
is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(@) Consolidated financial statements (continued)

(ii)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Associates and joint arrangements (continued)

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of
an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss outside
operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax
and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the
associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture
are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the
accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint
venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is objective evidence that the investment
in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is
such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying
value, and then recognises the loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate
or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(b)

(c)

Translation of foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
spot exchange rates at that date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in “Net trading income”. Non-
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at historical cost are translated into functional
currency using the spot exchange rates at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
that are measured at fair value are translated using the spot
exchange rates at the dates the fair values are determined;
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as trading income, except for the
differences arising from the translation of financial instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
which are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Financial instruments

(i)  Initial recognition
All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position,
when and only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The classification of financial instruments at initial
recognition depends on their contractual terms and
the business model for managing the instruments.
Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair
value, except in the case of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at FVPL, transaction costs are added
to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are
measured at the transaction price.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
instrument at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
instrument not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
instrument. Transaction costs for financial instruments
carried at FVPL are expensed immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the
business model for managing the assets and the asset’s
contractual terms, measured at either:

Amortised cost

- FVOCI

FVPL

The Group classifies and measures its derivatives and
trading portfolios at FVPL. The Group may designate
financial instruments at FVPL, if so doing eliminates
or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistencies.

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and
financial guarantees, are measured at amortised cost
or at FVPL when they are held for trading or derivative
instruments or the fair value designation is applied.
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The Group measures loans and advances to banks and
customers and some debt securities at amortised cost
only if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the
principal amount outstanding.

Business model assessment

The Group determines its business model at the level
that best reflects how it manages groups of financial
assets to achieve its business objective:

- The risks that affect the performance of the
business model and, in particular, the way those
risks are managed; and

- How managers of the business are compensated,
whether the compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or on the contractual
cash flows collected.

The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are
also important aspects of the Group’s assessment. The
business model assessment is based on reasonably
expected scenarios without taking “worst case” or “stress
case” scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial
recognition are realised in a way that is different from
the Group's original expectations, the Group does not
change the classification of the remaining financial assets
held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly
purchased financial assets going forward.
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4 BEAREFEE 4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrinuen)
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(iii)  Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
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(continued)
The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process the Group
assesses the contractual terms of the financial asset to
identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair
value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may
change over the life of the financial asset.

The most significant elements of interest within a
lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make
the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgement and
considers relevant factors such as the currency in which
the financial asset is denominated, and the period for
which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more
than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic
lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial
asset is required to be measured at FVPL.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

Derivatives
A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract
with all three of the following characteristics:

- [ts value changes in response to the change in a
specified interest rate, equity price, commodity
price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or
rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable,
provided that, in the case of a non-financial
variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract;

- It requires no initial net investment or an initial net
investment that is smaller than would be required
for other types of contracts expected to have a
similar response to changes in market factors; and

- [tis settled at a future date.

The Group enters into derivative transactions with
various counterparties. These include interest rate
swaps, currency swaps, equity swaps, foreign exchange
contracts and options on foreign currencies. Derivatives
are recorded at fair value and carried as assets when their
fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value
is negative. The notional amount and fair value of such
derivatives are disclosed separately in Note 28. Changes
in the fair value of derivatives are included in “Net trading
income”. Hedge accounting disclosures are provided in
Note 29.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv) Derivatives (continued)

(v)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVAs") and debit
valuation adjustments ("DVAs") are applied to the
Group's OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect
market factors movement, expectations of counterparty
creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each
counterparty and are dependent on expected future
values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery
rates. For the year ended December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, the changes in the fair value of own
credit risk of financial liabilities designated at FVPL was
considered to be immaterial.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
instrument that also includes a non-derivative host
contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of
the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-
alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some
or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required
by the contract to be modified according to a specified
interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit
rating or credit index, or other variable, provided that, in
the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to
a party to the contract. A derivative that is attached to
a financial instrument, but is contractually transferable
independently of that instrument, or has a different
counterparty from that instrument, is not an embedded
derivative, but a separate financial instrument.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(v)

Embedded derivatives (continued)

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial
asset, then the Group assesses the entire contract for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the
embedded derivatives are treated as separate derivatives
when:

- Their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract;

- A separate instrument with the same terms would
meet the definition of a derivative; and

- The hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL.

The Group presents the structured deposits, which
contain both deposit and derivative components,
as "Financial liabilities designated at FVPL" in the
consolidated statement of financial position since they
are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.
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profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category
are those mandatorily required to be measured at fair
value under HKFRS 9 and held for trading.

The Group classifies financial assets or financial liabilities
as held for trading when they have been purchased or
issued primarily for short-term profit-making through
trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial
instruments that are managed together, for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit
taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are recorded
and measured in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value. Changes in fair value, interest
and dividend income or expense is recognised in “Net
Trading Income” according to the terms of the contract,
or when the right to payment has been established.

The classification of held for trading included debt
securities that have been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be
measured at FVPL is recorded using the contractual
interest rate. Dividend income from equity instruments
measured at FVPL is recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as “Other operating income”
when the right to the payment has been established.
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(¢ &RMIEAE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(vii) IEEURAAEEIEHEE (vii) Financial instruments designated at fair value through
Bt A BmE@M T A profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are
those that are not held for trading and have been either
designated by management upon initial recognition.
Management only designates an instrument at FVPL
upon initial recognition when one of the following
criteria is met. Such designation is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis:

- The use of the designation removes or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch; or

- When a group of financial assets and liabilities or
a group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on the fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy; or

- The liabilities contain one or more embedded
derivatives, unless they do not significantly
modify the cash flows that would otherwise be
required by the contract, or it is clear with little
or no analysis when a similar instrument is first
considered that separation of the embedded
derivative(s) is prohibited.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at FVPL
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded
in profit or loss with the exception of movements in fair
value of liabilities designated at FVPL due to changes in
the Group’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value
are recorded in the own credit reserve through OCl and
do not get recycled to profit or loss.

Debt instruments measured at FVOCI

The Group classifies debt instruments at FVOCI when
both of the following conditions are met:

- The instrument is held within a business model, the
objective of which is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset meet
the SPPI test.

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes
in fair value recognised in OCI. Interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the same
manner as for other assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECL calculation for debt instruments at FVOCI is
explained in Note 4(c)(xv). On derecognition, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in OCl are
reclassified from OCI to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(ix)  Equity instruments designated at FVOCI

(x)

Upon initial recognition, the Group occasionally elects
to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments
as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as “Other
operating income” when the right of the payment has
been established, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in
OCl. Equity instruments designated at FVOCI are not
subject to an impairment assessment.

Letters of credit, financial guarantees and undrawn
loan commitments

The Group issues letters of credit, financial guarantees
and other credit commitments. Undrawn loan
commitments and letters of credits are commitments
under which, over the duration of the commitment, the
Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified
terms to the customer. Similar to financial guarantee
contracts, these contracts are in the scope of the ECL
requirements.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(x)

(xi)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Letters of credit, financial guarantees and undrawn
loan commitments

The nominal contractual value of financial guarantees,
letters of credit and other credit commitments, where
the loan agreed to be provided is on market terms,
are not recorded on in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The nominal values of these
instruments together with the corresponding ECL
are disclosed in Note 48. Financial guarantees are
initially recognised in the financial statements (within
Provisions) at fair value, being the premium received.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liability
under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, and an ECL allowance as set out in Note 48.

The premium received is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as “Net fees and commission
income” on a straight line basis over the life of the
guarantee.

Financial assets held under reverse repurchase
agreements and financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements

Financial assets held under reverse repurchase
agreements are transactions where the Group
acquires financial assets which will be resold at a
predetermined price at a future date under reverse
repurchase agreements. Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements are transactions where the
Group sells financial assets which will be repurchased at
a predetermined price at a future date under repurchase
agreements.

The cash advanced or received is recognised as
amounts held under reverse repurchase or sold under
repurchase agreements in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Assets held under reverse repurchase
agreements are not recognised. Assets sold under
repurchase agreements continue to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The difference between the purchase and resale
consideration, and that between the sale and repurchase
consideration, is amortised over the period of the
respective transaction using the effective interest
method and is included in interest income and interest
expense respectively.
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(0 TMIARGE) (0)
(xii) TRAEBEEFEBHEH 78

Financial instruments (continued)
(xii) Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
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The Group does not reclassify its financial assets
subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires,
disposes of, or terminates a business line.

(xiii) bz T A (xiii) Other equity instruments
HENBEREEBRBEREED Securities, including Additional Tier 1 Capital instruments,
HHsKERHEMES (B which carry a discretionary coupon and have no fixed
BRI —REATER)HE maturity or redemption date are classified as “Other
BRIHMERTIE] & equity instruments”. Interest payments on these
L E SN BN RE M securities are recognised as distributions from equity in
BIFER SR DL © the period in which they are declared.

(xiv) #&IETEFR (xiv) Derecognition
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The Group derecognises a financial asset if the part being
considered for derecognition meets one of the following
conditions: (i) the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows from the financial asset expire; (ii) the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset have
been transferred and the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset; or (iii) the Group retains the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
to the eventual recipient in an agreement that meets
all the conditions of transfer of cash flows and transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

- The Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset; or

- The Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only
if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset
in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer.
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(¢ &RIAE) (c)  Financial instruments (continued)
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(xiv) Derecognition (continued)
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When the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained
control of the asset, the asset continues to be
recognised only to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement, in which case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset derecognised and the consideration
received and the cumulative changes in fair value
previously recognised in investment revaluation reserve
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Any cumulative changes in fair value previously
recognised in equity investment securities designated as
FVOCI is not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition
but recognised in OCI.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
but retains control, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the financial asset. If the Group has not
retained control, it derecognises the financial asset and
recognises separately as assets or liabilities any rights
and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
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(¢ &RMIEAE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xiv) IFTER (&) (xiv) Derecognition (continued)
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The financial liability is derecognised only when: (i) the
underlying present obligation specified in the contracts
is discharged, cancelled or expired; or (i) an agreement
between the Group and an existing lender to replace the
original financial liability with a new financial liability with
substantially different terms, or a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Any cumulative changes in fair value of
financial liabilities designated under the fair value option
that are attributable to a reporting entity’s own credit
risk are recognised in OCl and these amounts are not
transferred to profit or loss upon derecognition.
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(¢ &EMIEAE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
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(xv) Impairment of financial assets
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The Group recognises expected credit losses ("ECL") for
loans and advances to banks and customers, non-trading
reverse repurchase agreements, other financial assets
held at amortised cost, debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, and certain
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected
to arise over the life of the asset (“lifetime ECL"), unless
there has been no significant increase in credit risk since
origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the
12 months’ expected credit losses (“12-month ECL").

The 12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that
represent the ECL that result from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date.

Both lifetime ECL and 12-month ECL are calculated on
either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending
on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial
instruments. The Group has established a policy to
perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring
over the remaining life of the financial instrument.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Based on the above process, the Group's ECL are

grouped into Stage

1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and Purchased or

originated credit impaired ("POCI"), as described below:

Stage 1:

Stage 2:

Stage 3:

POCI:

When financial assets are first recognised,
the Group recognises an allowance based
on 12-month ECL. Stage 1 loans also include
facilities where the credit risk has improved
and the financial assets have been reclassified
from Stage 2.

When financial assets have shown a
significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Group records an allowance
for the lifetime ECL. Stage 2 financial assets
also include facilities, where the credit risk has
improved and the financial assets have been
reclassified from Stage 3.

Financial assets considered credit-impaired.
The Group records an allowance for the
lifetime ECL.

POCI assets are financial assets that are
credit impaired on initial recognition.
POCI assets are recorded at fair value at
original recognition and interest income is
subsequently recognised based on a credit-
adjusted EIR. The ECL allowance is only
recognised or released to the extent that
there is a subsequent change in the expected
credit losses.
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For financial assets for which the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire
outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is
considered a (partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

- Credit-impaired

The Group determines that a financial instrument is
credit-impaired and in stage 3 satisfies the criteria
described in Note 8(a)(x)(2).

Interest income is recognised by applying the EIR
to the amortised cost amount, i.e. gross carrying
amount less ECL allowance.

For loss provision measured at the amount
equivalent to the lifetime expected credit losses
of the financial instrument previously, if, at the
end of the current reporting period, the financial
instrument is no longer having significant increase
in credit risk since the initial recognition, the Group
measures its loss provision based on the amount of
its expected credit losses for the next 12 months,
and the reversal of the loss provision arising from
it is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the current reporting period.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss on financial assets decreased
and the decrease in expected credit losses,
the previously recognised impairment loss
was reversed. The amount of the reversal was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The reversal shall not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset that exceeded the
amortised cost at the date of the reversal had the
impairment not been recognised.
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4 BEAREFEE 4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conrnuen)

(¢ &RMIEAE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xv) EEEELBEE)

(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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different categories (other than POCI) depending
on their relative increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Financial instruments are transferred
out of stage 2 if their credit risk is no longer
considered to be significantly increased since initial
recognition based on the assessments described
above. Except for renegotiated loans, financial
instruments are transferred out of stage 3 when
they no longer exhibit any evidence of credit-
impairment as described above. Rescheduled
loans that are not POCI will continue to be in
stage 3 until certain specific conditions are met by
the end of the observation period of normally 6
months, with the approval from management.
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(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

An assessment of whether credit risk has increased
significantly is performed at each reporting
period by considering the change in the risk of
default occurring over the remaining life of the
financial instrument. The assessment explicitly or
implicitly have experienced a significant increase
in credit risk, taking into account reasonable and
supportable information, including information
about past events, current conditions and future
economic conditions. The assessment is unbiased,
probability-weighted, and to the extent relevant,
uses forward-looking information consistent with
that used in the measurement of ECL. The detail is
described in Note 8(a)(x)(1).

Unimpaired and without significant increase in credit
risk

ECL resulting from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (“12-month ECL") are
recognised for financial instruments that remain in
Stage 1.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement of ECL

The assessment of credit risk, and the estimation
of ECL, are unbiased and probability-weighted,
and incorporate all available information which is
relevant to the assessment including information
about past events, current conditions and
reasonable and supportable forecasts of future
events and economic conditions at the reporting
date. In addition, the estimation of ECL takes into
account the time value of money.

In general, the Group calculates ECL using three
main components, PD, a loss given default ("LGD")
and the exposure at default ("EAD”).
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

The 12-month ECL is calculated by multiplying
the 12-month PD, LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL
is calculated using the lifetime PD instead.
The 12-month and lifetime PDs represent the
probability of default occurring over the next
12 months and the remaining maturity of the
instrument respectively. The EAD represents the
expected balance at default, taking into account
the repayment of principal and interest from the
balance sheet date to the default event together
with any expected drawdowns of committed
facilities. The LGD represents expected losses on
the EAD given the event of default, taking into
account, among other attributes, the mitigating
effect of collateral value at the time it is expected
to be realised and the time value of money.

The ECL for stage 3 financial assets is determined
on an individual basis. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group recognises the amount of the
change in lifetime expected credit losses as an
impairment loss in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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(¢ &RMIEAE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
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measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCl
as an accumulated impairment amount, with
a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The
accumulated loss recognised in OCl is recycled
to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the
assets.
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(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loan commitments and letters of credit

When estimating lifetime ECL for undrawn loan
commitments, the Group estimates the expected
portion of the loan commitment that will be
drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is
then based on the present value of the expected
shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down,
based on a probability-weighting of the scenarios.
The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at an
approximation to the expected EIR on the loan.

For credit cards and revolving facilities that include
both a loan and an undrawn commitment, ECL is
calculated and presented together with the loan.
For loan commitments and letters of credit, the
ECL is recognised within “Other liabilities".

Financial guarantee contracts

The Group’s liability under each guarantee is
measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, and the ECL provision. For this purpose,
the Group estimates ECL based on the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls
are discounted by the risk-adjusted interest rate
relevant to the exposure. The calculation is made
using a probability-weighting of the scenarios. The
ECL related to financial guarantee contracts are
recognised within “Other liabilities”.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Rescheduled loans

Loans are identified as rescheduled and classified
as credit-impaired when the contractual payment
terms are modified due to significant credit
distress of the borrower. Rescheduled loans remain
classified as credit-impaired until certain specific
conditions are met by the end of the observation
period of normally 6 months, with the approval
from management.

A loan that is rescheduled is derecognised if
the existing agreement is cancelled and a new
agreement is made on substantially different
terms or if the terms of an existing agreement
are modified such that the rescheduled loan is a
substantially different financial instrument.

Write-off

When the Group determined that a loan has no
reasonable prospect of recovery after the Group
had completed all the necessary legal or other
proceedings, the loan is written off against its
allowance for impairment losses. If in a subsequent
period the loan written off is recovered, the
amount recovered will be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss through
impairment losses.
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(xv) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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- Forward-looking information

The Group incorporates forward-looking
information in the measurement of ECL. The
mechanism of the model incorporation is
discussed in Note 8(a)(x)(4).

(xvi) Hedge accounting

As a part of its risk management, the Group has identified
a series of risk categories with corresponding hedging
strategies using derivative instruments.

Transactions that are entered into in accordance with the
Group's hedging objectives but do not qualify for hedge
accounting, are referred to in these financial statements
as economic hedge relationships.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group
formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge
accounting, the risk management objective and its
strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of
the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess
whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge
effectiveness requirements (including the analysis of
sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge
ratio is determined).
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(xvi) Hedge accounting (continued)

IMREMBEMBIATIAE
BREES  AIREEHRS
AT EIfERAF

- WEHBEBHEHRT
AZBEaEl&EH
&l

- FEERBROTETE
[TEEREEBEE
HEEBEZL] -

- EHBRENEHLE
HEAEEERENN
HEMBEEWHEM
AEBERAREH
ZREHEBENES
TANEEMRER -

AEBEEHSHOEEIR
BfEE29 o

R EEER

REEERZNERER -
AEBENREEEARAE
BEMSS - LSFRGUX
HRFEREHRER - A
DR EBEEERSRELE
B e SR EEEM RSB E
ERNRABERE BT
1Py R BRI R R Y )7 &)
META—% - REHES
AERE  AEESERR
RIETRCHEREMEEN
BERFERREHAAE
EEHHER - WA E
1B - ARBEH RN RS
HHEEETES LB
BEEEBAAEBEEHT
REZHAEKES

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if
it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

- There is “an economic relationship” between the
hedged item and the hedging instrument.

- The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the
value changes” that result from that economic
relationship.

- The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is
the same as that resulting from the quantity of
the hedged item that the Group actually hedges
and the quantity of the hedging instrument that
the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of
hedged item.

Disclosures of the Group’s hedge accounting are set out
in Note 29.

Fair value hedge

In accordance with its wider risk management, it is the
Group's strategy to apply fair value hedge accounting
to keep interest rate sensitivities within its established
limits. Applying fair value hedge accounting enables
the Group to reduce fair value fluctuations of fixed rate
financial assets or liabilities as if they were floating rate
instruments linked to the attributable benchmark rates.
From a hedge accounting point of view, the Group
designates the hedged risk as the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised financial asset or liability
that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect
profit or loss. The Group only hedges changes due to
interest rates, which are typically the most significant
component of the overall fair value change.
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(¢ &RMIEAE) (c) Financial instruments (continued)
(xvi) ERfEE (&) (xvi) Hedge accounting (continued)
DA BEER(E) Fair value hedge (continued)

In accordance with its hedging strategy, the Group
matches the principal of the hedging instruments to the
principal of the hedged items. The Group uses pay fixed/
receive floating interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed rate
debt instruments.

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the
cumulative change in the fair value of a hedging
derivative is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as “Net trading income”. In addition,
the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as “Net trading
income”, and also recorded as part of the carrying value
of the hedged item in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at
amortised cost, the adjustment to carrying value is
amortised through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using
the effective interest rate method. Effective interest
rate amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment
exists and shall begin no later than when the hedged
item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged. If the hedged item
is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) Financial instruments (continued)

(xvii) Fair value measurement

(xviii)

If there is an active market for financial instruments, the
fair value of financial instruments is based on the prices
within the bid-ask spread that are most representative
of fair value in the circumstances, and without any
deduction for transaction costs that may occur on sales
or disposals. A quoted price is from an active market
where price information is readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, industry group or pricing
service agency and that price information represents
actual and regularly occurring orderly transactions.

If a quoted market price is not available, the fair
value of the financial instruments is estimated using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques applied
include the price used by market participants in an
orderly transaction, reference to the fair value of
another instrument that is substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models. The Group selects valuation techniques that
are commonly accepted by market participants for
pricing the instruments and these techniques have been
demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices
obtained in actual market transactions. Periodically, the
Group reviews the valuation techniques and tests them
for validity. Detail of fair value measurement is described
in Note 9.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position when the Group has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
the transactions are intended to be settled on a net
basis, or by realising the asset and settling the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(d)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are assets held by the Group for the conduct of
business and are expected to be used for more than one year.
Construction in progress is the property and equipment under
construction, which is transferred to fixed assets when ready
forits intended use.

(i)

Cost

Fixed assets are initially recognised at cost. The cost of
a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price,
related taxes, and any directly attributable expenditure
for bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use. The cost of a self-constructed fixed asset
comprises those expenditures necessarily incurred for
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use.

Where the individual components of an item of fixed
asset have different useful lives or provide benefits to
the Group in different patterns thus necessitating use
of different depreciation rates or methods, they are
recognised as separate fixed assets.

Subsequent costs, including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets, are recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if the recognition criteria
are satisfied, and the carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. Expenditures relating to ordinary
maintenance of fixed assets are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4 EREHBEE 2 4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmnuen)
(d BEEEE) (d) Fixed assets (continued)
(i) HE (i) Depreciation
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Depreciation is calculated to write-off to profit or loss
the cost of items of fixed assets, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives. Impaired fixed assets are
depreciated net of accumulated impairment losses. No
depreciation is provided on construction in progress.

The estimated useful lives of respective fixed assets are as

RN R - follows:

EEER Types of assets

I EAFR Estimated useful lives

- ZEREAREENHE LM —  leasehold land classified as Right-of-use asset
FIeRr1E & HR the unexpired term of lease

— BRYEREBREFELE
H9EE LM F)
I +FRRHEERAME 2 BEEE)

- HEDREE
+ R FBTE R ATE 2 RIBE )

- EARRE

=B RF

— FERRAEEENRE
HEH NF—F=+F

AERZEDRBEMEFE
HETEBEEMNBHERFR
MITE T EETER

(i) EE (iii)
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TR E A EREEE
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Buildings (over interests in leasehold land classified as
Right-of-use asset)

shorter of 50 years or according to the remaining
lease terms

- Leasehold improvements
shorter of 7 years or according to the remaining
lease terms

- Furniture and equipment
3-6 years

- Equipment classified as Right-of-use asset
period of lease term, ranging from 1 year to 10
years

The Group reviews the estimated useful life and the
depreciation method applied at least once a financial
year.

Disposal

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
a fixed asset are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the fixed asset and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(e)

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset.

As alessee

The Group previously classified leases as operating or finance
leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred
significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the underlying asset to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the
Group recognises “right-of-use assets” and “lease liabilities” for
most leases i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet.

The Group decided to apply recognition exemptions to
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of
the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
The depreciation policy of the Group's right-of-use assets is
described in Note 4(d)(ii). The Right-of-use assets are presented
within Note 34 and are subject to impairment in line with the
Group's policy as described in Note 4(h).
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(e)

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises
“lease liabilities” measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (less any lease incentives receivable),
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects exercising the option to terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

As alessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is
classified as a finance lease or operating lease with reference to
the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head
lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the on-
balance sheet recognition exemption, the Group classifies the
sublease as an operating lease.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES conmnuep)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Intangible
assets that have an indefinite estimated useful life are tested
for impairment annually. Intangible assets that have a finite
estimated useful life are carried at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment losses on intangible assets are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Note
4(h).

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group
may take possession of assets held as collateral through
court proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the
borrowers. Repossessed assets are recognised and reported
in "Other assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position when the Group intends to achieve an orderly
realisation of the impaired assets and the Group is no longer
seeking repayment from the borrower.

When the Group seizes assets to compensate for the losses of
loans and advances and interest receivable, the repossessed
assets are initially recognised at fair value, plus any taxes paid
for the seizure of the assets, litigation fees and other expenses
incurred for collecting the repossessed assets. Repossessed
assets are recognised at the carrying value, net of allowance
for impairment losses.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

(h)

Allowances for impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s ("CGU")
fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCOD") and its value in
use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices
for publicly traded companies or other available fair value
indicators. In addition, the Group also makes management
judgements in estimating the fair value which involve
significant unobservable inputs and were subject to substantial
uncertainty. If the actual fair value of such asset is lower than
management’s estimate, additional impairment charge would
be required.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. That reduction is recognised as an
impairment loss and charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, except for properties previously revalued with the
revaluation taken to OCl. For such properties, the impairment
is recognised in OCl up to the amount of any previous
revaluation.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

(h)

(i)

Allowances for impairment losses on non-financial assets
(continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss of
the non-financial assets/CGUs decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior periods.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and
compensations incurred by the Group in exchange for services
rendered by employees or the termination of the employment
relationship. Employee benefits are recognised as a liability in
the period in which the associated services are rendered by its
employees, with a corresponding increase in cost of relevant
assets or the expenses in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
of discount would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes under either recognised Occupational Retirement
Scheme (“ORSO") or Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
(“MPF") that are available to employees. A defined contribution
plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if
the funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in current or prior
periods.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

1)

(k)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position if, as the result of a past event, the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation that can be reliably
estimated and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. A provision
is initially measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the related present obligation. Factors
pertaining to a contingency such as the risks, uncertainties
and time value of money are taken into account as a whole
in reaching the best estimate. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the best estimate is determined by
discounting the related future cash outflows.

A potential obligation arising from a past transaction or
event whose existence can only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of future uncertain events;
or a present obligation that arises from past transactions or
events where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits is required to settle the obligation or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured reliably, is disclosed
as a contingent liability unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefit is remote.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. A financial instrument issued is an equity instrument
if, and only if, both conditions (i) and (i) below are met: (i) The
financial instrument includes no contractual obligation to
deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another
entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to
the Group; and (ii) If the financial instrument will or may be
settled in the Group’s own equity instruments, it is a non-
derivative instrument that includes no contractual obligations
for the Group to deliver a variable number of its own equity
instruments; or a derivative that will be settled only by the
Group exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the fair
value of proceeds received, net of direct issuance expenses.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

U]

Financial guarantees and loan commitments

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group as
the guarantor (the “issuer”) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the "holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs when a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

The fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees
received) is initially recognised as deferred income in “Other
liabilities” and subsequently measured at the higher of
the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. The deferred income is amortised in profit
or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. Provisions are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position if and when it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group under the guarantee, and the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the carrying amount
of the deferred income.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as
the amount of the loss allowance as described in Note 8(a)(xi).
The Group has not provided any commitment to provide loans
at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net in
cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts,
the loss allowance is recognised as a provision. However,
for contracts that include both a loan and an undrawn
commitment and the Group cannot separately identify
the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment
component from those on the loan component, the expected
credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent
that the combined expected credit losses exceed the gross
carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit losses are
recognised as a provision.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

(m)

Income recognition

The Group recognises revenue when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer. A customer obtains control
when it has the ability to direct the use of and obtain the
benefits from the good or service. The Group recognises
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The Group applies the following steps in its
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract; and

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation.

(i)  Interestincome
Interest income and expense for interest bearing
financial instruments are recognised in profit or loss using
the effective interest method. Interest income includes
the amortisation of any discount or premium or other
differences between the initial carrying amount of an
interest-bearing instrument and its amount at maturity
calculated on an effective interest basis. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the
financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial
instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired assets, the Group estimates future cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument, but not ECL. For purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated using estimated
future cash flows including ECL. The calculation of the
effective interest rate includes transaction costs and
fees and points paid or received that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

Income recognition (continued)

(i)

Interest income (continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
is the amount at which the financial asset or financial
liability is measured on initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any ECL
allowance.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for
ECL allowance.

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial
liability is calculated on initial recognition of a financial
asset or a financial liability. In calculating interest income
and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
The effective interest rate is revised as a result of periodic
re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate instruments
to reflect movements in market rates of interest. The
effective interest rate is also revised for fair value hedge
adjustments at the date amortisation of the hedge
adjustment begins.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of
interest income reverts to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income does
not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the
asset improves.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

(m)

Income recognition (continued)

(ii)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income is earned from a diverse
range of services provided by the Group to its customers
and is recognised as the related services are performed.

The performance obligations, as well as the timing of
their satisfaction, are identified, and determined, at the
inception of the contract. When the Group provides a
service to its customers, consideration is invoiced and
generally due immediately upon satisfaction of a service
provided at a point in time or at the end of the contract
period for a service provided over time.

The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls
the services before transferring them to the customers.

- Fee and commission income from providing services
where performance obligations are satisfied over time

Performance obligations satisfied over time include
asset management, custody and other services,
where the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs. These include
fee and commission income from services where
performance obligations are satisfied over time
including asset management fee, credit facilities
fees, loan syndication fees and custody fees.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

(m)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Income recognition (continued)

Fees and commission income (continued)

- Fee and commission income from providing services
where performance obligations are satisfied at a
pointin time

Services provided where the Group's performance
obligations are satisfied at a point in time are
recognised once control of the services is
transferred to the customer. This is typically on
completion of the underlying transaction or
service or, for fees or components of fees that are
linked to a certain performance, after fulfilling the
corresponding performance criteria. These include
fees and commissions arising from investment
services, securities and insurance brokerage
services, credit card service, remittance, settlement,
loan syndication fees and account management
fees.

Finance income from finance leases and hire purchase
contracts

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire
purchase payments is recognised as interest income
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals receivable are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted equity investments
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on the date when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from a listed
equity investment is recognised when the share price of
the investment goes ex-dividend.

Dividends on equity instruments designated at FVOCI
that clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment are presented in OCl.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

(n)

Income tax

Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of each reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax also arises from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised.

Current income tax and movements in deferred tax balances
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in OCl or directly in equity, respectively.

At the end of each reporting period, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled according to the requirements of tax laws.
The Group also considers the possibility of realisation and the
settlement of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in
the calculation.

Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the
Group has the legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity. Otherwise, the
balances of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset.
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

(o)

(p)

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Related parties

If the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to control,
jointly control or exercise significant influence over another
party, or vice versa, or where the Group and one or more
parties are subject to common control or joint control from
another party, they are considered to be related parties.
Related parties may be individuals or enterprises.

The Group's related parties include but are not limited to the
following:

(i) The Bank's immediate and ultimate parent companies;
(i) The Bank's subsidiaries;

(i)  Other entities which are controlled by the Bank’s
immediate and ultimate parent companies;

(iv)  Aninvestor who has joint control over the Group;

(v)  An investor who can exercise significant influence over
the Group;

(vi)  Associates of the Group;

(vii)  Entities under joint arrangement with the Group;
(viii) Principal individual investors of the Group, and close
family members of such individuals (principal individual
investors are the individual investors who have the

power, directly or indirectly, to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party);
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4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

(p)

(q)

Related parties (continued)

(ix)  Key management personnel of the Group and close
family members of such individuals (key management
personnel represent those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any
director of that entity);

(x)  Key management personnel of the Group's parents and
close family members of such individuals;

(xi)  Other entities that are controlled or jointly controlled
by the Group's principal individual investors, key
management personnel, or close family members of
such individuals;

(xii) A post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group; and

(xiii) Other entities, or any member of a Group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel services to

the Group or the Group's immediate and ultimate parent

companies.

Operating segments

The identification of operating segments of the Group is on
the basis of internal reports that are regularly reviewed by
the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors in order to
allocate resources to the segment and assess its performance.
On the basis of the operating segments, the Group identifies
the reportable segments, using a combination of factors
including products and services, geographical areas, regulatory
environments etc., which the management has chosen for
organisation. The operating segments that meet the specified
criteria have been aggregated, and the operating segments
that meet quantitative thresholds have been reported
separately.

The amount reported for each operating segment item is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision makers
for the purposes of allocating resources to the segment and
assessing its performance. Segment information is prepared in
conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The application of the below amendments does not have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

(@) Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current”

The amendments to HKAS 1 specify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments clarify:

- What is meant by a right to defer settlement;

- That a right to defer must exist at the end of the
reporting period;

- That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an
entity will exercise its deferral right; and

- That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible
liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of
a liability not impact its classification.

(b) Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants”

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan agreement, only these with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect
the classification of that liability as current or non-current.
The amendments also require additional disclosures are
required for non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period.

(c)  Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 “Supplier Finance
Arrangements”

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the characteristics
of supplier finance arrangements and require additional
disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure requirements
in the amendments are intended to assist users of financial
statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure
to liquidity risk. Earlier application of the amendments is
permitted. The amendments provide certain transition reliefs
regarding comparative information, quantitative information
as at the beginning of the annual reporting period and interim
disclosures.
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5 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(d) Amendments to HKFRS 16 “Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback”

Amendments to HKFRS 16 add subsequent measurement
requirements for a sale and leaseback transaction, where the
transfer of the asset satisfies the requirements in HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers to be accounted for as
asale.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Areas susceptible to changes in essential estimates
and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, are set out below. The effects of changes to either the key
assumptions or other estimation uncertainties are presented below
if it is practicable to determine. It is possible that actual results may
require material adjustments to the estimates referred to below.

(@) Measurement of ECL allowances for financial assets

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowances for
financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI is an
area that requires the use of complex models and significant
assumptions, as the credit risk exposure varies with changes in
future economic and market conditions, credit behavior (e.g.,
the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses),
expected cash flows and the passage of time. The assessment
of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations
as to the likelihood of defaults occurring, of the associated loss
ratios and of default correlations between counterparties.
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6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (conmivuen)

(a)

Measurement of ECL allowances for financial assets
(continued)

The Group measures credit risk using PD, EAD and LGD. This
is similar to the approach used for the purposes of measuring
expected credit losses under HKFRS 9. Explanation of the
inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used in
measuring ECL is further detailed in Note 8(a), which also sets
out key sensitivities of the ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in
applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such
as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of
forward-looking scenarios for each type of product/
market and the associated ECL; and

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the
purposes of measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates
made by the Group in the above areas to ECL measurement is
set out in Note 8(a)(x).
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6 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (conmivuen)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and unused tax
credits are recognised and the determination of the amount
to be recognised requires significant management judgement.
Deferred tax asset on unused tax losses are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits. For deferred tax assets on unused tax credits,
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the estimation
of available tax credits and the possibility to recover such
deferred tax assets recognised.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal market at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial
position cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using a variety of valuation techniques that
include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing
fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations
of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit
risk of the counterparty, funding value adjustments, correlation
and volatility.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED THAT ARE RELEVANT TO THE
GROUP BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
and HKASs that have been issued that are relevant to the Group
but are not yet effective, in preparing these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture, which effective date is to be determined.

Amendments to HKAS 21
Lack of Exchangeability, which effective for annual period beginning
on or after January 1, 2025.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments, which effective for annual period beginning on or after
January 1, 2026.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards -
Volume 11

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7
for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2026.

HKFRS 18
Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements, which effective
for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2027.

HKFRS 19
Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures, which
effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2027.

None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED THAT ARE RELEVANT TO THE
GROUP BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (conminuep)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”
and HKAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKAS 21 “Lack of Exchangeability”

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess whether
a currency is exchangeable into another currency and how it
shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require disclosures of
information that enable users of financial statements to understand
the impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate comparative information. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

In August 2024, the HKICPA issued Amendments to HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”, effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2026. The amendments include clarifications on
how ESG-linked features could affect the assessment of contractual
cash flows, and introduction on an accounting policy option to
derecognise financial liabilities that are settled through an electronic
payment system before settlement date if specified criteria are
met. Further, the amendments provide clarification on the date on
which a financial asset or a financial liability is derecognized, and
the requirements for classifying financial assets with non-recourse
features and contractually linked instruments.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED THAT ARE RELEVANT TO THE
GROUP BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (conminuep)

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards -
Volume 11 “Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS
10 and HKAS 7 for annual period beginning on or after January
1,2026"

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11
set out amendments to HKFRS 1,HKFRS 7 (and the accompanying
Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7.
Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendments
have updated certain wordings in paragraph B38 of HKFRS
7 and paragraphs IG1, 1G14 and 1G20B of the Guidance on
implementing HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or
achieving consistency with other paragraphs in the standard
and/or with the concepts and terminology used in other
standards. In addition, the amendments clarify that the
Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7 does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced paragraphs of
HKFRS 7 nor does it create additional requirements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments clarify that
when a lessee has determined that a lease liability has been
extinguished in accordance with HKFRS 9, the lessee is
required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and recognise
any resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In addition, the
amendments have updated certain wordings in paragraph
5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A of HKFRS 9 to remove
potential confusion.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED THAT ARE RELEVANT TO THE
GROUP BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (conminuep)

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards -
Volume 11 “Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS
10 and HKAS 7 for annual period beginning on or after January
1, 2026" (continued)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The amendments
clarify that the relationship described in paragraph B74 of
HKFRS 10 is just one example of various relationships that
might exist between the investor and other parties acting as
de facto agents of the investor, which removes inconsistency
with the requirement in paragraph B73 of HKFRS 10.

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments replace the
term “cost method” with “at cost” in paragraph 37 of HKAS 7
following the prior deletion of the definition of “cost method".

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements”

In July 2024, the HKICPA issued HKFRS 18 “Presentation and
Disclosure in Financial Statements”, effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027. The new accounting
standard aims to give users of financial statements more transparent
and comparable information about a company’s financial
performance. It will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” but carries over many requirements from this HKAS
unchanged. In addition, there are three sets of new requirements
relating to the structure of the income statement, management
defined performance measures and the aggregation and
disaggregation of information.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED THAT ARE RELEVANT TO THE
GROUP BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (conminuep)

HKFRS 19 “Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:
Disclosures”

In July 2024, the HKICPA issued HKFRS 19 “Subsidiaries without
Public Accountability: Disclosures”, effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027. The new accounting
standard aims at simplifying financial reporting for eligible subsidiary
companies by allowing reduced disclosures.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group derives the majority of its revenue from managing risk
from customer transactions. Effectively assessing and managing
all types of risk is central to the success of the Group. Apart from
a prudent risk culture, the Group has established risk governance,
structure, risk management processes including policies and
procedures for the identification, measurement, control and
monitoring of credit, liquidity, operational, market and capital risks,
by means of which risk and return are evaluated with the goal of
producing sustainable revenue and reducing income volatilities.

RERLREST () RBRAT 2024555 (13—



mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

8 TRAEARERE 2 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

ATEERERBRZESHHT - &
BRETHREZEERSERBRE
EBEAKBZERERNREE AN
SEEBREENERL - AREZEE
B2 E e e B R IR of BR At & A0 i
REFEFEM TRESEEMAKHN
WTEZEQ(ESEET) MY TE
BAKRERAZHERE SEEET
wHEZBEe HEEREBEZES
TRHMREHFCERZES ¥
TEZEg HEETHEZE® A7
XBEEZES TEXKEEZE
g EAREELZE® FEZREEK
NIEEHREEZES  FEHATIER
BEMEBELsPI T E Gl EMBRM
BF WEBAEMKINEERE
AR - AR - DT - B RES
EE M5 RPpEER - EEREARX
EFREAR - AKEREEFRRE
BERINER - AEETS  Emk
ERJEERTANEL - REBERT
ABTEERETRERER - AR
AEEEXBFTARBEBRRNIEF 2R

—_
iE ©°

AEEHIETHRRMERF - AREH
EmMRGHHET - MITRES(ES
SET)CEEETH—ENEEZE
SRREMAFTEEHEZESRMAL
AR EMMRE - ZWEZEEH
RERERTEZREHENELE -
BEAHERNERARBENEMRE
& o b BT MR AR IO HE R EE B IR
BAl > REEYIHERNE AR - X E
Mo s B AR G - AR A E
an A ARFS BT S K LR o

BEAN - REBEGIETLE2LEEZE
MBRMIEF  LWBEERRETEE
HEEIF - ZVEZESTZE/MA
TERTMEERBRANL2LEENR
RMENLZEEETHBE ERE
R AEEREREL2EEETRESE
MERERBEREBSIESR  YE(EE
HITEE -

D 18

The Board of Directors of the Bank, with the assistance of the
Risk Committee, provides effective oversight over the affairs of
the Group, the governance framework and practices through
delegation of authority to the functional committees and the senior
management. The Risk Committee regularly reviews the Group's
Risk Appetite Statement and recommend for the Board’s approval.
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for overseeing all lines of
businesses within the Group, supported by the Executive Committee
of the Board of Directors comprising the senior management
members. In addition, led by the senior management members, the
functional committees including the Asset and Liability Committee
("ALCQO"), Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion Committee, Safety
Production Committee, Accountability Committee, Corporate
Banking Committee, Retail Banking Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Credit Committee and Internal Control, Compliance &
Operations Committee approve policies and procedures formulated
by various working committees and functional management to
identify, analyse, manage and control credit risk, market risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk and capital risks through the use of reliable and
up-to-date management and information systems. Policies and
procedures are updated on an ongoing basis to reflect changes
in markets, products and industry best practices. The internal
auditors also perform risk-based audits to ensure the soundness
of governance and compliance with the relevant policies and
procedures.

The Group has established policies and procedures to govern the
launch of new products and services. A functional committee,
the Product Innovation and Approval Committee, is delegated by
the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors to review and
approve new product and service. Comprising of management
members from key functional areas, the functional committee
convenes meetings to assess and discuss product proposals of the
Group. This aims to ensure that risks are properly identified and
effective control measures are in place to mitigate any risks involved
prior to the roll-out of any new products or services.

In addition, the Group also has established policies and procedures
for the Safety Production Committee to lead the safety production
of the Bank. The function committee convenes meetings to mainly
implements decision-making and safety production policy policies
for safety production, laws and regulations, which to ensure the
safety production management, operational procedures and
emergency plans are in place.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations. Credit risk exists
in the Group’s loans, leases, credit cards, trade finance and
treasury transactions. There is also credit risk in off-balance
sheet financial arrangements such as loan commitments,
trade-related contingencies and transaction-related
contingencies. The Group has appointed the intermediate
holding company, China Construction Bank Corporation
("CCBC"), as its credit adviser. Risk Management Division is
responsible for providing centralised management and control
of different types of risks including credit risk, whereas Credit
Division is responsible for handling credit approval matters.
Both divisions are independent of the business units, and
supervised by the Deputy Chief Executive overseeing Risk
Management. In addition, functional committees, namely
Risk Management Committee and Credit Committee are set
up under the Executive Committee and the Risk Committee
to provide guidance in the respective risk areas. The Risk
Management Committee is a central forum for overseeing
the Group's overall asset quality as well as resolving all the
important risk or governance issues on credit risk, operational
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, strategic risk,
reputation risk and climate risk. It is chaired by the Deputy
Chief Executive overseeing Risk Management, and the other
members are the Head of Risk Management Division, the
Head of Credit Division, the Head of Legal and Compliance
Division, the Head of Finance Division, the Deputy Head of Risk
Management Division. The Credit Committee is responsible for
loan quality maintenance, authority delegation, credit related
policy-making and maintenance, credit approval and credit risk
management issues. It is chaired by the Deputy Chief Executive
overseeing Risk Management, and the other members are the
Head of Risk Management Division, Head of Credit Division,
Deputy Head of Risk Management Division, Deputy Head of
Credit Division, Chief Approver and designated individual
credit approver(s).
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group will be continuously monitoring the development
of the external economy environment and actively managing
the credit risks under extreme economic hardship. At present,
the external business environment has a high degree of
uncertainty given the complicated geopolitical conflicts
among the countries, the economic recovery in short term
is challenging. The Group will regularly update the credit risk
assessment indicators and economic scenarios, and will be
continuously monitoring and managing to the potential credit
risk. Nevertheless, the Group’s asset quality still maintained
stable by continuing to uphold the stringent credit acceptance
criteria and prudent credit monitoring & control measures
to protect the Group's exposure. This was also supported by
regular and ad hoc portfolio review with a forward looking
approach to early detect any weaknesses in the portfolio
or warning signals to strengthen the overall credit risk
management.

Overall, credit risks of the Group are managed through the
following processes:

- Ensuring the Group's risk profile is in line with the risk
appetite and strategies set by the Group;

- Establishing credit policies and procedures of the
Group and issuing lending and monitoring guidelines
to credit officers and business units. Credit policies
and procedures are constantly revisited and updated
whenever warranted to accommodate portfolio
development, market changes and regulatory
requirements;

- Making appropriate lending authority delegation via the
Credit Committee according to the risk, size and nature
of the transactions;

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

Maintaining the internal risk rating system for
measurement of credit risk exposures. The Group adopts
a two dimensional risk rating methodology for the
corporate portfolio, for which risk ratings are assigned to
the obligor and facility separately. This system provides
granularity in the rating scale and hence more refined
risk differentiation for better risk and reward analysis and
enhanced risk quantification. For a certain part of the
consumer portfolio, in-house scoring models are also
adopted to measure the credit risk involved,;

Monitoring and controlling large exposures, connected
lending, product and industry concentration based on
established policies and internal risk limits to ensure
prudent credit decisions are made and that the Group
complies with statutory requirements and supervisory
guidelines;

Monitoring criticised loans and managing recoveries
of problem assets. Collection and problem asset
management are separately handled by specialised
teams with the relevant experience and expert
knowledge;

Assessing ECL allowances regularly to ensure the
adequacy of impairment allowances;

Managing and monitoring the Group's loan quality;

Supervising the stress-testing programme to provide a
forward-looking assessment of the Group’'s risk exposures
under stressed conditions, and enable the Group to
project tail risks on a bank-wide basis, to quantify such
potential losses and the impact on the Group in terms of
profitability, liquidity and capital adequacy; and

Co-ordinating and driving credit related initiatives
throughout the Group to ensure compliance with
regulatory requirements.

PERRIRT(EH) BEERAT 2020558 (39—
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Credit risk for advances

In addition to underwriting standards, the Group
manages credit risks through an effective and
prudent credit approval process. In making credit
recommendations and decisions, only officers with
appropriate banking experience and product knowledge
are delegated with credit approval authorities. There is a
regular portfolio review process to ensure quality of the
credit decisions made, to identify negative trends which
need attention or actions, and to ensure adherence to
existing policies and procedures.

In the approval process, the credit officers assess
the purpose and structure of the loan, the ability
of a particular borrower or counterparty to service
the proposed facilities, as well as the nature of the
underlying collateral where applicable. Credit approval
guidelines are issued from time to time to enhance the
credit acceptance process as appropriate.

The Group categorises its loans and leases into either
consumer or corporate and commercial credits and
monitors their risks separately as discussed below:

- Consumer credits are grouped by products and
their risk attributes for purposes of evaluating
credit risk, and on-going monitoring of asset
quality. Standard credit underwriting criteria
are established and exceptional approvals for
deviations from such criteria are required and
monitored; and
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk for advances (continued)

- Corporate and commercial credits are
evaluated for customers’ default risk, taking into
consideration the related credit enhancements.
To support the credit assessment, internal risk
ratings will be assigned to customers. These risk
ratings are monitored regularly and updated upon
any changes in the borrower’s or counterparty’s
financial position, repayment ability and the
related credit enhancements.

Credit risk for treasury transactions

The credit risk of the Group’s investment in debt
securities and treasury hedging transactions is managed
by the use of both internal and external credit ratings
and credit limits set on individual counterparties.
Internal and external credit ratings, and news on each
counterparty are closely tracked and monitored.

Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit
risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
These transactions are therefore subject to the same
credit approval, portfolio maintenance and collateral
requirements as for customers applying for loans.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group obtains collateral in respect of loans advanced
to mitigate the credit risk of the transactions and has
established policies and guidelines on the eligibility and
valuation of collateral and other credit enhancements.
However, the approval of credits will be based on the
assessment of debt servicing ability rather than solely
dependent on collateral or other credit enhancements.
The main collateral types and credit enhancements
include charges over properties, standby letters of credit
issued by banks, securities, deposits, account receivables
and guarantees.
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8 TRAEARERE 2 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(@) FERMKE) (@) Credit risk (continued)
(v) EEE+H (v) Risk concentration

AREBEHIETRNBEZR - (@
ARZEF - 175R - KENR
BOE A HE R R A A 2
f‘tﬁﬁ - DA R R B E S

(i) EEHELZHEF (vi) Credit review and audit

REE 7 NIPEFBPILEE The internal auditors conduct periodic reviews and
BEHeBEERERERIERF independent audits of the Group’s credit portfolio and
ETTHRBUES - BAY credit risk management process. The purpose is to
EERAEBFEATHE ensure due compliance with established credit policies
BHBENER > mBENE and procedures, and to evaluate the effectiveness of the
BERRRFMES TSI G credit management process and control mechanism. The
BEHTT - EERERSME results of these reviews and audits are regularly reported
SAREeWwE  UMEEHBW to the Audit Committee at the Board of Directors level
BESR o for effective oversight and monitoring.

The Group sets various risk limits to control exposure
to countries, individual counterparties, industries,
intragroup exposures and loan portfolios to avoid
excessive risk concentration.

(vii) RAREBEEE

(vii) Maximum exposures

2024 2023
REBMBMRRRAEE Credit risk exposures relating to
EENEERRBENT : assets in consolidated statement
of financial position by class are as
follows:
B MERITR Cash and balances with banks and
R RIRITH AT central banks 34,863,923 46,954,109
FHER1TFR Placements with banks 37,534,839 40,632,740
POIEHHE AN Financial assets held under reverse
TREE repurchase agreements - 2,023,967
RITER Advances to banks 7,305,833 265,597
XEERRESRE Advances to customers and trade
bills 275,688,645 259,717,847
BAREEF=EEEE Financial assets measured at fair
SPAEBGRTmEE value through profit or loss 4,037,977 1,906,328
BARBEIFEEHEEE  Financial assets measured at fair
FFAEMEE K ER value through other
TREE—BEHFKRE comprehensive income
— debt investments 144,469,080 128,475,747
IRE#GK AT 2N EAM Other assets measured at amortised
BE cost 722,500 1,576,306
PTEER T A Derivative financial instruments 8,024,916 1,971,341
Hi&EE Other assets 3,615,584 4,079,683
GEBBMRRRIEER  Credit risk exposures relating to
ZEREIMT : items notincluded in
consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:
BT ER Financial guarantees 4,402,526 4513376
BREREREMEE Loan commitments and other credit
TR EE related commitments 90,969,412 86,715,070
611,635,235 578,832,111
4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o
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8 RAEARERE 2 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a) EERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)
(vii) RAEFEAIE(E)

(vii) Maximum exposures (continued)
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The above table shows the maximum credit risk
exposure to the Group as at December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, without taking account of any
collateral held, master netting agreements or other
credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet
assets, the exposures set out above are based on net
carrying amounts. For letters of guarantee issued, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum
amount that the Group could be required to pay if the
guarantees are called upon. For loan commitments and
other credit related liabilities that are irrevocable over
the life of the respective facilities or revocable in the
event of a significant adverse change, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is disclosed as the full amount of
the committed facilities sought on these balances.

The table below describes the nature of collateral held
and their financial effect by class of financial asset:

Cash and balances with banks and central banks and
placements with banks

These exposures are generally considered to be low
risk due to the nature of the counterparties. Collateral is
generally not sought on these balances.

Financial assets held under reverse repurchase
agreements

These exposures represented secured lending with
collaterals of debt securities.

Advances to banks

These exposures are generally considered to be low
risk due to the nature of the counterparties. Collateral is
generally not sought on these balances.
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8 TRAEARERE 2 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a) EERRE) (a)
(vii) BAEfRAE(E)

Credit risk (continued)

(vii) Maximum exposures (continued)
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The table below describes the nature of collateral held
and their financial effect by class of financial asset:
(continued)

Advances to customers and trade bills

These exposures are secured, partially secured or
unsecured depending on the type of customers and the
products offered to them. Types of collaterals include
residential properties, other properties, standby letters of
credit acceptable to the Group and bank deposits, etc.
Other credit enhancements mainly represent recognised
guarantee. Analysis of gross advances to banks, advances
to customers and trade bills covered by collateral is
listed in Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
Note 1.

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss

The fair values of these securities have reflected the
credit risk. No collateral is sought directly from the issuer
or the counterparty.

Financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

The fair values of these securities have reflected the
credit risk. No collateral is sought directly from the issuer
or the counterparty.

Other assets measured at amortised cost

The amortised costs of these securities have reflected the
credit risk. No collateral is sought directly from the issuer
or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Master netting agreements are typically used to enable
the effects of derivative assets and liabilities with the
same counterparty to be offset if both the Group and the
counterparty elect to settle on a net basis or in the event
of default of either party.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a)
(vii)

(viii)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposures (continued)

The table below describes the nature of collateral held
and their financial effect by class of financial asset:
(continued)

Contingent liabilities and commitments

The components and nature of contingent liabilities
and commitments are disclosed in Note 48. Regarding
the commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case the credit
quality of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these
commitments do not expose the Group to significant
credit risk. The exposure on commitments that are not
unconditionally cancellable including letter of credit,
letter of guarantee issued and other loan commitments
and credit related liabilities are secured, partially secured
or unsecured depending on the type of customers and
the products offered to them.

Collateral and other credit enhancements held against
financial assets
Advances to banks, advances to customers and trade bills

As at December 31, 2024, the estimated fair value of the
collateral and other credit enhancements held against
lifetime ECL credit-impaired advances to banks, advances
to customers and trade bills is $359 million (2023: $210
million).

Collateral mainly includes residential properties,
commercial and industrial properties and debt securities.

RERLIRIET () RBRAT 2024555 (14—
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

(viii) Collateral and other credit enhancements held against

(ix)

(x)
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financial assets (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

The International Swaps and Derivatives Association
("ISDA") Master Agreement is our preferred agreement
for documenting derivatives activity. It provides the
contractual framework within which dealing activity
across a full range of over-the-counter (“OTC") products is
conducted, and contractually binds both parties to apply
close-out netting across all outstanding transactions
covered by an agreement if either party defaults or
another pre-agreed termination event occurs. It is
common, and the Group's preferred practice, for the
parties to execute a Credit Support Annex (“CSA") in
conjunction with the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a
CSA, collateral is passed between the parties to mitigate
the counterparty risk inherent in outstanding positions.
The majority of our CSAs are with financial institutional
clients.

Repossession of collateral
As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there
was no repossession of collateral.

Expected credit loss measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment
based on changes in credit quality since initial
recognition and summarised as below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on
initial recognition is classified under Stage 1 and has
its credit risk continuously monitored by the Group. If
a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”") since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is
moved to Stage 2 but is not yet deemed to be credit-
impaired. If the financial instrument is credit-impaired,
the financial instrument is then moved to Stage 3.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(x)

Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured
at the amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that result from possible default events
within the next 12 months. Instruments in Stage 2 or
3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit
losses on a lifetime basis. A key and fundamental
concept in measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9 is
that forward looking information should be considered.
Separately, for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, since those financial assets are credit-
impaired on initial recognition, their ECL is always
measured on a lifetime basis.

The financial instruments are measured internally by
their internal credit ratings ranging from 1 to 19 based
on the borrowers’ repayment ability and likelihood of
individual counterparties being default. Then, as part of
internal key management reporting, the Group maps
the internal credit ratings by their credit quality at Stage
1 (Normal), Stage 2 (Special-mentioned), Stage 3 (Sub-
standard, Doubtful and Loss) respectively.

(1) Significant increase in credit risk ("SICR”)

When determining whether the risk of default on
a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analyses, which is based on the
Group’s historical experience, expert judgement
and forward-looking information.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

(x)
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Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (“SICR") (continued)

The Group uses below criteria for determining
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk:

- Notch downgrade;
- Special Mention;
- Qualitative indicators;

- Non-retail customers using internal
scorecard models with Internal Rating result
of 15 or below;

- Early warning customers for non-retail loan
customers with significant or moderate
credit risk deterioration;

- With overdue payment for non-retail loans;
and

- 30 days past due for retail loans.

For notch downgrade, the objective of the
assessment is to identify whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure
by comparing the credit ratings of corresponding
obligor between two dates, i.e. the reporting date
and the initial recognition date of the exposure
(“Notch Difference”).

The Notch Difference is re-estimated for each
obligor at the reporting date, whenever it exceeds
the relative notch difference threshold, SICR is
identified. The average notch downgraded of each
obligor to be identified as SICR is 5 notches.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (“SICR") (continued)

Qualitative Indicators

If the borrower is on the watch list and meets one
or more of following criteria:

- Significant increase in credit spread;

- Significant adverse change in business,
financial and/or economic conditions in
which the borrower operates;

- Actual or expected significant adverse
change in operating results of the borrower;
and/or

- Early signs of liquidity problems such as
delay in servicing of trade creditors/loans.

The assessment of SICR is performed on an annual
basis at a portfolio level for all financial instruments
held by the Group. In relation to wholesale
financial instruments, where a watch list is used to
monitor credit risk, this assessment is performed
at the counterparty level on a periodic basis. The
criteria used to identify SICR are monitored and
reviewed on an annual basis.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

(x)
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Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (“SICR") (continued)

Quantitative Indicators

A financial instrument is considered to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk if
the borrower is more than 30 days past due on
the contractual payments. For the year ended
December 31, 2024, the respective indicator for
non-retail exposures was adjusted to 1 day past
due to reflect a tightening measure on credit risk.
When the respective overdue payments of the
non-retail loan gets repaid (i.e., day past due is
reset to 0), a 180-day observation period is required
for potential upgrade consideration.

The Group did not use the low credit risk
exemption for any financial instruments in the
years ended December 31, 2024 and December
31,2023.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

(x)

Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in
default and credit-impaired, when it meets one or
more of the following criteria:

- Borrower is more than 90 days past due on
its contractual payments;

- Significant financial difficulty of the borrower
orissuer;

- A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- The Group, for economic or legal reasons
and in relation to the borrower’s or issuer’s
financial difficulty, granting to the borrower
a concession that the Group would not
otherwise consider;

- Restructure of the borrowing terms as
a result of deterioration of the financial
position;

- It becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- Significant decrease in market value of
the collateral and the repayment ability of
borrowers are in doubt;

RERLRIEAT () RBRAT 2024555 (14—
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8 STHREMREE s 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmnvuen)

(a) EERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) FBEEHE,E(E) (x)  Expected credit loss measurement (continued)
(2) ZBHRREZFLEHR (2)  Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

EEEREZ (&) (continued)

- FHEBAZLES Disappearance of an active market for
RN BEE - Z financial assets because of significant
SMEEEELKE financial event of borrowers;
Tin B EEITE
B 5

— FAEENEER Observable data indicating that there is
TREZEEHIARK a measurable decrease in the estimated
ReEREBET future cash flows from a group of financial
HERRVERE assets since the initial recognition of those
EREDIBMN - assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
B i = B8, 2 identified with the individual financial assets
N E A B REAE & in the Group, including adverse changes
AR - E in the payment status of borrowers in the
AR AR Group, an increase in the unemployment
WARNEL - BT rate in the geographical area of the
FERREE borrowers, a decrease in property prices
Tt AEEEE in the relevant area, or adverse changes in
B Tk industry conditions that affect the borrowers
SUHY R &) in the Group;

— BB AZHETH Significant changes in the technological,

2P B B A

e S
fit ~ mH -~ L8

market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the borrower or

YERRIREE issuer;
£ B8R AHE
it ;

- BEMNARE®E A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
BAEBBESNIEY value of an investment below its cost; and/or
B 8 M T &
LA B 70 Bk AR
B &%

- HEMEHEIEX Other objective evidence indicating there is
AZeMEED an impairment of the financial asset.

HIR R E 1B
ML e
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

)

3)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets
(continued)

The criteria above have been applied to all
financial instruments held by the Group and are
consistent with the definition of default used for
internal credit risk management purposes. The
default definition has been applied consistently
to model the PD, EAD and LGD throughout the
Group's expected loss calculations.

Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions
and estimation techniques

The ECL allowance is measured on either a
12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether
a significant increase in credit risk has occurred
since initial recognition or whether an asset is
considered to be credit-impaired. The Group will
account for expected credit losses within the next
12 months as Stage 1 and to recognise lifetime
expected credit losses as Stage 2 when there has
been a SICR since initial recognition. Lifetime ECL
will be also recognised for credit-impaired financial
instruments as Stage 3. ECL are the discounted
product of the PD, EAD and LGD, defined as
follows:

PERIRIRT(EH) BEARAT 2020558 (5)——
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

(x)

4@ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

3)

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions
and estimation techniques (continued)

The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower
defaulting on its financial obligation.

EAD is based on the amounts the Group expected
to be owed at the time of default.

LGD represents the Group's expectation of the
extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies
by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim
and availability of collateral or other credit support.
LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of
EAD.

The 12-month ECL is determined by projecting
the PD, LGD and EAD for each individual exposure
or collective segment. These three components
are multiplied together. This effectively calculates
an ECL for the coming 12-months, which is
then discounted back to the reporting date. The
discount rate used in ECL calculation is the original
effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.
The lifetime ECL is developed by summing all ECL
throughout the expected lifetime of the financial
instruments. The expected lifetime is determined
by historical data for revolving products or actual
remaining tenor for instalment products.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

3)

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions
and estimation techniques (continued)

For revolving products, the exposure at default is
predicted by taking current drawn balance and
adding a “credit conversion factor” or “utilisation
rate”, which allows for the expected drawdown of
the remaining limit by the time of default. These
assumptions vary by product type and are based
on analysis of the Group’s historical default data.

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined
based on the factors which impact the recoveries
made post default. These vary by product type.

- For secured products, this is primarily based
on collateral type and projected collateral
values, historical discounts to market/
book value due to forced sales, time to
repossession and recovery costs observed;
and
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8 STHREMREE s 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)
(a) EERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) FBEEHE,E(E) (x)  Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

(3) FERREHEL— (3)  Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions
HR2H BRREE and estimation techniques (continued)
e85 (&)

— HRIIEZERE ~  For unsecured products, LGDs are typically
C BRI E set at product level due to the limited
{ﬁ UNERE: differentiation in recoveries achieved
BMERAR AT across different borrowers. These LGDs are
NAEBEBEE influenced by collection strategies, including
EREEETE contracted debt sales and price.
RBERE - ZE
BRI X E|[E
W E -
Lt e R
EEREETE
REEBRE -
KEBAEMGE T @ Forward-looking economic information is also
A RE @7 EBRTER included in determining the 12-month ECL and
EREKLFCDZER lifetime ECL. These assumptions vary by product
EMEEEE - I type.
EEEmBER B
NEE

4) FEHIEHELELH (4)  Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL
BIFRIFIE & A models
BHEABANETE The calculation of ECL incorporates forward-
B HIEEES - K looking information. The Group has performed

53 8 ¥ F  EUE historical analysis and identified the key economic
DT EBBIH R E fi.”% variables impacting credit risk and expected credit
BEEHAGNEER losses for each portfolio.

?EEWZ%TE%E'JE

RIE IR
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

)

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL
models (continued)

These economic variables and their associated
impact on the PD and LGD vary by financial
instrument. Expert judgment has also been applied
in this process. Forecasts of these economic
variables (the “base economic scenario”) are
provided by the external economic data provider
on a monthly basis and provide the best estimate
view of the economy over next five years. After
five years, to project the economic variables out
of the full remaining lifetime of each instrument,
a static approach has been used. The impact of
these economic variables on the PD, EAD and LGD
has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the impact of
these variables have had historically on default
rates and on the components of LGD and EAD.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

(x)
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Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

)

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL
models (continued)

In addition to the base economic scenario, the
Group adopts other possible scenarios, upside
and downside economic scenarios, along with
scenario weightings. The scenario weightings
are determined by a combination of statistical
analysis and expert judgement, taking account of
the range of possible outcomes of each chosen
scenario. The assessment of SICR is performed
using the Notch Difference based on qualitative
and quantitative indicators. This determines
whether a financial instrument is in Stage 1, Stage
2 or Stage 3 and hence whether 12-month ECL
or lifetime ECL should be recorded. After such
assessment, the Group measures ECL as either a
probability weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1) or a
probability weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3).
These probability-weighted ECLs are determined
by running each scenario through the relevant ECL
model and multiplying the resulted ECL by the
appropriate scenario weighting.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

)

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL
models (continued)

The Group regularly reviews the scenarios used for
calculating ECL to reflect changes in the economic
outlook and other factors that may influence
the credit environment. With the downturn
of mainland real estate industry, the Hong
Kong economy has been greatly impacted. An
alternative bad scenario is included in addition to
the base, upside and downside scenarios to better
reflect the extreme downside economic situation
as most of the macroeconomic factors has been
breaking the worst records in history.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the
average weight of upside, base, downside and
alternative bad scenarios are 0.05, 0.71, 0.15 and
0.09 (2023:0.03,0.63,0.24 and 0.10).
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8 STHREMREE s 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)
(a) EERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)
(x) FBHIEHBELTEE) (x)  Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

(4) FEHIEHELELH (4)  Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL
B 1 a9 5T E 1 & A models (continued)
(%)
KOEIEIR R R ER Economic variable assumptions
R2024F 12318 R The most significant period-end assumptions of
2023 12H318 ' B these economic factors used for the ECL estimate
AL E{= A&k as at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023
B 2 R = A HE are set out below. The variables are the average of
KBHJRWTE o AT probability weighted values between Years 2025~
HF DRI E2025FF 2029 and between Years 2024-2028 respectively:
20294 2 F Je 2024 5
F2028F Z W X
IR F9ME -

2024 2023

EBEEAEBEERR Hong Kong GDP Growth Rate +2.57% +3.17%
EBEEMEBIRIEE  Hong Kong Residential Property Price Index +0.58% +1.32%
EBKER Hong Kong Unemployment Rate 3.93% 433%
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)
(4)  Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL

models (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

BEREEYMEERIE The Hong Kong Residential Property Price Index
BETEEHEAIE has been identified as the significant economic
KHMEBEBEMEE variables affecting ECL and the sensitivity of this
x HEBRES>MN economic factor has been demonstrated as below:
T
FEHEREXEESEN
#gm, R
Increase/(decrease)
in ECL allowances amount
2024 2023
EEEH House price index
TB&E10% Decrease by 10% 49,323 35,777
EF10% Increase by 10% (45,136) (33,018)

BT N T E N
TRERNEEBERH

Sensitivity analysis for probability weighted
average for Good, Bad, Alternative Bad and Base

BEE ¥ E & Scenarios:
RREDHT
LEMERBRLER
BEHBESL
% change in ECL allowances
2024 2023
BEmEFHEZ Probability Weighted Average
BB DT Sensitivity
BEARZEIS SR Shifting 5% probability from Base
Heh 5053 Scenario to Good Scenario
EIREER -1.62% -0.66%
BEARZEIS SR Shifting 5% probability from Base
Heh 5053 Scenario to Bad Scenario
TTREES +2.67% +2.89%
BEARZEIS SR Shifting 5% probability from Base
Heh 5053 Scenario to Alternative Bad
Em T ITRBER Scenario +7.47% +5.38%
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

Credit risk (continued)

(x) Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

()

Grouping of instruments for losses measured on a
collective basis

For expected credit loss provisions modelled
on a collective basis, a grouping of exposures
is performed on the basis of shared risk
characteristics, such that risk exposures within
a group are considered homogeneous. In
performing this grouping, there must be sufficient
information for the Group to achieve statistical
credibility. Where sufficient information is not
available internally, the Group has considered
benchmarking internal/external supplementary
data for modelling purposes. The characteristics
and any supplementary data used to determine
groupings are outlined below:

Retail — Groupings for collective measurement
Credit rating Band/day past due

Product type (e.g. residential mortgage, overdraft,
credit card loan)

Wholesale — Groupings for collective measurement
Credit rating band
Customer type & product type

The following exposures are assessed individually:

Retail
Stage 3 loans — Credit-impaired or repossession

Wholesale
Stage 3 facilities — Credit-impaired or repossession

The appropriateness of grouping is monitored
and reviewed on periodic basis by the Risk
Management Division.
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(BRAFRIEERASN -

LAB RS FITH7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuen)

EERkEEZ) (@) Credit risk (continued)

(xi) FEF(EEBHBEHREER) (xi) Distribution of financial instruments to which the
FORHEERWE@MT impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied, by
B BEEEZ(REMNT credit quality (in accordance with Note 8(a)(x)) and by
8(a)(x)) R ZEE 27 - staging:

BHSE/ 4508
(Gross carrying/notional amount
BHER
i B e [f: B% BE  BKER FE
Special Sub- ECL Net
R20245128318 As at December 31,2024 Normal  mentioned standard Doubtful Loss Total allowances amount
DR On balance sheet:
RESRARAENEN  Placements with banks at
BONERFAER  amoriedcost
SRR -sage | 3 S3A7 - - - - AISBAN (518 37534899
BAER-5EE  Adwncestobanks-stage | 1321376 - - - ST (1554 7305833
RRRNIHENEE  Advancestocustomersand
SAREASE trade bl &t amortised cost
E Sage | 263,869,843 = - - - 263869843 (1,059.908) 262,809,935
Ell - Stage 2 11,430,746 1,631,103 - - - 13,061,849 (530,282) 12,531,567
2[5 Stage 3 - - 456,378 36,318 428189 920,885 (576,603) 344282
REED Advances to customers 275,300,589 1,631,103 456,378 36,318 428189 27785577 (2,166,793) 275,685,784
F-Ra Stage 2865 - - - - 2865 M 2661
7RG Stage? - - - i . B} . i
2956 Tradebils 2865 - - - - 2865 7] 24861
RESANHENEL  Oherfinandalasset
SREE: measted at amortised cost:
BONASTRRE  Cashand balances with
RS benks and central
-5 kA banks-tage | 34864880 - - - - 3864880 (057 34863923
REEN e Other assets measured at
EfAE-FBR  amorsed cost-Stage 7182 - - - - I8 (B26) 722500

RERLRIEST () ROBRAT 2024555 (67—
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8 LREREREw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)

(a) EERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)

(xi) EFA(EEBHBEHREER) (xi) Distribution of financial instruments to which the
FORHEERWEMT impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied, by
B BEEEZ(REMNT credit quality (in accordance with Note 8(a)(x)) and by
8(a)ix)) R ZE &2 7 b - staging: (continued)

(%)

BHfE/£54%
(Gross carrying/notional amount
BHER
i B e [f: B% BE  BXERH it
Special Sub- ECL Net

R2024%128318 As at December 31, 2024 Normal  mentioned standard Doubtful Loss Total  allowances amount

BEEERM: (2] Onbalance sheet: (continued)

RERRTHEY Other financal asets measured
KUAREE (8)  atamortised cost (continved)

RUAE-Z-BAE  Oherases-Stage 3616854 : : - - 36684 (1270 3615584
£-K& Stage | 143,816,099 - - - - 143,816,099 (175,542) 143,640,557
73 Stage 2 949637 - - - - (%) WIS

A EEHBEARY  Financil assets measured at
STARMEANES  fanaluethoughother
SHEE-Z-ER  compelensiencome 144765736 - - - - MATET6 (183474 144582260

PEEGZEAN Financial asets held under
SHEE-E-BE  reveserepuchie

agreements - Stage | - - - - = - - -
BEGERAZEEAE  Total gross canying amount -
onhalance sheet 504,130,543 1,631,103 456,378 36,318 428189 506682531 (2,368,945 504,313,586

BEEERN Off balance sheet:

F-Ra Stege 1 95,236,854 - - - - 0526854 (01835 95035019
FoRE Stage 2 135084 - - - - US (6126) 108958

BIBER EFAZER  Finandial quarantees loan

At EEREAE commitments and other
credit elated commitments 95,371,938 - - - - 95,371,938 (227961) 95143977

BEEERNEE Total nominal amount - off
bk halance sheet 95,371,938 - - - - 95371938 (227961) 95143977

RNuENANE Total at as December
s 31,2024 599,502,481 1,631,103 456,378 36318 428189 602054469 (2,596,906 599,457,563

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)
SRIEMEEE &) 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmnuen)
(a) FEERRE) (@) Creditrisk (continued)

xi) EH(EBHEHREER) (xi) Distribution of financial instruments to which the
FORHEERKNEMT impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied, by
B BEEEX(RENT credit quality (in accordance with Note 8(a)(x)) and by
8(a)ix)) RZEERZ 5 - staging: (continued)

(%)
REER/ 4508
(Gross carmying/notional amount
BHER
% B he B B o  BAER it
Special Sub- £l Net
P03 12A318 As at December 31,2023 Normal ~ mentioned  standard  Doubtful Loss Total  allowances amount
EEBRRA . On balance sheet:
HEBRTER  Placements with banks
BHETHER at amortised cost
R8T ~stage |
o 40,633,132 - - - - 40633132 (392) 40632740
BOEF-E-BE  Adancestobanks-stage T 266,15 - - - - 26615 (559) 265597
RABHAHENEE Advances tocustomers and
BIRBSEE:  tradebilsatamortised
cost:
F-M& Stage | 245,742,180 - - - - 245,742,180 (949.189) 244792991
F-R& Stage 2 13811735 1605575 - - - 15437310 (656505 14780805
E-KE Stage 3 - - 1864% 146865 2491622 2824983 (2707,090) 117893
RFER Advancestocustomers 259553915 1625575 186496 146865 2491620 264004473 (4312784 259691689
F-Rg Stage | 26169 - - - - 6069 26158
F-RB Stage 2 - - . - . , . B
U EY Trade bills 26,169 - - - - 26,169 (1) 26,158
REBHRTES  Otherfinancial assets
Ao gaE measured at amortised
cost:
BeRERTR Cash and balances with
BRBTNER banks and central banks
-5-K& ~stage | 46954767 - - - - 454767 (658) 46954109
REBHRTES  Otherassets measured at
AEE amortised cost-stage 1~ 1,577,801 - - - - 157801 (1495 1576306

RERLIRIEST () ROBRAT 2024555 (16—
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

8 LREREEw 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)
(a) FERRE) (@) Credit risk (continued)

xi) EH(EEBEBIRETER) (xi) Distribution of financial instruments to which the
FORHEERKNEMT impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 are applied, by
A BEEEX(REMT credit quality (in accordance with Note 8(a)(x)) and by
8(a)ix)) R ZIEER 2 7 - staging: (continued)

(&)

MG/ 2558
Gross carmying/notional amount
BHER

IS B i B B a®  BRER et

Special Sub- FL Net

R03F12A318 As at December 31,2023 Normal ~ mentioned  standard  Doubtful Loss Total  allowances amount
EEEERM:(£)  Onbalance sheet;

(continued)

ERETES  Otherfinancial assefs
EeBEE measured at amortised
(&) cost: (continued)

HpBE-5-RE Other assets - Stage | 4080878 - - - - 4080878 (1195) 4079683
E-[ER Stage | 128159330 - - - - 128159330 (134499) 128024831
ERE Stage 2 558,81 - - - - 558,281 (18427) 539,854

BALEESERE  Financial assets measured at
BT AEMRE  fairvaluethrough other
YameREE comprehensive income 128717611 - - - - BTN (152926) 128564685

YEERSEEAR  Financial assets held under
SREBE-E-BE  reveserepurchase

agreements - Stage 1 202397 - - - - 203%7 - 203%7

BESERAL Total gross carrying

REAE amount - on balance
sheet 4838343% 1625575 1864% 146865 2491620 488284954 (4470020) 483814934
EEERRI Off balance sheet:
F-Rg Stage | 91204097 - - - - OL4097  (28446) 90995651
£_ER Stage 4349 - - - - 4349 B) 4346
BRER  BZURER Financal quarantees,
HMEERBEAE  loan commitmentsand
other credit related

__________________ commitments 91,2844 - - - - 9128446 (20849 90999997

BEEEENEE  Total nominal amount - off
SEAR balance sheet 91,228446 - - - - 018446 (208449 90999997

R2023E12A3184  Total atas December 31,
ok 2023 575062842 1625575 186,4% 146865 2491620 579513400 (4698469 574814931

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to
fund the increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due
without incurring unacceptable losses. This may be caused
by market disruption or liquidity squeeze whereby the Group
may only unwind specific exposures at significantly discounted
values.

The purpose of liquidity management is to ensure sufficient
cash flows to meet all financial commitments and to capitalise
on opportunities for business expansion. This includes the
Group's ability to meet deposit withdrawals either on demand
or at contractual maturity, to repay borrowings as they mature,
to comply with the statutory liquidity ratio, and to make new
loans and investments as opportunities arise. To achieve this
purpose, the Group adopts a prudent risk appetite in setting
liquidity risk tolerance. Risk appetite is set in the form of
liquidity risk limits and metric framework.

The Group has established a set of liquidity risk management
policies which set out the liquidity risk management
framework of the Group according to the requirements of
HKMA's Supervisory Policy Manuals “Regulatory Framework for
Supervision of Liquidity Risk (LM1)" and “Sound Systems and
Controls for Liquidity Risk Management (LM2)".

Liquidity risk management framework

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for having an
effective liquidity risk management framework in place. Risk
Committee ("RC") is one of the committees set up under the
Board. The duties of RC are to approve a risk management
framework that is sound and in line with the Group's
business objectives and risk profile, to approve key liquidity
risk management policies and to ensure that the liquidity
management framework and policies are duly implemented
and maintained by the Group.

Risk Management Committee ("RMC") is set up under the
Risk Committee and the Executive Committee to oversee the
Group's overall asset quality as well as to resolve all important
risk-related or governance issues including those on liquidity
risk. The RMC is responsible for providing guidance and
overseeing the Group's liquidity risk management strategy
and development; reviewing or approving liquidity risk
management policies and reviewing the Group's liquidity risk
position.

RERLIRIEST () RBRAT 2024555 (65—
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity risk management framework (continued)

Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCQ") is a functional
committee set up under the Executive Committee to oversee
the liquidity risk management in light of the business strategy.

Regular meetings of various committees are held to review
the compliance status of liquidity measurements and the
needs for change in strategy and policy. Daily liquidity
management is performed by the Treasury. Risk Management
Division is responsible for the daily monitoring of the liquidity
limits and measurements, and submission of regular reports
of the liquidity profile to the RC, RMC and ALCO. Internal
Audit periodically performs independent reviews to ensure
effectiveness of the Group’s liquidity risk management
framework and implementation of the established policies.

Funding strategies

The objective of the Group's funding strategy is to strive
for a balance between business growth opportunities and
funding stability. The Group seeks to maintain diversified and
stable funding sources with an appropriate mix of liabilities
including customer deposits, interbank borrowings, issuance
of negotiable certificates of deposit and debt instruments.

The annual budgeted statement of financial position of the
Group, which contains a plan for the composition of various
sources of liabilities, is approved by the Board of Directors in
each calendar year. Various considerations such as the target
business growth, market sentiment, target financial ratios and
regulatory requirements would be taken into account in the
process of budgeting.

To manage currency mismatch and avoid over-reliance on the
currency swap market, the Group sets limits on swapped fund
ratios of major currency positions which are subject to daily
monitoring. The swapped fund ratios limit the extent of one
currency’s assets being funded by other currencies through
the swap market.

The funding support provided by China Construction Bank
Head Office is one of the key sources of liquidity backstop
during times of liquidity stress.

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity cushion

The extent of the Group’s maturity mismatch and the
sufficiency of liquidity cushion are governed by various
liquidity metrics and measurement tools such as maturity
mismatch limits and liquidity stress test.

The marketability of the Group's liquidity cushion is periodically
reviewed in keeping with market conditions. The size of the
liquidity cushion being maintained must be sufficient to meet
intraday payments and settlement obligations on a timely
basis under both normal and stressed conditions.

Stress scenario analysis

Liquidity Stress Testing is regularly conducted to project the
Group's cash flows under stress scenarios for evaluation of the
sufficiency of the liquidity cushion. The stress scenarios cover
institution-specific crisis scenario, general market crisis scenario
and combined crisis scenario. The cash flows under each stress
scenario are determined by applying a set of prescribed stress
assumptions to the Group's cash flow projection. Customer
behavioural patterns of some products including customer
deposits are applied in the stress test. The stress test results are
regularly reported to the RC, RMC and ALCO. The definition
of liquidity cushion being held by the Group is consistent
with the definition of High Quality Liquid Assets and other
marketable debt securities for purposes of determining the
Group's Liquidity Coverage Ratio. The liquidity cushion should
be able to cover projected cash outflows under various
prescribed stress scenarios.

PERIIRT(EH) B ERAT 2020558 (67—
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Contingency Funding Plan (“CFP”)

The Group has a CFP that sets out the Group's strategies
for identifying the occurrence of a liquidity event and the
operational procedures for addressing such emergency
situation if it really takes place. The CFP contains a set of early
warning indicators that helps to identify any emerging liquidity
risks at an early stage. The CFP also includes detailed action
steps and properly assigned responsibilities within the liquidity
risk management framework. The list of potential funding
sources, with due consideration of their reliability, priority, likely
impact on market perception and the expected available time
during liquidity crisis, is included.

The Group has not entered into any agreement or
arrangement under which the Group has to fulfil contingent
funding obligations.

Liquidity measurements
(i) Maturity analysis

The maturity analysis lists out the assets and liabilities by
their remaining maturities into different time buckets.
The gap amount for each time bucket represents the
liquidity exposure after netting the assets and liabilities
maturing in the same bucket. The Group maintains daily
gap limits to manage liquidity risk. For some liabilities
without prescribed maturity date such as demand
deposits from customers, the liabilities are listed in the
bucket of “Repayable on Demand”, resulting in a larger
negative gap in this time bucket. The Group considers
this as an inherent risk to a consumer and commercial
bank that offers demand deposit products to customers.
By experience demand deposits have stable outstanding
and the negative gap does not materialise into an
immediate outflow of liquidity. However, to mitigate the
liquidity risk, inter-bank and other borrowing facilities, as
well as contingency funding plan are in place to cover
withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand. Apart from
customer deposits, the Group has other sources to fund
the earning assets, such as inter-bank borrowings, debt
securities issued, funding support from the parent bank
and the Bank’s share capital.

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)
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8 EREMREE & 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmnuen)
(b) RBESRAR(E) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
B E () Liquidity measurements (continued)
() FEIA (&) (i) Maturity analysis (continued)
TRITRIHE BIEHERE The table below sets out the maturity profile of assets
HEPMWEERARE and liabilities analysed by the remaining period to

repayment as at the reporting date:

-BA -BANL Z@ANL -EML
MERE  @dn cEAEMA -EIMR EEEMA EEME BER 3

3monthsor  Tyearor  Syearsor

Repayable ~ Tmonth lessbutover lesshutover lessbut over Over
#20245128318  Asat December 31,2024 on demand orless  Tmonth  3months 1year Syears  Undated Total
BE Bssets
ReRafak Cash and balances with banks
PABARMETE  and centialbenks 4,706,649 30,157,274 - - - - - 34863923
FHaRE Placements with banks - - 7636725 15874287 14023827 - - 37534839
BOABESBEE  Financal assets
CE RPN measured at fair value
SHEE through profitorloss - 502,078 868,758 1,008,760 1,328,798 329,583 - 4037911
ESBTE Derivative financial instruments - 2120001 2235990 2928797 530662 208566 - 8024916
SRR Advances to banks - 50,285 - 170850 6632698 - - 7305833
REETR Advances to customers and
%R trade bils 5310609 72659017 36136282 38916290 82418269 40,248,178 - 275,688,645
BOLBESSEE  Financal assets measured a
SEALMEE  fairvalue through other
WEHeREE  comprehensive income - 6262655 22314162 34741313 68347344 12803606 296,656 144765736
BRBHAEYN  Otherassets measured at
EaE amortised cost - -5 - - - - A0
WARLEMER Inteestinajointyenture - - - - - - 185716 1857162
EUERBEE Deferred tax assets - - - - - - SUTI8 534778
BTBE Fired assets s = - = = - 213365 2,123,365
FREEE Right-of-use asets - 383 - 17072 505018 137486 519491 1,176,550
EfhEE Other assets 1403800 979953 125444 912538 10,89 - 18953 3615584
EEAE Total assets 11,421,058 113184546 70,039,861 94570007 173794512 53727419 5514405 522,251,808
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8 STHREMREE s 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)
(b) REBESEE) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
B E () Liquidity measurements (continued)
() FRIA AT (& (i) Maturity analysis (continued)
TRIIRARE ARtz The table below sets out the maturity profile of assets
LM EERAG : and liabilities analysed by the remaining period to
(& repayment as at the reporting date: (continued)

-8R -BANL: ZEANML  -ENME
ke gim ZEREMA  -FdMR EFIMR EEME 4R g

3 months or Tyearor  Syearsor

Repayable Tmonth lessbutover lesshutover lessbut over Over

R2024E12A31A  Asat December31,2024 on demand or less Tmonth  3months 1 year 5 years Undated Total
ak Liabilities
FANEINET  Depositsand balancesvithbanks 3606138 7599811 1,157,164 1,379,529 - = - 1374264
EPEA Depost from customers 117586722 92194639 146103406 15,877,007 - - - 371,761,774
EEGETHEN  Financial assets sold under

SREE repurchase agreements - 35 - - . = - 35
ELRTA Derivative financial instruments - 1,789,023 1,946,080 2541977 209,477 2,256 - 6,488,813
ETBRLAEE  Finandallabiltes

SERAEHIA  desgnatedatfirvalue

BENLHERE through profitorloss - 71308694 4768557 5,213,108 - - - 17,290359
BRTEMERES  Otherdebtsecurties issued - - - 20000 3175926 - - 3195926
L Lease liabilties - 22958 36,676 159,574 455,443 49,892 - 724,543
S Current tax payable - - = 348,584 - = - 348,584
ELRERE Deferred tax igbiltes - - - - - - 17,850 17,850
EEE Otherliabilties 1,400,358 463,593 127,387 1,393,445 - - 2,639,256 6,024,039
BfEaE Total liabilities 122593218 112803839 154139270 26933224 3,840,846 52,148 2,657,106 423,019,651

BEE/(BB)EE  Netassets(liabilities) gap (111,172160) 380707  (84099409) 67,636,783 169953666 53675271 2857299 99232157

A Of which:

U ELHI Debt securities indluded in:

~W\RAEEFBRK - Financil assets measured
SHFAZURE  atforvaluethrough other

WiafeRdE comprehensive income - 6262655 22314162 34741313 68347344 12,803,606 - 144,469,080
~DUESAREEH - Otherassets measured at
EHEE amortised cost - - 722,500 - - - - 722,500
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(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

8 STHREMREE s 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)
(b) REBESEE) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
B E () Liquidity measurements (continued)
() FEIA (&) (i) Maturity analysis (continued)
TRIIRAHRE BiREtrE The table below sets out the maturity profile of assets
LM EERAG : and liabilities analysed by the remaining period to
(#&) repayment as at the reporting date: (continued)

—fER -BANL ZEANLE —ENE

PEER A CERINA -EdNA RESNR O REME  EER g
3months or Tyearor — Syearsor

Repayable ~ Tmonth lessbutover lessbutover lessbutover Over
ROBENAIA AsatDecember3!, 003 on demand orless  Tmonth  3months Tyear Syears  Undated Total
gk Bssets
BERESIR Cashand balances with banks
RREAREE  and centalbarks 8015305 33938804 - - - - - 6954109
FREARE Placements with banks - - 1TM5 689318 15020987 - - e
BALEMFER  Financial assets
EBHHARAD  measured atfairvalue
SHAE through proftorloss - 489 SO0 40 848%8 219101 - 100638
HEEGHEEAL  Financialassets held underreverse
SHEE repurchase agreements - 3% - - - - -2
ESBTE Derivative financial instruments - 446607 633067 15449 4983 26935 - 1971341
FEn Advances to banks - - - 147935 117662 - - X5
RFERR Advances to customers and
8525 trade bills 8020622 61582144 B13031 46754985 73206734 44980331 - 977847
BRABESSEE  Financal assets measured a
BHAAEMSE  farvaluethioughother
WHEHMEBEE  comprehensieincome - B3RS 2503007 MATISES  SMBIR 81050 MIS 18717611
IREBIREER  Otherassets measured at
HfhEE amortised cost - 7K : I 1 /] - - 1576306
RASMEMER  interestinajointventure - - - - - SR80 185180
ELRELE Deferred tax asses - - - - - - 633945 633945
ETEE Fired assets - - - - - - 2219060 2219069
ERELE Right-of use asets - 58 1114 B M9 105U 1300950
EfhEE Other assets 1455066 40471 ans st 581 - 0588 4079683
BELE Total assets 17491093 111868629 70451067 91276920 143479445 53722569 557852 493857675

o RERLRIEST () RBRAT 2045558 (17—
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

8 STHREMREE s 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)
(b) REBESEE) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
REMEFTE(E) Liquidity measurements (continued)
() FRIA AT (& (i) Maturity analysis (continued)
TRIIRARE ARtz The table below sets out the maturity profile of assets
LM EERAG : and liabilities analysed by the remaining period to
(#&) repayment as at the reporting date: (continued)

—ER —EANL ZERME  —FNE

EEE gm ZERINA  -E3bA RESNA RENE EHR g
3months or 1 year or 5 years or
Repayable Imonth  lessbutover — lesshutover — less but over Over
R0BEIAYA As at Decernber 31,2023 on demand 0rless I month 3 months 1year 5 years Undated Total
8 Liabilities
BINETNER Deposits and balances with banks 3658036 6318284 20031 17672 - - - 1001403
EERER Deposits from customers 13367805 89042922 135380771 1282313 - - - 10781
EEGETHEN  Financial assets sold under
SREE fepuichase agreements S MW 3785066 - - - 93sM
fiteRIA Derivative financial instruments - 487645 553297 29673 36728 37 - 1331174
ETBELAEE  Finandallabiltes
HERHBEHA  designated atfairvalue
BENLHERE through profitorloss - 2081378 3801508 485908 - - - 6,308,794
BRIAMERES  Otherdebt securiiesissued - - - 660058 - - - 660,058
i Lease liabiliies - 19854 38606 167200 556,276 71410 - 853346
EffgEHE Current tax payable - - - 47954 - - - 447954
ELRERE Deferred tax iabiltes - - - - - - 18012 18012
EEE Other liabilties 1334139 592533 61617 1513481 109,345 3 2646162 6,257,308
B4R Total liabilties 137360000 101379940 142603812 31609505 70349 AL 266414 416395012

TEE/(BB)EE  Netassets/[iabites) gap (19863907) 10488689 (D1S2645)  SO6ET35 TN BEAI3T 293678 TI46663

L Of which:

U ELHI Debt securities indluded in:

~W\RAEEFBRK - Financil assets measured
BYHALMRE  atfeirvalue thiough other

WHHAREE  comprehensiveincome S R385 M9 WIS SUBR3 81395 - 18475746
—LIESGASEN - Otherassets measured at
Az amortised cost - - 3318 52411 s - - 1576306
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

REEEEME(E) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
REMEFTE () Liquidity measurements (continued)
(i) 1EH T EIR 2R A K I B (i) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
Jéi\ //le
THRFAVANEFNSHEE The following table details the remaining contractual
EAiﬁﬁ‘: H #5644 T HARR © maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s financial
LS BERLYTERTIR liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
Eﬁ@ e (BIEALYTEF = cash flows (including interest payments computed using
NE R BRI RER contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
EEMNERAENFBESLEE) the reporting date) and the earliest date to pay:
MEEXNBHAERST]
=
-BF -BAML ZERNE  -EML
HEEE gim =@ERENA  -Eudmw REWMR ZENE EHR L1
3 months or Tyearor  Syearsor
Repayable Tmonth lessbutover lesshutover lessbut over Over
R204E12A31A  AsatDecember31,2024 on demand or less Tmonth  3months 1 year 5 years Undated Total
FiELRak Non-derivative financial liabilities
FAONERANEE  Depostsand balancesvith banks 3606138 7,599,896 1157584 1,379,529 - - - 137847
RPER Deposts fom customers 117586722 92,202806 146134265 15,899,725 - - - 37183518
DEGHTHESN  Finandalassetssold under
HEE fepurchase agreements - 3428816 - - - - - 3428816
EEBRALEE  Finencilliabiltes
HEREEBHA  desinated atfarvalue
ERNSEARE thiough profitorloss - 7308694 4768557 5213108 - - - 17290359
BRIEMERES  Otherdebt securitiesissued - - - 195533 3,241,103 - - 343663
HEBR Lease liabltes - 24261 061 168773 470761 51,055 - 750N
EfEERE Current tax payable - - - 348,584 - - - 348,584
ELRERE Deferred tax labilities - - - - - - 17,850 17,850
Efrgf Other lbiltes 1400358 463593 127387 1393445 - - 2639256 6024039
122593218 111,028,066 152,226,954 24,598,697 3,711,864 51,055 2,657,106 416,866,960
WFERELEN  Cashinflow/(outflow) of
fiETIERS derivatives settled on
RA/ i) anet basis - 148 61,802 (4363)  (50081) (1452) - 6,054
WAEERLEN  Cashflowof derivatives
fETERERE settled onagross basis
—A ~Inflow - 198688302 114908659 11,587,326 242,019,502 1,005,499 - 568,209,288
i - Quiflow - (198,344.245) (114,887,778)  (11,606,681) (241,159,136)  (1,011,956) - (567,009,796)
gEERNAR Contingent abilities and
commitments
-BBER ~Financia quarantees 198894 37T GT0774 2744690 533450 1,000 - 4405
-BHAGEREM - Loan commitments and other
EEREA credit commitment 36,255,885 675,080 3477093 24658062 25,901,083 2,209 - 90,969,412
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8 EREREE s 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)
(b) REBESEE) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)

BB (E) Liquidity measurements (continued)

(i) 1HEBIR 23 K 973 B (i) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
e (&) (continued)
TRV AEERNSmAE The following table details the remaining contractual
RS BB FIER A FE BRR o maturities at the reporting date of the Group's financial
ZECRBEROTERITIR liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
Hens(BREUAGERNEX cash flows (including interest payments computed using
SUNEF B ARNHE B ® contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
ERNMEFENF B EEE) at the reporting date) and the earliest date to pay:
REEXFMBEHARBERST (continued)

(&)

—ER —EANE ZEARE  —ENE
AER PR ZERINR EIAR ZEMA IENE E4% it

3 months or 1 year or Syearsor
Repayable Imonth  lesshutover  lessbutover — less but over Over

’03E1R3IA Asat Decernber 31,2023 on demand 0rless I month 3Imonths 1year 5 years Undated Total
HTELRER Non-derivative financial liabilties
FTHBANEE  Deposisandbalnceswithbanks 363803 6319060 011 17957 - - - 1001525
REED Deposits from customers 132367825 89051546 135424184 2429993 - - - 381142848
EEBETLEN  Financialassets sold under

SREE fepurchase agreements - 2905,725 2171612 3831668 - - - 9509005
EEBRARBE  Finencilliabiltes

HEREEBHA  desionated atfarvalue

BRNSHAR thiough profitorloss S l0% I 48508 - - - 6530
BRTEMERES  Otherdebtsecurties issued - - - 686,667 - - - 686,667
EERR Lease biltes - 21289 41367 177851 511783 73855 - 892,105
EffgEiE Curent tax payable - - - 47954 - - - 47954
EiiEEE Deferred tax iabiltes - - - - - - 18012 18012
EAE Other liabilties 1334139 592533 61617 1513481 109,345 3 2,646,162 6,257,308

137360000 100992102 142184104 31460779 687,088 73886 2664174 415420133

WREERLEN  Cashinflow/outflow) of

fiETARE derivatives settled on
fiL/(Fik) anet basis - 0 65623 15219 274 5259 - 8915

WEEEREEN  Cashflow of derivatives
fETEREHE settled onagross basis

-hA - Inflow - BOTA89 40908954 417N 4618577 - - 18801
- - Outfow - [B07830)  (088TEE (443814 (462055) - - (187895790)
HEEENAE Contingent liabilities and
commitments
-BBER - Finandial quarantees 12135 310926 812700 3183036 85389 - - 4513306
—~ETAERER - Loan commitments and other
R credit commiment 39953076 %480 2605058 BIBIN 19457063 5744 - 871500
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LAB RS FITH7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

()

Market risk

Market risk management by the Group

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in
market rates and prices such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates and prices of debt securities. Market risk arises
from both the Group’s trading and non-trading business. A
trading book consists of positions in financial instruments held
either with trading intent or in order to hedge other elements
of the trading book. Non-trading book records those financial
instruments which are not included in the trading book. The
Group's exposure to market risk arises from its day-to-day
activities associated with loans, deposits, securities held for
liquidity purposes and trading activities.

The Group's Risk Management Committee is responsible for
overseeing the market risk of the Group. The Group’s market
risk framework comprises market risk management policies
and control procedures with appropriate delegation of market
risk limits.

The Group's trading activities are primarily related to foreign
exchange and interest rate transactions. The Group manages
its exposure to market risk through the establishment of
various trading limits and the risk exposure is calculated
by the Bank system and externally developed risk engine.
Trading book position is monitored by both end-of-day and
intraday reports. Any excess will be promptly investigated and
communicated with Treasury and then reported to RMC. In
addition to the overall limits, documented trading policies and
procedures define acceptable boundaries within which traders
can execute transactions in their assigned markets. The limits,
policies and procedures, and risk measurement methodology
are updated and reviewed at least annually and seek for RMC's
approval to make sure the controls are sound and valid.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

Market risk (continued)

Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) for the Group

VaR is a technique which estimates the potential losses that
could occur on risk positions taken due to movements in
market rates and prices over a specified time horizon and to
a given level of confidence. The Group uses VaR to measure
and report the market risk position, which covers the overall FX
and the trading book interest rate risk exposures. The Group
sets up total VaR limit to control the market risk exposure. The
standalone interest rate VaR and foreign exchange VaR are
also reported below for reference. The Group adopts historical
simulation approach to calculate VaR at a 99% confidence level
for a one-day holding period.

The table below shows the VaR for the Group:

2024 2023
R E VaR 4,033 4,403
X RRE VaR for interest rate risk 3,992 4416
EERBAERE VaR for foreign exchange risk 580 138

() EEER (i)
LB B EE

REE 2 NER R RIR B B
BEB R IREEREAR
TEBZINEEE - NEE
HIR] TONEBRR - MEAE
B sNERBREETINE - M
REBZINEF R R BT E
ZRBE(BERFRRE)
NERR o

AEER T RARRESS
SNEE LR - IR[RIES I E TR
TR R - ARHE AR & 5h
SMNERS R ERFT R BESR X VIR
Ko ZBAHAT REEL
TRIEERE E XA
TER BRI BIS, o NS B
FEIMNER N BIHTT F2 TR
BRI HZELCE - WEH
TZEeEltNEREZES
= - ZBENAR ST RED
BFE-AHBLEREHARK
E%%EEK@M%%&E
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Currency risk
Currency risk management by the Group

The Group's foreign currency positions arise from treasury
activities and foreign exchange dealing to support the
commercial and consumer banking operations. The
Group has formulated a foreign exchange policy in
managing the Group's foreign exchange risk. The foreign
currency positions are managed within established
limits, including open risk position limits.

In addition to adopting VaR to measure foreign exchange
risk, a stress testing programme was developed to
assess the potential loss that the Group may incur
from the foreign exchange positions. The stress testing
programme incorporates sensitivity analysis on changes
in foreign exchange rates with various degree of severity.
The methodology and assumptions of stress testing
programme are properly documented, and approved
by Risk Management Committee, with its update at
least once a year or when the portfolio or the market
conditions changes significantly.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(c) Market risk (continued)
BEXmEE(E) Currency risk (continued)
TRIIRANEBREENLEE The following table indicates the currency concentration
HEEBERIFR of the Group's assets and liabilities:
i ES ARE B At a5
120245128318 Asat December 31,2024 HKD usD RMB EUR Others Total
EE Assets
BEMESTR  Cashand balances with
MRFINEST  banksandcentralbanks 7,186,784 24,198,458 1,362,240 428,738 1687,703 34,863,923
BHERTHE Placements with banks 28,965,363 4,885,332 3,183,989 - 500,155 37,534,839
BAREEER  Financial assets
HEEHABE  measured atfair value
HEREE through profit or loss 1,001,328 1,038,348 1,020,828 - 977,473 4,037,977
ITESRTE Derivative financial
instruments 7,101,663 837,827 84,712 74 - 8,024,916
RIED Advances to banks - 7,305,833 - = = 7,305,833
ZFENR Advances to customers
B525 and trade bills 134,097,638 95,266,806 23,967,466 11,890,950 10,465,785 275,688,645
BAREGEHER  Financial assets measured
EEFH AL atfairvaluethrough
TEMEN other comprehensive
THEE income 37700571 62769503 38,673,561 5,622,101 - 144765736
IRESARREEEH)  Other assets measured at
EhBE amortised cost - 722,500 - - = 722,500
RALMEMESR  Interestinajoint venture 1,857,162 - - - - 1,857,162
ERHEEE Deferred tax assets 534,778 = - - - 534,778
EEEE Fived assets 2,123,365 - - - - 2,123,365
FREEE Right-of-use assets 1,176,550 - - - - 1,176,550
EhEE Otherassets 1,746,349 1,708,475 132,437 3,446 24,877 3,615,584
HHEE Spot assets 223,491,551 198,733,082 68,425,233 17,945,949 13,655993 522,251,808
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8 SRERERE s 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)
(c) T™BERERE) () Market risk (continued)

(i) E¥EEE) (i)  Currency risk (continued)
TRIIRANEBREELEE The following table indicates the currency concentration
MESERIFTR : (&) of the Group's assets and liabilities: (continued)

it ES ARH B Hith kS
120245128310 Asat December 31,2024 HKD usb RMB EUR Others Total
Bf Liabilities
BITNERALEE  Deposits and balances
with banks 1,276,814 4,826,661 7,151,629 10,445 477,093 13,742,642
REEH Deposits from customers 177,382,953 143,489,819 37,595,168 5,228,936 8,064,898 371,761,774
B TLER  Financial assets sold under
TREE repurchase agreements 300,000 607,963 2,517,158 - - 3,425,121
TESRIA Derivative financial
instruments 5,945,331 319,496 72,246 53,376 98,364 6,488,813

BEARRAAEE  Finandalliabilities
FEREEHTA  designated at fair value
BEMopas through profit and loss 1,417,296 3,262,039 434417 4,367,205 7,809,402 17,290,359

REGEY Other debt securities

ERER issued = - 3,195,926 = = 3,195,926
HEAR Lease liabilties 724,543 - - - - 724,543
JEfTE BT Current tax payable 340,682 7,900 2 - - 348,584
EiHEERE Deferred tax liabilities 17,850 - - - = 17,850
EafE Other liabilities 4,374,646 1,529,697 101,697 10,836 7,163 6,024,039
HHaE Spot liabilities 191,780,115  154,043575 51,068,243 9,670,798 16456920 423,019,651
BHEA Forward purchases 86,870,004 265,161,487 196,342,346 4826288 20292261 573,492,386
EHEY Forward sales (41,703,625)  (287,224,103)  (213301,316)  (13,090555)  (17,506,018) (572,825,617)
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(c) Market risk (continued)

E¥EpEE) (i) Currency risk (continued)
TRIIRANEBREENLEE The following table indicates the currency concentration
HEEBERIFR : (&) of the Group's assets and liabilities: (continued)
o e AR B Eft BE
M023%F12A318  Asat December 31,2023 HKD UsD RMB EUR Others Total
EE Assets
BAMARTR  Cashandbalances with
mRFTNEST  banksand central banks 4804333 35776303 4379261 227305 1746907 46954109
BFHERTHE Placements with banks 27282019 10057590 393,131 - - 40632740
BALBESFER  Financial assets measured
EEEHABE  afarveluethough
NEREE profit or loss 350,050 253883 732173 - 570,222 1906328
HEBEREEAN  Financial assets held under
PHEE feverse repurchase
agreements - 202397 - - - 202397
ITEeRTA Derivative financial
instruments 1,059,270 900,145 10,534 1392 - 1971341
ROER Advances to banks - 265597 - - - 265597
REEHR Advances to customers
EUES and trade bills 150486506 7418646 13743866 10382462 10918767 259717847
BAABESER  Financial assets measured
EEEHALL  atfairveluethough
2EMEN other comprehensive
SREE income 37,791,857 54,734.7% 32,201,520 3989438 - 128717611
RBSHREER  Otherassets measured at
EfhEE amortised cost - 1576,306 - - - 1,576,306
RALLENES  Interestinajointventure 1,856,180 - - - - 1856,180
EERBELE Deferred tax assets 633,945 - - - - 633,945
EEAE Fived assets 2219069 - - - - 2219069
FRELE Right-of-use assets 1,302,952 - - - - 1,302,952
EhEE Other assets 2021924 1826277 25007 5,086 1189 4079683
HmEE Spot assets 230,028,105 181,601,110 54385492 14,605,883 13,237,085 493857675
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8 SRERERE s 8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuen)
() THERE(E) (c)  Market risk (continued)

(i) E¥mEpE(E) (i)  Currency risk (continued)
TRIIRANEBREELEE The following table indicates the currency concentration
MEBERER : (&) of the Group's assets and liabilities: (continued)

ot e ARE o Eft &5
M023%F12A318  Asat December 31,2023 HKD UsD RVB EUR Others Total
=1 Liabilities
BITNERALEE  Deposits and balances with
banks 545,682 2455347 6,963,501 5029 44 464 10014023
REGD Deposits from customers 166,791,528 160,763,964 41175043 3823352 8519944 381,073,831
EEHETHER  Financial assets sold under
LRBE repurchase agreements - 6,533,248 2,837,324 - - 9370572
TESRIA Derivative financial
instruments 1,074,806 245336 9631 1341 - 1331114

RBEARRAAEE  Finandalliabilities
SEREEHTA  designated at fair value

BHEMSREE  though profitand loss 1377563 167963 2344 2657811 1942015 6,368,794
BETEMERES Other debt securities
issued - - 660058 - - 660058
HEaRE Lease liabilities 853,346 - - - - 853,346
R A Current tax payable 446970 982 2 - - 447954
ERREAE Deferred tax liabllities 18012 - - - - 18012
EafE Other liabllities 4404531 1,793,156 14323 24331 20967 6,257,308
IR Spot liabilities 175512438 17195999% 51883324 6,511,864 10527390 416395012
BHEA Forward purchases 279715 86,936,958 46527340 3279813 10157495 189,181,321
EHEY Forward sales (5009008)  (90038789) (48877066 (11438050  (12864861)  (189,127.776)
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(c)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk management by the Group

The Group's interest rate exposure arises from the
positions in the banking book and proprietary trading.
The interest rate risk exposure in the banking book arises
from its normal course of banking activities, such as
lending, accepting deposits, investing in securities for
liquidity purposes and issuance of debts as needed to
fund assets. The governing objective in interest rate risk
management is to minimise the potential significant loss
as a result of changes in interest rates. Interest rate risk is
managed on a daily basis by the Treasury Division within
the limits approved by the Risk Management Committee.
The instruments used to manage interest rate risk
include interest rate swaps and other derivatives. The
RMD assists the RMC to perform day-to-day monitoring
and interest rate risk management.

The Group is exposed to two major sources of interest
rate risk in banking book (“IRRBB”), namely, gap risk and
basis risk.

Gap risk is the risk arising from changes in the interest
rates on instruments of different maturities. The
extent of gap risk depends on whether changes to
the term structure of interest rates occur consistently
across the yield curve (parallel risk) or differentially by
period (nonparallel risk). The Group uses forward rate
agreements and interest rate swaps to mitigate the
gap risk. The Group generally monitors mismatches by
various buckets from next day to over 20 years.

Basis risk arises from different pricing basis of assets
and liabilities, which results in changes in the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities by different amount within
the same repricing period. For example, loan assets
are being tied to the Hong Kong dollar prime rate, and
deposit liabilities tied to the Hong Kong Interbank Offer
Rate (“HIBOR"). Basis risk primarily occurs in the Group's
Hong Kong dollar books. The Group has established
stress testing programme to assess the potential erosion
of net interest income that the Group may incur from
basis risk.

RERLRIEST () RBRAT 2024555 (18—
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(c)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate risk management by the Group (continued)

The Group mainly uses earnings approach, economic
value approach, VaR and stress tests to assess the
interest rate risk under adverse circumstances. Apart
from gap risk and basis risk, the IRRBB stress-testing
has further incorporated option risk and credit spread
risk. For interest rate risk monitoring purpose, the Risk
Management Committee reviews the stress-testing
results from time to time.

Sensitivity analysis of IRRBB

Sensitivity analysis in relation to the impact of changes
in interest rates on earnings, in terms of net interest
income (“NII"), and economic value, in terms of
economic value of equity ("EVE") is assessed regularly
through a number of hypothetical interest rate shock
scenarios prescribed by the HKMA. EVE represents an
assessment of the present value of expected net cash
flows, discounted to reflect market rates. As fluctuations
in interest rates will affect earnings, they will also affect
its net worth. Sensitivity limits are set to control the
Group's interest rate risk exposure under both earnings
and economic value perspectives. In order to produce
quantitative estimation on IRRBB, the Group has
assumed shock scenarios to interest rate yield curves
which allow changes in economic value and earnings
to be computed with consideration of optionality and
behavioural assumptions. These scenarios are applied to
IRRBB exposures in each currency for which the Group
has material positions.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(c) Market risk (continued)

(ii)  Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis of IRRBB (continued)

The prescribed interest rate shock scenarios are provided
by the HKMA in their Supervisory Policy Manual IR-
1, Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book and generally

B | PiRat o HE— Mgt described as follows:
UM
AEEEE
AEVE
2024 2023
1. {TALE  FIRU SRR 1. Parallel up: A constant parallel shock up
BRI AT 8 across all time buckets (3,389,703) (2,724,666)
2. FAT : MERWEREEHGENE 2. Parallel down: A constant parallel shock
BREEATE T TEE down across all time buckets 3,662,048 2,962,208
3. BER : RBFIETEMREEFZE 3. Steepener: Short rates down and long
HH rates up (408,404) (221612)
4 BEEM : BEFIE EAMKREFZE 4 Flattener: Short rates up and long
TR rates down (623,997) (388,643)
5. 5K I MREREHREERA S Short rate up: Rates up are greatest at
FHAZESA MEEBEESRE  shortest time bucket and diminish towards
BROERERFERE current rates in longer time buckets (1,616,468) (1,375,945)
6. MERTY - MEREFEHOBEEA 6. Short rate down: Rates down are greatest at
TREERSA  MEEBEEHRE  shortest time bucket and diminish towards
BB EEE A KIS current rates in longer time buckets 1,556,211 1378,041
AERR12(8 B FFIZRA
ANII over the next 12 months
2024 2023
1. FATALE  FIRI SRS ERTE 1. Parallel up: A constant parallel shock up
BRI A TR B8 across all time buckets (222,598) (104,153)
2. AT - MR REBSIENE 2. Parallel down: A constant parallel shock
LR EIENNCE) down across all time buckets 222,598 101,172

A BB EN AER S YA
MEERXRERBEBRETH
BK o RIEAREEE2024F
NANBFERSHNBRT
B F R EEIFIE T AU
DT+ ARI121E B A
EEELFMNERANES
TR 2D R AE339
H & T (2023 : B #2725
BEL) MABIZIEETT
(2023 : BEI4BEBETT) ©

Negative values of AEVE and ANII indicate adverse
impacts under the respective scenarios. Based on the
sensitivity analysis performed by the Group for each
of the prescribed interest rate shock scenarios for
the annual reporting date at December 31, 2024, the
maximum adverse impact in EVE and NIl over the next
12 months are HK$3,390 million (2023: HK$2,725 million)
and HK$223 million (2023: HK$104 million) respectively.
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(d)

Capital management

Being an authorised institution incorporated in Hong Kong, the
Bank is regulated by the HKMA who sets and monitors capital
requirements for the Bank as well as the consolidated position
for the banking subsidiaries as prescribed by the HKMA. A non-
banking financial subsidiary, CCBS, is subject to the supervision
and capital requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission.

According to the Banking (Capital) Rules (“Capital Rules”),
the Group is required to maintain adequate regulatory
capital and capital buffers to support credit risk, market risk
and operational risk. In addition to meeting the regulatory
requirements, the Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and, when necessary, makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions. The Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of the capital adequacy ratios and capital buffers
as calculated in accordance with the Capital Rules and the
Group's policy on the management of capital is updated
regularly to incorporate latest regulatory requirements.

The Group maintains a policy on internal capital adequacy
assessment process (“ICAAP”) that sets out the methodologies,
assumptions and techniques in assessing the capital
requirements on the residual risks that are not covered by the
Capital Rules and establishing the internal capital targets.

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coninuep)

(d)

Capital management (continued)

In addition, the HKMA classified the Bank as material subsidiary
of CCB resolution group and requires the Bank to comply with
internal loss-absorbing capacity (“Internal LAC") requirements
under the Financial Institutions (Resolution) (Loss-absorbing
Capacity Requirements — Banking Sector) Rules from 1 January
2025. In implementing Internal LAC requirements, the HKMA
requires the Bank to maintain prescribed ratios of Internal LAC
expressed as a percentage of risk-weighted assets, Internal LAC
expressed as a percentage of exposure measure, and Internal
LAC debt expressed as a percentage of Internal LAC regulatory
minimum.

Throughout the years ended December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, the Group has complied with the capital
requirements imposed by the HKMA. Additional information is
disclosed in the Bank’s Regulatory Disclosure.

RERLIRIEST () RBRAT 2024555 (18—
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9 FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
The Group measures fair value using the following hierarchy
method:

Level 1. fair values measured using quoted market prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments.

Level 2:  fair values measured using valuation techniques
based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This
category includes quoted prices in active markets
for similar financial instruments, or quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in markets that
are considered less than active, or other valuation
techniques where all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3:  fair values measured using significant unobservable
inputs. This category includes inputs to valuation
techniques not based on observable data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on
the instrument’s valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted
prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are
required to reflect differences between the
instruments.

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)
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9 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (conminuep)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)

Where available, the most suitable measure for fair value
is the quoted market prices in an active market. In the
absence of active markets for most of the unlisted securities
and OTC derivatives, direct market prices of these financial
instruments may not be available. The fair values of such
instruments are therefore calculated based on established
valuation techniques (i.e. Market Comparable Approach)
by using observable and comparable market parameters or
market prices provided by counterparties. Independent price
verification or reasonableness check is performed if fair values
are determined by reference to externally quoted prices.

Options and equity swaps traded OTC are valued using broker
quotes price. The fair values of foreign exchange contracts
are valued by observable foreign exchange rates and forward
points at the reporting date. Other derivative financial
instruments, including interest rate swaps and currency
swaps, are valued through estimated future cash flows and
discounting with appropriate yield curves.

For structured deposits, this class of instruments includes
certain deposits received from customers that are embedded
with derivatives. The valuation of the underlying deposits
is derived by using net present value of expected cash flow
taking the Group’s own credit risk into account. The valuation
method of the embedded derivative is the same as other
derivatives mentioned as above.
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9 AREBEEFEw 9 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (conmnuen)

(a) RARBEFENESRMEERE (@)
&(#)
TERAMERSPRIRAAEE
AEMNERIA  RIEAAE
BRENBEITREERZR

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value treatment is

categorised:
E—EBHR F-ER F=EB#& Fob ]
R2024%12831H As at December 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
BARBEMNE Financial assets measured
BEEEFA at fair value through
BRNEBEE profit or loss
TR Certificates of deposit 279,445 1,283,494 - 1,562,939
HAhEHE S Other debt instruments 1,692,831 782,207 - 2,475,038
BRoAEEFERE Financial assets measured at
FEETAEMEE fair value through other
WaEMEREE comprehensive income
B% /&% Treasury bills/bonds 45,512,127 10,453,241 - 55,965,368
TFREE Certificates of deposit - 17,325,912 - 17,325,912
H A (B 15 5 Other debt securities 38,570,329 32,607,471 - 71,177,800
RS Equity shares 67,628 - 229,028 296,656
MEEBMITA Derivative financial instruments
[EERAL) Exchange rate contracts
ir B Forwards - 6,926,046 - 6,926,046
AR Options purchased - 35 = 35
| 2 4 HR Interest rate swaps - 996,263 - 996,263
B 1 Currency swaps - 102,500 - 102,500
[ 1712 55 Equity swaps = 72 = 72
86,122,360 70,477,241 229,028 156,828,629
&8 Liabilities
BEBEAABEFE  Finandial liabilities designated
BEEBHAERN at fair value through
SRaE profit or loss - 17,290,359 - 17,290,359
MTESMIT A Derivative financial instruments
[ERAH Exchange rate contracts
RHR Forwards - 5,999,957 - 5,999,957
agusd-t:d Options written - 12,096 - 12,096
7| 2 2 BR Interest rate swaps = 380,807 = 380,807
B8 1 Currency swaps = 95,481 = 95,481
W17 2 58 Equity swaps = 472 = 472
- 23,779,172 - 23,779,172
CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o
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9 AREENEmw 9 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (conriuen)

(@) BAAEBEEFENEREERSA (@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
&(E) (continued)
TROMERSHRIEAREBE The table below analyses financial instruments measured at
FEMNeRIE - BRITARARE fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level in
EREIRINTRAEERER : the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value treatment is
(%) categorised: (continued)

F-EBH FER FEZER R

72023 12H31H As at December 31,2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets

RAREBEHEBEEE  Financial assets measured at fair
ARG EREE value through profit or loss

FREE Certificates of deposit 147 460 813,414 - 960,874
HiEKES Other debt instruments 696,057 249,397 - 945454

BARBESEREEE  Financial assets measured at
AR A 2 E WA fair value through other

TREE comprehensive income
EE%,/ &5 Treasury bills/bonds 41895806 11,520,777 - 53416583
TR Certificates of deposit - 9,824,292 - 9,824,292
HA EHE 5 Other debt securities 36,247,020 28,987,852 - 65234872
T E A Equity shares 56,241 - 185,623 241,864
TE2RTA Derivative financial instruments
RS 4 Exchange rate contracts
= Forwards - 948,040 - 948,040
EPN: il Options purchased - 37 - 37
) 2= 5 5 Interest rate swaps - 993,036 - 993,036
B Currency swaps - 30,087 - 30,087
P inte 5 Equity swaps - 141 - 141
79,042,584 53,367,073 185,623 132,595,280
=i Liabilities
BEBEALBMEFER  Financil liabilities designated at
HEHT ABRH fair value through profit or loss
TRERE - 6,368,794 - 6,368,794
TEeRIA Derivative financial instruments
[ERA4 Exchange rate contracts
=8 Forwards - 1,042,805 - 1,042,805
o i H A Options written - 3,259 - 3,259
) 2= 5 5 Interest rate swaps - 257,137 - 257,137
B Currency swaps - 24,743 - 24,743
[ 17 2 55 Equity swaps - 3,170 - 3,170
- 7,699,908 - 7,699,908
HE2024F 12 31 H %2023 12 There were no significant transfers between instruments in
RA3WBIEEE F—EBRRFEZ Level 1 and Level 2 for the year ended December 31, 2024 and
4 T AW ErRmEER - December 31, 2023.

o PERIRT(EH) BEERAT 2020558 (89—
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9 AREEFEw
a) BAABEHBENSMEERS
&)

F-EREER B K

9 FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT (conminuep)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 items

2024 2023

BN A4 BB E HAZEFF A Financial assets measured at FVOC!

Hit 2 E a2 mEE — Unlisted equity securities

—FF F it m g
MBI A1 As at January 1 185,623 121,753
FOE b 2 Y s AR Y Change in fair value recognised in other

NRBESH comprehensive income 43,405 63,870
M12831H As at December 31 229,028 185,623

202412 A31H K&2023F 128
318 DEAEZERNEME
ERIELMERFES - JELTHE
HEFNAABEZLBO)=H
MIZKR(E : ()% LA L8
ETRRIMZELLLREERN - I
MAJ LR E AR MAERRE
BN EEBEREAHRAE -
IH - ITEMEHE B EE8MT
Ko N EEREFELETSA L
LEZEHEE - BMAMERMN
FRERNEARTIEERER
Fltth, R Fth 38 00,8 45% + Bl
NS B A E b 2 T UR S A 0,
BMALNMBEEIL(2023F : 9B &
JL) °

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, financial
assets categorised as Level 3 are unlisted equity securities.
The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined
with reference to (i) latest market transaction price; or (ii)
multiples of comparable listed companies in the market, such
as price/earnings ratios of comparables, or EV/EBITDA ratios
per Bloomberg. The fair value is positively correlated to these
market comparable parameters. Had all of the significant
unobservable valuation inputs applied on the valuation
techniques favourably/unfavourably increased/decreased by
5%, the Group's other comprehensive income would have
increased/decreased by $11 million (2023: $9 million).
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9 AAREEFTE# 9 FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT (conminuen)
(@) BAAEBEEFENEREERSA (@) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
&(E) (continued)
EHEE=FRIABEHTENEZE Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
afl
202412 A31H - AEEER As at December 31, 2024, the valuation method and significant
AT EEAERME B 0] B 52 unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the
ANESF2EESBAZE=-EH &R Group's financial assets classified as Level 3 are as follows:
BENRAEE:
BEETAEBER AAEERAE
EAMEERER HERAESE THE HALEENRR
Significant
unobservable Relationship of
Valuation valuation unobservable
model used inputs parameters Average inputs to fair value
LT s RE BFEE(HEX) 19.09 XS
BREH (2023F :1382)  LRBERAS
Unlisted equity ~ Market-comparable Earnings multiples (price/ The higher the ratio, the
securities approach earnings ratios) higher the fair value
EEEERHERNE 761 EEAS-
BIE - HEMEEA (203F : 661)  AREERS
BFIEE
EV/EBITDA multiples The higher the multiple,
the higher the fair value
(R VY cReiiE 37% WEAS -
(2023F : 40%)  RAEERDE
Marketability discount The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value
EERE N/A  HraEfm
(2023FF : 8%)  ARBERE
Pricing calibration The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value
o FREIZRIRAT (T2MN) BRI BRAR 2024 F 53R
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(B4 RFERRSD -

9 AREEFEw

(b) FRAABEFENTHMEER
afE
EHEEHBRRER LR AAE
BITHNEREENBEIER
RIRE MAIRIT P RIRTTEVES
7 FRERTTHIE - F OB
BEANEREE  RITEFK T
FEREEZEBIASRIREERK
AFAENEMEE - SLERE
EREHRK AR ETRHE AR
FTE - HEAMBARN R EIFR
NABEINTHEREEIEE
RBTNERNGET  TPF
FoEREHETLENEREE
MEBRTHEBERES - GLE
BEERBGRAGTE -

i) BEFERTRARRITH
7 FHRIRITHE ~ #ZE
BhBEEANLBEENE
BrETHENEHBEE
BUERBEIRENEMNERE
B TE—FAH -
it EFREEREAAEE
A -

i) MITEN BEFEMHNES
S §
REARITER - FPER
MEZRBEA/TE  HE
R Is ARG E o Bt - H
FREEEEAABEMRS -

i) BREBEEETTEHREMEE
FIE R1TR M E 75 5
RESK AT ENZZFNA
REERAERAR EER
EMESFHERNITEEE °
FHAME BB M 27 M R
41 ¢

AT ITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

9 FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENT (conminuep)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

Financial assets and liabilities that are not presented at
their fair value on the consolidated statement of financial
position mainly represent cash and balances with banks
and central banks, placements with banks, financial assets
held under reverse repurchase agreements, advances to
banks, advances to customers and trade bills, and other
assets measured at amortised cost. These financial assets are
measured at amortised cost less ECL. Financial liabilities not
presented at their fair value on the consolidated statement
of financial position mainly represent deposits and balances
of banks, deposits from customers, financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements and other debt securities issued which
are measured at amortised cost.

i) Cash and balances with banks and central banks,
placements with banks, financial assets held under
reverse repurchase agreements, and financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements
These balances are mainly priced at market interest rates
and mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying
values approximate the fair values.

ii)  Advances to banks, advances to customers and trade
bills
Majority of the advances to banks, advances to
customers and trade bills are on floating rate terms, bear
interest at prevailing market interest rate. Accordingly,
their carrying values approximate the fair values.

iii)  Other assets measured at amortised cost and other
debt securities issued
The fair value of securities measured at amortised cost is
determined using the same approach as those securities
measured at fair value. Further details are described in
Note 27 and Note 41.
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(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

10 KEEMEERSHMEME 10 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(a) ®RMEE (@) Financial assets
THemEESEE BT
W R AR R YRR
AR -

The following financial assets are subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements or similar

agreements:
720245128318 As at December 31, 2024
FEGEHBRRET
HHNEREE
Related amounts not
offsetin the
consolidated statement
of financial position
E&E

BHRRR o)
BHEN BEMRRR

ERALH CRISH ZHNIE KB EY
BELE SEAE BEFE SRIE ZEEAR FE
Gross Net

amountsof amounts of
recognised financial

financial assets
liabilities  presented
Gross setoff in the in the
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised  statement  statement Cash
financial  of financial  of financial Financial collateral
assets position position instruments received Netamount
TEEREE Derivative financial assets 8,104,016 (79,100) 8,024,916 (43,223) (1,168,905) 6,812,788
HEfEE Other assets 248939 (182,278) 66,661 - - 66,661

8,352,955 (261,378) 8,091,577 (43,223) (1,168,905 6,879,449

o RERLRIEST () RBRAT 2024555 (19—
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

10 IKHEMEEREREAME 10 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

() FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (conuen)
(a) Z2REEE) (a) Financial assets (continued)
T emEESHE B8 H The following financial assets are subject to offsetting,
R FEEEE T P s B Ui enforceable master netting arrangements or similar
ZRVRR o (&) agreements: (continued)
72023F12H31H As at December 31,2023
NGB BMRAKS
BRAABEEE
Related amounts not
offset in the

consolidated statement
of financial position

iZots
FBMRE yiZots
BHEN MBRRE

ERAcH CHR2R 2B0eR D)
BELE AREE AEFE SRIA HRe#fm HE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts
financial  of financial
liabilities assets
setoff  presented
Gross inthe inthe
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated
recognised  statement  statement Cash
financial ~ offinancial  of financial Financial collateral
assets position position  instruments received  Netamount
TESREE Derivative financial assets 1974583 (324 1971341 (43450)  (1,083,112) 844,779
WEEBEEAS  Finandial assets held under
TREE reverse repurchase
agreements 2023967 - 2,023,967 (2,023967) - -
A EE Other assets 140959 (65,226) 75733 - - 75733

4,139,509 (68468) 4,071,041 (2067417)  (1,083112) 920512
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(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

10 IKHEMEEREREAME 10 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

() FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (conmmuen)
(b) ZREME (b)  Financial liabilities
Ty cmaEEyE - BEuTh The following financial liabilities are subject to offsetting,
R FEIEE T L PE s B L9 enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
FEAHR o agreements:
72024512A31H As at December 31, 2024
FEGEHBRR R
BEHNARSE
Related amounts not

offsetin the
consolidated statement
of financial position

ERe
BHRRR o)
BHEN BEMRRR

ERZLR CHIALR 2HNER ER Y
BEAE KELE AEFE SRIA REEAm R
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts of
financial financial
assets liabilities
setoff  presented
Gross inthe inthe
amounts of consolidated consolidated
recognised  statement  statement Cash
financial  offinancial  of financial Financial collateral

liabilities position position instruments  advanced Netamount

TELEAR Derivative financial liabilities 6,567,913 (79,100) 6,488,813 (43,223) 1,340,719 7,786,309
Bl B 7575 T A Financial assets sold under
SREE repurchase agreements 3,425,121 - 3425121  (3/425,121) = -

HipaE Other liabilities 195818  (182,278) 13,540 = = 13,540

10,188,852 (261,378) 9,927,474  (3,468,344) 1,340,719 7,799,849

o RERLIRIEAT () RBRAT 2024555 (195——
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

10 IKHEMEEREREAME 10 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

() FINANCIAL LIABILITIES conmuen)
b)) s@tBEaE (8) (b) Financial liabilities (continued)
Ty emaETEE - EuTh The following financial liabilities are subject to offsetting,
B FREAEE T RE TP Bl enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
EAIRMR o () agreements: (continued)
MR2023%F12A31H As at December 31, 2023
TEGEHBRRK S
BHEEREE
Related amounts not
offsetinthe

consolidated statement
of financial position

iy
HHMRE iy
BHEN BHRRE

ERRLE CHEILE EZRNER W &
BESE AELE BEFE S@IAE HAm B
Gross Net
amountsof  amounts of
recognised financial
financial liabilities
assetssetoff  presented
Gross inthe inthe
amounts of  consolidated  consolidated
recognised  statement  statement Cash
financial  offinancial  of financial Financial collateral
liabilities position position  instruments advanced  Netamount
TELRARE Derivative financial liabilities 1334356 (3242) 1331114 (43450) 1,141,635 2429299
EEEHE T HER Financial assets sold under
TREE repurchase agreements 9,370,572 - 9370572 (9370572 - -
HiafE Other liabilities 65,463 (65,226) 237 - - 237
10,770,391 (68468) 10,701,923 (9414,022) 1,141,635 2429536
HRETERENFEEE T RS For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable
UM EAMARN S FEEN master netting arrangements or similar arrangements above,
BfE AEEHERZHF 2 HEH each agreement between the Group and the counterparty
BHhHBEHEATEE R ERRF allows for net settlement of the relevant financial assets and
HMEAELENBERLT  BHEEN liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis, in the
CTRMEEMNBEETIELE - 0 absence of such an election, financial assets and liabilities will
BRBELEZRR  AlemEEMN be settled on a gross basis, however, each party to the master
BEBREBEELELE  BF8E netting agreement or similar agreement will have the option
HEIHEIEUBENST L to settle all such amounts on a net basis in the event of default
BERES—HENR  EEH of the other party.

FIE S RIAFEGEE
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(BRAFRIEERASN -

11 FMEWAZEEE

LAB RS FITH7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

11 NETINTEREST INCOME

2024 2023
FE WA Interest income
K E BRI F 5 B 897 S A Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate
FRERTTRHEMIRITER Placements and advances to banks 3,347,844 3,214,929
RITER BFEFX Advances to banks, advances to
B52E customers and trade bills 14,008,079 13,194,067
BARBEFEHEEZEFHTA Financial assets measured at fair value
Hir2EmWENEeREE through other comprehensive income 4,865,127 3,779,401
RESRK A ENEMEE Other assets measured at amortised cost 28,339 55,788
MEW A 4% Total interest income 22,249,389 20,244,185
FEFZH Interest expense
A BB E AR EZE A Interest expense arising from financial
1Ea 2 @ B & T8 5 liabilities that are not measured at
fair value through profit or loss
RITH TR MNEETF Deposits and balances with banks (530,425) (908,223)
BEEFER Deposits from customers (13,565,154) (12,742,523)
BEITHMERES Other debt securities issued (44,560) (29,729)
(14,140,139) (13,680,475)
HEEEF ST H Interest expense arising from lease liabilities (16,786) (16,737)
FEX 4L Total interest expense (14,156,925) (13,697,212)
FIEW A FEEE Net interest income 8,092,464 6,546,973

RERLRIEST () ROBRAT 2024555 (19—
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

12 FAERASWAFEE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

2024 2023
FEERBASWA Fees and commission income
AR Investment services 215,974 182,272
B A5 ] MR AR Securities broking and related services 99,642 91,333
1R B AR 7% Insurance 296,208 232,393
ER - GENRFEIRE Remittance, settlement and account
management fees 199,198 159,408
WE B RN IERA R R Fees received from intermediate holding
RAWB AR ZREE company and a fellow subsidiary
(B 5E47) (Note 47) 541,219 517,156
Bo5/ME Trade finance 21,592 22811
(Hi:RS Cards 123,594 145,986
=B R Credit facilities 383,753 354,595
HAth Others 1,708 2,006
FEERASWAALE Total fees and commission income 1,882,888 1,707,960
FEERAEIH Fees and commission expense
ERAR Cards (77,067) (71,676)
P =3 Brokerage (11,522) (5,680)
X TFHRNMERAR R Fees paid to intermediate holding
RRMEB AR ZRIEE company and fellow subsidiaries
(Bt3E47) (Note 47) (10,270) (2,465)
EEERF Settlement accounts (16,718) (14,674)
HAth Others (59,074) (62,452)
FEENAS I HARE Total fees and commission expense (174,651) (156,947)
FEERASWAEE Net fees and commission income 1,708,237 1,551,013
HARE : Of which arise from:
FURAREEBEFER Financial assets or financial liabilities that
H##t ABxRz are not measured at fair value through
THEENSREBE profit or loss
—FEERASKA — Fee and commission income 528,939 523,392
—FEENAESTH — Fee and commission expense 77,067 71,676
EEMEMX TS Trust and other fiduciary activities
—FEELATHRA — Fee and commission income 69,833 44917
—FEEREeTH — Fee and commission expense 12,429 5,246
o
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(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

R W= FHE 13 NET TRADING INCOME
2024 2023
RZEB RN Net gains from trading activities
SINGEE Foreign exchange 289,319 224,178
FZRPTHET A Interest rate derivatives 462,738 370,467
HEMESTA Other debt instruments 168,458 108,578
Hith Others (2,816) (2,697)
____________________ 917,699 700,526
HtR 5 (B%), s Other trading (loss)/income
_PABEEANEMMIME  Hedge ineffectiveness on fair value hedge 760, 4526
RN FE Net trading income 916,239 705,052
REW MIRE AR AT ENHMEE There was no net trading income relating to other assets measured
HENR SR FEE(2023F ) at amortised cost in the current year (2023: Nil).
EBEEBEDIAMEETAE 14 NETLOSSES FROM FINANCIAL

mNEMITAEBLFERE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2024 2023
BEREBEANBETAER Changes in fair value of structured
ERETFRE deposits designated at fair value
N BEE through profit or loss 516,670 17,475

PERRRT(EH) BEARAT 2020558 (99—
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(BREERIFERRSN - UBHEETJTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

15 Hifk=E WA 15 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2024 2023
% 2 WA Dividend income
JELET Unlisted 1,552 5,520
=il Listed 314 272
1,866 5,792
KEREWA Operating leases income 48,749 36,528
Hith Others 19,572 28,010
W Total 70,187 70,330
16 REEH 16 OPERATING EXPENSES
2024 2023
BT Staff costs
FreMEAEF Salaries and other benefits 1,890,185 1,913,192
BERE R ATEESER Pension and provident fund costs 100,218 92,818
1,990,403 2,006,010
—R AT A General and administrative expenses
mER® Rental expenses 108,419 108,001
H YR Other premises and equipment 131,990 113,507
HEER Marketing expenses 153,998 158,279
EETEN NS Auditors’ remuneration 7,002 6,845
BERBEEA Professional fees 68,969 65,056
HipsezE A Other operating expenses 232,406 226,136
702,784 677,824
e Depreciation
FEE Fixed assets 237,133 254,101
FREEE Right-of-use assets 237,095 240,705
474,228 494,806
4z Total 3,167,415 3,178,640
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(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

17 AHEREXFTRER

17 NET CHARGE ON EXPECTED CREDIT

LOSSES
2024 2023
g EEETIR (BT A BB ) F 58 New allowances charged, net of
allowance releases 263,549 1,016,534
AR E Bz & 5 e Recoveries of amounts previously written off (45,969) (58,562)
TEHE BRI EE Net charge on expected credit losses 217,580 957,972
EER Attributable to:
HEIRIT R RIBITHET K Balances with banks and central banks and
FHERTTRIAR placements with banks 485 (450)
RITER BPEZRRESZEE  Advances to banks, advances to customers
and trade bills 184,146 892,902
BALBEAEAEHEESHE A Financial assets measured at fair value
Hith2mEW S RE E through other comprehensive income 30,548 22,450
RGBT ENEMEE Other assets measured at amortised cost (1,169) (2,295)
Himm&EE Other assets 4,058 1,458
ERNEMEENREAE Loan and other credit related commitments (488) 43,907
EHEREKRTIRBE Net charge on expected credit losses 217,580 957,972
2 2 2 2
18 EERERER 18 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) EE=M< (@) Directors’ emoluments
RIREBCR BHEEI ) E38301) 1§ Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
RAABI(HBEEFNZER) R of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and part 2 of the
BIYE2E - BHEEME 2FF1E Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
BEAT : Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2024 2023
ik Fees 2,750 2,466
e Salaries 4,838 4,838
BIETEAL Discretionary bonuses 764 680
NIESHER Contributions to provident fund 484 484
HE Total 8,836 8,468
(b) EERNXRE REFBAHAMNEK (b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
Flz or contracts
AT~ HEEMZERAR - B No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
nE - ARWEBRARIHEGERE relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank, or any of
RE KRB ANF R AEREE - its holding companies, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or joint
¥9,8 78 51 3 E{A] B AN 2 B 3 75 4 venture was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a
AMATEEEERAREREE material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
AMBHRZ S ~ LHEAH) - end of the year or at any time during the year.
o PERIRT(EH) BEERAT 2020558 Q0)——
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

19 BiIE 19 TAXATION
(a) HEBBRATNHESR: (a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:
2024 2023
EHHRE-FBANEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
RNEEFHE Provision for the year 1,109,225 841,483
TEEREBETZ Under-provision in respect of prior years 2 7,969
1,109,227 849,452
EHFE - SN Current tax - Overseas
REZEHR Provision for the year 36 14
REFTEH Withholding tax for the year 20,130 14,115
20,166 14,129
ELERIE Deferred tax
R E R e E SN D Origination and reversal of temporary
. differences (2,743) (68,090)
1,126,650 795,491
WHEEBHNTENESHEEE The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2024 is calculated
R[S B 15 5T FE AT B s A A at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
16.5% (20234 : 16.5%) BYF1 X &t the year. Taxation for overseas transactions are charged at the
E o [N GRRIB IR 534 appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the countries in
FrERZFERZIRNITHRESE o which the transactions took place.
HZE204F12831HIEEE - K For the year ended December 31, 2024, the effective income
KB A B E /15.99% (2023 tax rate was 15.99% (2023: 16.57%).

F 1 1657%) °
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19 #HIE =) 19 TAXATION (conminuep)
(b) BEIHNESHEANRBABR (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

FTENEER at applicable tax rates:

2024 2023

B 75 & ) Profit before taxation 7,046,511 4,799,716

RRRIEMBEERESHFIA  Notional tax on profit before tax,

EARKRAERTADEFA  calculated at the rates applicable to
ZERIE profits in the countries concerned 1,162,674 791,953
AT R Income not subject to taxation (61,590) (28,341)
RN Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 5,288 10,287

TEEREBETR Under-provision in prior years 2 7,969

EINEIIFL Overseas withholding tax 20,130 14,115

Hi Other 146 (492)

BRMIES L Actual tax expense 1,126,650 795,491

20 DEER 20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(a) ¥HmEDE (@) Reportable segments

RNEEIRE MRS LE PR The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are

R DEEIRER - AEEZE organised by products services and customer types. In a

FIAT OB RS D E - 7R EH manner consistent with the way in which information is

BRDERKXRBTHEITHER reported internally to the executive management for the

BIEAMBBREERNTX -5 - purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,

the Group has presented the following four reportable
segments.

(i) RAE BEBREFRITEE (i)  Corporate, institutional and commercial banking
AOHEEZEALE € This segment mainly represents the provision of a
RO R R EZ range of financial products and services to corporations,
e BEMMRE - ZEE financial institutions and small and medium sized
mMREETERREREE enterprises. The products and services mainly include
P IREER - BEREE commercial loans, syndicated loans, commercial
FoBEHME  INEEEIN mortgages, trade financing, foreign exchange and
REIFERRS deposit-taking activities.

o PERIRT(EH) BEARAT 2020558 Q03—
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(B4 RFERRSD -

20 D EER #)
(a) WMEDEW(Z)
(i) BEHTEE
AP BEERIEMEARS
R ET L RE SR
%o ZEESNBEEES
EEERBES  EAR
o EARER SER
& BSERRE  HNER
T OHEEL R RESIE
R o

\

oo

(iii) MEXEBREEM
R BERE ATV & 7%
EKERESER - BIFRIT
RAXE¥MERHRER
BITHE - R TEaEE
BILA ITHETARINES
X5 ARREPETITE
TEARXZWMINER S - [
- A RPRE R AEE
EERBESNR - BHEE

TERES -

(iv) Bt
EMEBETERFETUR
& FRRIREM -

DHEENBBETEBRERTHR
IR - ROTREPER - RE
BHE ITETRIA  RITHEF
RMETF EPERRCEITH
AR E S °

DEEHE D B M
Ty 2RZE D #FTE L A S
WARFEENBEWAIARZ
SNMMEENEBERSEREE
EYTEREIHRSL ©

AEE N E2RARIRSFEF
WAMFEERABEFRA - [
RITHEEE BT 2R EFR
AMFEELRMBEFRARERE
5% RILAA RO BIAFE
FRAMFEE RASFRAT
o

AT ITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (conminuen)

(a)

Reportable segments (continued)

(i)  Consumer banking

This segment mainly represents the provision of a
range of financial products and services to individual
customers. The products and services mainly comprise
residential mortgages, personal loans, credit cards, auto-
financing, deposit-taking activities, foreign exchange,
wealth management, insurance and securities agency
services.

(iii)  Treasury & management pool

This segment covers the Bank’s treasury operations
and management of shareholders’ funds. The
Treasury Division enters into inter-bank money market
transactions and invests in debt instruments. It also
trades in debt instruments, derivatives and foreign
currency for its own account and carries out customer
driven derivatives such as foreign currency transactions.
Its function also includes the management of the
Group's overall liquidity position, including the issuance
of certificates of deposit.

(iv) Others
This segment mainly represents investments in premises,
subsidiaries and others.

Segment assets and liabilities are mainly composed of
placement with banks, advances to banks and customers,
investment securities, derivatives financial instruments,
deposits and balances with banks, deposits from customers
and other debt securities issued.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to interest income and fee and
commission income generated by these segments and the
expenses incurred by these segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
these segments.

The primary revenue stream of the Group is derived from net
interest income and net fees and commission income. The
executive management relies to a large extent on net interest
income and net fees and commission income in managing
its business. Hence, net interest income and net fees and
commission income for all reportable segments are presented
under segmental information.
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(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

20 D EBE R (=) 20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (conmnuen)
(a) HEDEBE) (@) Reportable segments (continued)
2024
NGIRY: Y

EGES 58 HEXE
ROXE  ROXE  REER Rt 2WERE 4y

Corporate,
institutional
and Treasury & Inter-
commercial ~ Consumer management segment
banking banking pool Others elimination Total

MEMAFE Netinterest income 3660385 1670975 2,738,218 22,886 - 8092464
FEERNBSWAZE  Netfees and commission income 553,065 559,015 (34,668) 630,825 - 1708237
BEWABE Total operating income
— 4N - External 7514488  (4,600,702) 6,846,103 656,755 - 10416,644
-n5 - Inter-segment (3,093,802) 6,991,424  (3,3897,622) - - -
Nt Total operating income 4,420,686 2,390,722 2,948,481 656,755 - 10,416,644
& Depreciation (107,739) (279,821) (31,638) (55,030) - (474,228)
BEERER Total operating expenses (812445  (1,621299)  (188,712)  (544,959) - (3167,415)
ABRERLN Operating profit before impairment losses

Syl 3,608,241 769423 2,759,769 111,796 - 7,492
BEERREAREM  (Charge on)/release of expected credit

WEGHE) /D losses and other impaiment (82331)  (1292270) (5,906) (73) - (217,580)
FBEWA /(%) Non-operatingincome/{losses) (12) (102) - 14976 = 14,862
BHAER Profit before taxation 3,525,898 640,051 2,753,863 126,699 - 7,046,511
R024%12A831H As at December 31,2024
BENE Total assets 286,180,259 48,610,747 179,775,430 8,507,544 (822,172) 522,251,808
BENE Total liabilities 181,432,048 211,473 557 25,539,759 5,396,459 (822,172) 423,019,651
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20 7 HER @) 20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (conrusp)
(a) HEDEBE) (@) Reportable segments (continued)
2023
) - i
R@% TE  WEEHR
BOEE  BOEEK ERH L il bk = ag
Corporate,
institutional
and Treasury & Inter-
commercial ~ Consumer  management segment
banking banking pool Others  elimination Total
HERAFE Netinterestincome 3110838 1457912 1956108 2115 - 6546973
FEENBEWAZE  Netfees and commission income 517506 482600 (29,844) 580751 - 1,551,013
BEW LT Total operating income
— N - External 5647384 (3072,820) 5,673,760 678747 - 8,927,071
-n8 - Inter-segment (1875959 5080677 (3197137) (7.581) - -
mEWA\ER Total operating income AL 2007857 2476613 671,166 - 89707
& Depreciation (108,335) (303,247) (25354) (57869) - (494,805)
BEEReE Total operating expenses (83724 (1593200 Q17203 (531012 - (378640)
ANBRERAN Operating profit before impairment losses
-yl 293,201 41465 2259420 140,154 VL]
FHERBAREM  (Charge on)/release of expected credit
REGHR) /B losses and other impaiment (977416) 12642 8257 (1455) - (957.972)
FEEWA /() Non-operating income/{losses) - - - 9257 - 9257
bl Profit before taxation 1.956,785 477298 2,261,677 147,956 - 4799716
0235124318 As at December 31,2023
BENE Total assets 249848516 53622681 183471,194 7818953 (903669) 493857675
BELE Total liabilities 204145749 188,604,387 18958476 5,590,069 (903669) 416,395,012
HAOHFE FEURM2024FF Certain figures have been restated to reflect transfer of client
DEPRFPHEBRIENR base among segments in 2024.
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(BRAFRIEERASN -

20 DEEF »)

LAB RS FITH7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (conminuep)

(b) HEER (b) Geographical information
TRIRAEBKEINAREH The following table sets out information about the
WA~ BREADES - BEELE - geographical location of the Group’s revenue from external
BERTE  BTIHERDEE - =% customers, profit before taxation, total assets, total liabilities,
BEBENAESHEMNER - specified non-current assets, contingent liabilities and
BE M Z AT BT AU commitments. The geographical location is based on the
B nWEENEEZREFAEH principal place of location. Segment assets or liabilities are
2D  BERRDEEBRTEET based on the geographical location of the asset or liabilities.
BE - - FREEEMPREEE Specified non-current assets comprise fixed assets, right-of-use
D - 2B EIERBEEN assets and interest in a joint venture. The geographical location
e BT EESREERAN is based on the physical location of the asset for fixed assets,
THE D BEEENNREED and the location of the operation to which they are allocated
¥wEam - BRI D BCRY ST AT for intangible assets and interest in a joint venture.

e &7 o
H BEFREB  DHEE
WARE RBAEN 2 BESE  BREE BB RER
Total Profit Specified  Contingent
operating before Total Total  non-current liabilities and
income taxation assets liabilities assets commitments
720245128318 AsatDecember 31,2024
B GEf) Hong Kong (place of domicle) 10,416,644 7,046,511 522,251,808 423019651  5157,077 95371938
g BEHENE  HAHEE
WABE RWAEN AERE  BRAE EE RAR
Total Profit Specified ~ Contingent
operating before Total Total  non-current liabilities and
income taxation assets liabilities assets  commitments
R2023%12A318  Asat December 31,2023
& () Hong Kong (place of domicile) 8927071 4799716 493857675 416395012 5378201 91,228,446
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

21 BEHMELRTR B HREEST 21 CASHAND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND

W& =F CENTRAL BANKS
2024 2023
EFRE Cash on hand 248,493 182,172
HIRITHEF Balances with banks 4,070,084 6,410,174
ERRIBITHETF Balances with central banks 388,079 1,422,973
H—1E B AR EETFRIRTTHIE  Placements with banks maturing within
one month 30,158,224 38,939,448
WS AEIRTT R RIFITH Gross cash and balances with banks and
EIr B central banks 34,864,880 46,954,767
B TEERERIBRER Less: Expected credit loss allowances
FE—FREER - T A AR Stage 1: 12-month ECL
(EEEEES (957) (658)
HEMAERITRPRBITH Net cash and balances with banks and
1R central banks 34,863,923 46,954,109
22 FHUERITRIA 22 PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS
2024 2023
R—2+ @A REH Maturing between one and twelve months 23,511,590 25,612,145
BB+ — & A B8 Maturing over twelve months 14,023,827 15,020,987
TR T IAAASE Gross placements with banks 37,535,417 40,633,132
B TEERE B R EE Less: Expected credit loss allowances
—PEEL - A A TEHS Stage 1: 12-month ECL
EREX (578) (392)
ERETRERE Net placements with banks 37,534,839 40,632,740
K& Tﬁ}ﬂ:’}@—i—:1 A B B 17 BURTT Majority of placement with banks maturing over twelve months are
HIBHRERE MG NEEE I on floating rate terms, bear interest at prevailing market interest rate,
E—FANEE - Bt - HEREEER therefore their carrying values approximate the fair values.

RAEERE -

23 ¥EBIHZEEANESEE 23 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER REVERSE

= REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS
PoEHZE ANTREEZEEE Financial assets held under reverse repurchase agreements by
ESRuT underlying assets are shown as follows:
2024 2023
FRIRITEITNERES Debt securities issued by central banks = 2,023,967
R ?Eﬁm B2 Less: Expected credit loss allowances
—PER - T ZEAFEE Stage 1: 12-month ECL
1ZFHTi9E - _

FEBIHEEANSHEETE  Netfinancial assets held under reverse

repurchase agreements

2,023,967

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)



(BRAFRIEERASN -

e MBHRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LAB RS FITH7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

24 RTEH - ZEEBEHKE 24 ADVANCES TO BANKS, ADVANCES TO
CUSTOMERS AND TRADE BILLS

CES

2024 2023
RITER Advances to banks
RITE AR Gross advances to banks 7,321,376 266,156
- TEER(E RIE R Less: Expected credit loss allowances
F—PEER - T EATEE Stage 1: 12-month ECL
EAEX (15,543) (559)
RITEFFEE Net advances to banks 7,305,833 265,597
ZEFER Advances to customers
NRIBRFERBERE Gross advances to corporate customers 227,166,896 209,803,722
BARFEZ4a%E Gross advances to personal customers 50,685,681 54,200,751
B EIAAEE Gross advances to customers 277,852,577 264,004,473
B TEEAE RIB R ER Less: Expected credit loss allowances
F—PEE - T A A EH Stage 1: 12-month ECL
EAEX (1,059,908) (949,189)
E MR FESTEEE Stage 2: Lifetime ECL but not
REXEREEERARE credit-impaired (530,282) (656,505)
FoFERER - FEMESE Stage 3: Lifetime ECL and
REXREEEERRE credit-impaired (576,603) (2,707,090)
-0 %_%j@;‘_é"_ﬁ_%_,ﬁl __________ Net advances to customers 275,685,784 259,691,689
ES5EE Trade bills
8o ER B Gross trade bills 2,865 26,169
B TEEAE RIB R ERE Less: Expected credit loss allowances
F—PEER - T ATEE Stage 1: 12-month ECL
FEREX (4) (1)
FPEER - FERTEHER Stage 2: Lifetime ECL but not
BREREEFEARE credit-impaired - -
B5REFE Net trade bills 2,861 26,158
RITEF - BEFEFK Net advances to banks, advances to
ESERFERE customers and trade bills 282,994,478 259,983,444
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

24 RITEH - EFEH%KE 24 ADVANCES TO BANKS, ADVANCES TO

SEE » CUSTOMERS AND TRADE BILLS (conminuep)

(a) MITEX EFEFEFKREZSERE (a)
HEREABEMERERABXLAES
By 5 B
TRIRTEHZE2004%F12H831H
IHFERTER  BFERNLE
SEENERmAEMBAERE

Bt _EAEBEREBEL 78
HEHERBR D EEERAR

Movement in gross carrying amount and expected credit
loss allowances on advances to banks, advances to
customers and trade bills

Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and
expected credit loss allowances on advances to banks,
advances to customers and trade bills for the year ended
December 31, 2024. Explanation of the terms: 12-month ECL,
lifetime ECL and credit-impaired are included in Note 8(a)(x).

EVFHAREE -

FERRE EREERAE
Non-credit impaired Credit impaired
£-R& 154 #=E8 fag
Stage 1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
BHER RHER BHER BHER
REGE BXEF BESE BAER REAE BXEF GESE BAER
Gross Gross Gross Gross
carrying ECL  camying ECL  camying EL  camying ECL
amount allowance amount  allowance amount allowance amount allowance
R024E1 81 ML Balance as at January 1, 2024 246,034,505 949,759 15437310 656,505 2824983 2,707,090 264,296,798 4313354
Epra-Eg Transfer tostage I
TZEARSEREX 12month ECL 41079 167416 (4172179)  (167416) = - - .
EHEEER: Transfer to stage 2:
GEERAERER Ifetime ECL not creditimpaired
EREEERAE (7909634) (17675 790963 17675 = . 2 -
BYEERR - Transfer o stage 3
FESRAERES Ifetime ECL credit-mpaired
REREGEREE (88159  (6422) (04379 (3347 292538 39769 = =
REsENNERER New financial assets originated
or purchased* 105,846,221 416392 1,615,349 144293 216,329 13,539 107,677,899 574,224
BALEINEREE Finandialassets that have been
derecognised (76,861,028)  (306,47)  (7,523,886)  (250,621) (51,836) (57,742) (84,436,750 (614,610)
i Write-offs - - - - (2361,129) (2361,129) (2361,129) (2,361,129)
WEEHHENEE Recoveries of amounts previously
written-offs - - - - - 45,969 - 45,969
EiEE Net remeasurements (including
(SER2ENE() changes in ik parameters) - (12419) - 16340 - 190442 - 29486
NERAHED Foreign exchange and
other movements - (3572) - (47) - (1,335) - (4.954)
R04E B3I BNER BalanceasatDecember31, 204 271194084 1075455 13061849 530282 920885 576,603 285176818 2,182,340

* B BERITER

EFPERR

BEORBERNABRFE KR - 1

During the period, all advances to banks, advances to customers and

trade bills were initially classified in Stage 1 and were not considered

ERESBAR IR SDEER
FRME - EREoRERSRIESE
ARHEERBAS _ERAFE=
B

as credit-impaired at the time of origination or purchase. Some were
subsequently transferred into Stage 2 or Stage 3 based on the result of
credit assessments.
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(BRAFRIEERASN -

24 SRITER - BEFEXRRE
G EL 1)

(a)

LAB RS FITH7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

24 ADVANCES TO BANKS, ADVANCESTO
CUSTOMERS AND TRADE BILLS (conminuep)

BITEF BFERREZERE (@) Movement in gross carrying amount and expected credit
HWERmEBZENTFAEEAE L ERE loss allowances on advances to banks, advances to
(2 customers and trade bills (continued)
TERYRTEE2023F12831H Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and
IHFERTER  BFEZNLE expected credit loss allowances on advances to banks,
SEENEEmMEBMBEZAE advances to customers and trade bills for the year ended
KEFEEESOEE - M5E80a)X) December 31, 2023. Explanation of the terms: 12-month ECL,
W+ _—(ABTBEA=ZREL - 78& lifetime ECL and credit-impaired are included in Note 8(a)(x).
HMERERABAREEEEAR
B {EH AR -
FERAE e
Non-credit impaired Crecit impaired
kR £-RR 22kR g
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ESER BHER ESER BHER
FHSE BXEE KEEE BXEE FEEE  BREE REEE  BRER
(G105 (105 (61055 (105
anying fL caning tt canying Bl aming tL
amount allowance amount allowance amount allowance amount  allowance
R3E 1 RIBMER Balance as at January 1, 2023 260025561 190875 11218573 STIAST 2861260 2347085 2741053% 3709611
EHEE-RR: Transferto stage I
T RARBERRL 12:month ECL W7 W6 BB (205) (m) (1) - -
ERZERR: Transfertostage 2
FESREEREX ifetime ECL not creditimpaired
BREEERAE (061800 (730 7061816 17404 (14 (14 - -
EYRERE - Transfer o stage 3
FETREEAEX Ifetime ECL credit-mpaired
REREERAE (6848 019 (407%) (56 19764 el - -
REE T ERER New financalassets ariginated or
purchased® 77569609 07072 1649735 47060 115610 9038 79334954 363,170
BRIRANSHEE Financial asets that have been
derecognised (84835522)  (168340) (3958522 (164518) (1788) (35216) (8879582  (368074)
s Write-offs - - - - (347.720) (347720) (347.720) (347.720)
KEEHEnEE Recoveries of amounts previously
written-offs - - - - - 58562 - 58562
B ERE Net remeasurements (ncluding
(ER2ENZ) changes nrisk parameters) - 21654 - B - 6103% - 879M
NERNZRE Foreign exchange and
other movements - (119 - - - - - (119
ROBENAY ANES Balance as at December 31, 2023 246034505 949759 15437310 056505 2824983 270709  2642%798  43133%4
* BN BRITER REFERRK * During the period, all advances to banks, advances to customers and

BERBROIERF R X
EREZBABTRERSDELER
FRME - HR A RERSRIERE
AREERBAS _ERAE=
B

trade bills were initially classified in Stage 1 and were not considered
as credit-impaired at the time of origination or purchase. Some were
subsequently transferred into Stage 2 or Stage 3 based on the result of
credit assessments.
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(B4 RFERRSD -

24 IRITER - BEFERRE
FEE»)

(@) MITER EFERREZEE

WEREAENBEREREXES
KB (&)
MR2024%F12A31H » EENAQ A
HEMBHERBERE#ES A
586 E &8 7T & 1,580 & & Tt sk (b R
TER BFEFRRESEEHN
TEERZ B R BB BTN 27% &
73% (20234 : 556 & & 7T 3,758
BHETE13%K%87%) - TEFMA
AIAEATEHE B L EHEETAE
RAERIELE T FE AR AR
DECEITRIE ©

FA TEAENEHTIERE
BREBERETORBEER -
AHEENEHEHEERLERE
RERBEIER  FIRENEE
AR AR L EHERR ) B EE RO LR
DHECEHN o

AT ITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

24 ADVANCES TO BANKS, ADVANCESTO
CUSTOMERS AND TRADE BILLS (conminuep)

(a)

Movement in change in expected credit loss on advances
to banks, advances to customers and trade bills (continued)

The retail and wholesale portfolios represented $586 million
and $1,580 million or 27% and 73% (2023: $556 million and
$3,758 million or 13% and 87%) respectively, of the total
expected credit loss allowances on advances to banks,
advances to customers and trade bills as at December 31,
2024. The measurement of expected credit loss allowances for
retail and wholesale portfolios is under the same modelling
framework by applying different risk parameters.

During the year the movement of the retail portfolio is mainly
driven by the consideration of countercyclical measures in
the economic environment. The movement of the wholesale
portfolio is driven by the change in risk parameters from
considering the countercyclical measures in the economic
environment, the newly originated assets and the assets that
have been derecognised during the year.
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24 RITEH - BEFEHKE 24 ADVANCES TO BANKS, ADVANCES TO

ZEE») CUSTOMERS AND TRADE BILLS conmivuen)
(b) BRESEITEF ZEFEFNKE (b) Impaired advances to banks, advances to customers and
SEBNERERBRERE trade bills and ECL allowances

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, impaired
advances to banks, advances to customers and trade bills and
ECL allowances are analysed as follows:

R2024512 A31 8 & 2023%F12 A
318 BRERITER  BFPE
HAMEHEREBRXEES T

I
2024 2023
HEFEXR EEFER
BMEFHDL WEB DL
% of gross 9% of gross
advances advances
ERERFERELE Gross impaired advances 920,885 0.32 2,824,983 1.07
B TEEAZ I8 Less: Expected credit loss
allowances (576,603) (2,707,090)
344,282 117,893
EARFHEERERFE Gross individually assessed
BXmeE impaired advances 858,686 030 2,766,393 105
B TEHA(ZFEBKEME  Less: Expected credit loss
allowances (523,883) (2,665,351)
334,803 101,042
REREZREERAE  Netrealisable value of collateral
HiRmr Al 33 E held against
the impaired advances 588,440 285,574
EREZFERM Covered portion of
BT impaired advances 359,449 210,080
ERERFEFRK Uncovered portion of
IR impaired advances 561,436 2,614,903
920,885 2,824,983

MR2024512 A31 8 & 20235124
318 WEERENE SEE -

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there were
no impaired trade bills.
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

24 RITEH - EFEH%KE 24 ADVANCES TO BANKS, ADVANCES TO

CES 175 CUSTOMERS AND TRADE BILLS (conrinuen)
() MEHAENEBERNKRETE () Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase
contracts
EEENBEERIERERENRA Advances to customers include net investments in equipment
ERmEHERBMNEEBARMET leased to customers under finance leases and hire purchase
EEMREREERE - SRVIB contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The
HpR—MAE—Z2_+tHF - R contracts usually run for an initial period of 1 to 25 years. The
20244 12 A31H &2023% 12 A 31 total minimum lease payments receivable and their present
B EUNSZERENRETENM value as at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are as
HBEWOT : follows:
2024 2023
wIEHEE KBRS Total minimum lease payments 4,376,665 4,473,770
BHEMEMARBBURKU A Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (267,958) (253,186)
SEBEENFKRE Present value of the minimum lease
payments 4,108,707 4,220,584
TEHE B A Expected credit loss allowances
F—PEE : TR Stage 1: 12-month ECL
FEHEREX (23,213) (18,566)
FFRER - TP Stage 2: Lifetime ECL but not
TEEAZ Bk credit-impaired
BAREEERRE (65,055) (9,300)
FFEER - A Stage 3: Lifetime ECL and
TEEEREBA K credit-impaired
BELERRE (20,616) (5,747)
FTEHAE 1B EE Expected credit loss allowances (108,884) (33,613)
& 558 Net investments 3,999,823 4,186,971
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(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

24 SRITER - BEFERKRE
SEB

(c)

MEHENEBARNKRETE
(%)

R2024512 A31 8 & 2023%F12 A
31H » RIEMEENANREIRERN
i ERE R DM T ¢

24 ADVANCES TO BANKS, ADVANCESTO
CUSTOMERS AND TRADE BILLS (conminuep)

(c) Netinvestment in finance leases and hire purchase
contracts (continued)

The residual maturity analysis of the minimum lease payments
and present value of the minimum lease payments as at
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are analysed as

follows:
2024 2023
BREEESHERE Total minimum lease payments
THBIE—F Within one year 1,261,652 1,196,987
FE—EE_F(EF_F) In the first to second year, inclusive 956,836 934,417
F_EFE=—F(BFE=H%F) In the second to third year, inclusive 627,168 641,125
E=—ZFFNFE(ZENEF) In the third to fourth year, inclusive 340,464 375,904
FOERFAF(FERLF) In the fourth to fifth year, inclusive 146,098 167,222
AEL Over five years 1,044,447 1,158,115
4,376,665 4.473,770
2024 2023
REEENREE Present value of the minimum lease
payments
NBsm—F Within one year 1,171,782 1,116,644
FE—ZEE_F(EF_F) In the first to second year, inclusive 876,725 861,143
F_RFE=—F(BFE=H%F) In the second to third year, inclusive 568,363 585,030
F=FFNE(SFENE) In the third to fourth year, inclusive 308,941 342,411
FOEFAF(FERF) In the fourth to fifth year, inclusive 139,306 158,427
AFEUE Over five years 1,043,590 1,156,929
4,108,707 4,220,584
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

25 RAABESFEBRE®SE 25 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR

FAEENESRERE VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2024 2023
RITEITHFRGE Certificates of deposit issued by banks 1,562,939 960,874
IRITMIFRITERIMIEBEETTA)  Other debt securities issued by banks and
HMEBZES other financial intuitions 1,904,193 844,554
TEBITHEMERES Other debt securities issued by corporates 115,400 20,256
RRERITE T EHMERES  Other debt securities issued by
central banks 455,445 80,644
4,037,977 1,906,328
R ETtE ST Analysed by place of listing:
EEB L™ Listed in Hong Kong
FRE Certificates of deposit = 547,881
HA B E Other debt securities 137,048 142,311
137,048 690,192
EEBFEINET Listed outside Hong Kong
HEBES Other debt securities 699,098 214,878
699,098 214,878
LT Unlisted
FRE Certificates of deposit 1,562,939 412,994
Hh S BT EMERZE  Other debt securities issued by
* other financial intuitions 1,183,447 487,364
FRRIRITEITHR FE 5 Trading securities issued by central banks 455,445 80,644
PERTHHMEBRES Other debt securities issued by corporates - 20,256
________________________________________________ 3,201,831 1,001,258
4,037,977 1,906,328
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(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

26 HWAREEFTEBRE®EE 26 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
sFAHMEERENSH AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
EE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2024 2023
A EEFEHREEF AR  Financial assets measured at fair value
2 E Wz B % E through other comprehensive income
BERRE Debt investments
R ERTT BT R TR B R Treasury bills/bonds issued by central
% &% banks/governments 55,965,368 53,416,583
RITHRITETERE Certificates of deposit issued by banks 17,325,912 9,824,292
AT BT B B 578 Other debt securities issued by
R1T R IERITE RIS Banks and non-bank financial
institutions 44,299,834 42,163,354
1% Corporates 26,877,966 23,071,518
144,469,080 128,475,747
IETEBIERS EEFEHAREEE Financial assets designated at fair value
FIABMEE KA B EE  through other comprehensive income
EERE Equity investments
ATHEZITHORE Equity shares issued by
_____ L E\_ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬂ%%_"___________________l\_l_op_—bankﬂnancial institutions 296,656 241,864
144,765,736 128,717,611
RLEmE ST Analysed by place of listing:
EEBLM Listed in Hong Kong
BBRE Debt investments 49,208,333 43,911,527
EEBFINET Listed outside Hong Kong
EHRE Debt investments 43,689,628 34,625,305
WD E Equity investments 67,628 56,241
43,757,256 34,681,546
LT Unlisted
BFIRE Debt investments 51,571,119 49,938,915
ERRE Fquity investments 229,028 185,623
___________________________________________________________________ 51,800,147 50,124,538
144,765,736 128,717,611
EARAEENEBRET  ERRER Under the Group's business strategy, the equity investments are
EREABS TN ?uuﬁ’]ﬁk 8iMm{EL made for being members of the electronic payment system in Hong
IEHﬂT—rﬁfﬁhﬁ BLREIETER Kong and are held for long term purpose. These investments are
BAnE E\@E*%HE Z“@Bufkﬁfﬁi designated at FVOCI. Management had no intention to dispose of
EE o R2024F 124318 - BEE these investments as at December 31, 2024.
Iﬂ IJu:Il = HAIETXﬁ
B 2202412831 A IEFE I EIZA For the year ended December 31, 2024, there was no gross balance
nREBEAEEAEZHTAEMEEK of financial assets measured at FVOC transfer from Level 1 to Level 2
ERERMEEMNE — Eﬁ&%ﬁ}f%&%: that resulted in significant changes to the ECL allowances (2023: Nil).
B WERBHERBALEHLR
BREE(2023F 1 07T) °
o PERRIRT(EH) BEERAT 2020558 Q17—
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26 EARBEFTEEHES
SFAHMEAEKREN S
BEE

(a) RAAREBEFEAEEZBHFAH
fthZERENEHEERLRER
BARERNEH
TRIRTERARBEFERLH
BEEARMEERENERE
ERHERBRERGORFNE
FRABBOE IR o M 5E8(a) () &
T EAEMEREX  F&H
U ERERNEEEERRE

26 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (conminuep)

(a)

Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
on financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The following table shows the reconciliation from the opening
balance to the closing balance of the expected credit loss
allowances on financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Explanation of the terms:
12-month ECL, lifetime ECL and credit-impaired are included in
Note 8(a)(x).

TEH R o
E-BR S-ER 2 E=ZKER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
FED FEE
BHEAR REERA
+=@A BxE BXK
HEHGEA REE =&
BXx fERARE SRAREE e
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month  not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
P2024F1 B1HRIAES:  Balance as at January 1,2024 134,499 18,427 = 152,926
BHEETRE - Transfer to stage 1:
TZERTEMEAEL  12-month ECL - - - _
BHEE R - Transfer to stage 2:
FESEHEHEX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BREEERRE (2) 2 = =
BYEE=IEE Transfer to stage 3:
FEMEHRERIBLR  lifetime ECL credit-impaired
EEEEARE - - = =
BASEAFEREE  Newfinandial assets originated or
purchased 75,403 1,412 - 76,815
ERILFERNEREE  Finandial assets that have been
derecognised (38,728) (13,120) - (51,848)
Wsa Write-offs - - - -
e B s &% Recoveries of amounts previously
written-offs - - - =
B2 Net remeasurements (Including
(2REBR2EHNE) changes in risk parameters) 5,540 1,240 - 6,780
G|\ R0 EL A Foreign exchange and other
movements (1,170) (29) - (1,199)
A2024F12 831 W48 Balance as at December 31, 2024 175,542 7,932 = 183,474
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26 WAABHESFEHEHE®E 26 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
HAHMEEKRBHNSH AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

EE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (conminuep)

(a) BAAREBETERHSZBETAH (@) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
2 EKENSREEFAHER on financial assets measured at fair value through other
BAEENET(Z) comprehensive income (continued)

—BEER “BR BE=ER
Stage Stage 2 Stage 3

BHER RBHER
+ZfEA P SE] BER
BHER REE BEE

BX (FARE GARNE R
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-month  not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
R2023F1 B 1HMER  Balance as at January 1,2023 125,227 5,249 - 130,476
EBREE TR Transfer to stage 1: 12-month ECL
TZEAEHEEREX - - - -
B EE R Transfer to stage 2: lifetime ECL not
7 %E,HH?E,HH%FHTE\% credit-impaired
ERELERRE (137) 137 - -
EHEE MR Transfer to stage 3: lifetime ECL credit-
FEMEHERBAR  impaired
EEEEARE - - - -
BASBEAFEREE  Newfinancial assets originated or
purchased 37,277 - - 37,277
EERMEREE  Financial assets that have been
derecognised (22,868) - - (22,868)
88 Write-offs - - - -
Y m 2 wsHe) 58 Recoveries of amounts previously
written-offs - - - -
B EFE Net remeasurements (Including
(ZRB2EREL) changes in risk parameters) (4,726) 13,038 - 8312
$7|\|:ﬂﬁi\‘rtﬂ"“;"“§b Foreign exchange and other
movements (274) 3 - (271)
F20235 12 431 B HVAE R Balance as at December 31, 2023 134,499 18,427 - 152,926

o RERLRIEST () REBRAT 204558 Q)
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27 IR AT ENEAME 27 OTHER ASSETS MEASURED AT

&= AMORTISED COST
2024 2023
AT BT EAMERFES  Other debt securities issued by
RITMIFIRTT & MR Banks and non-bank financial institutions 722,826 1,577,801
722,826 1,577,801
B TAERERIBRER Less: Expected credit loss allowances
F—FHER Stage 1: 12-month ECL
T ARHREREX (326) (1,495)
722,500 1,576,306
B ETtE ST Analysed by place of listing:
EEBLT Listed in Hong Kong 722,826 1,577,801
722,826 1,577,801
“RrEE: Market value:
= Listed 717,978 1,537,968
717,978 1,537,968

BB AT ENEBEENRAE
BRBRETHEAEMRS - TRIIR
RAHNKE@QM AR BEERITA
AFEMRERK A ENEMEEN
NARBEBEARERA(EE-

The fair value of other assets measured at amortised cost is based on
quoted market bid prices. The following tables show the fair value
hierarchy for other assets measured at amortised cost with fair values,
which measured using fair value hierarchy method as disclosed in
Note 9(a):

EF—EBR F-ER FE=ER HEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
M2024F12A31H As at December 31, 2024
B SHRANETE R Other assets measured at
HEM&EE amortised cost 717,978 = = 717,978
2023128318 As at December 31, 2023
HESBKATTERN Other assets measured at
HEMEE amortised cost 1,537,968 - - 1,537,968

20245 12 A31 B K 20234 12 A 31
B AEEWSBECBHeRIEE -
AEBEVESEEERERES « 8B
BREFESZREHRETES

HZE 2024912831 H M2023F 12 A 31
BIEFE @ RESRKAFTENEMLE
EARTEBAZEHMEHRBHER
BREHENREAES -

There were no overdue financial investments as at December 31,
2024 and December 31, 2023 for the Group. The Group did not
hold any asset-backed securities, mortgage-backed securities and
collateralised debt obligations.

For the year ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
there were no significant movements in the gross balances of
other assets measured at amortised cost that resulted in significant
changes to the expected credit loss allowances.
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27 MEBSBRHAFTTENHME
B

(a)

REBSBHATENEMEERY
FEREXEFNEE

TRINR T IREBHRRAENE
B ERRERBRERHFY)
EFRBENER - MEEs@K
Bt _EARBEREL 78

27 OTHER ASSETS MEASURED AT
AMORTISED COST conminuep)

(a)

Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
on other assets measured at amortised cost

The following table shows the reconciliation from the opening
balance to the closing balance of the expected credit loss
allowances on other assets measured at amortised cost.
Explanation of the terms: 12-month ECL, lifetime ECL and

HRMERBRME EEERAR

EfEHL R -

credit-impaired are included in Note 8(a)(x).

E-RE SRR E=ZKR
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
FEH FEH
EHER REERA
+={EA BXE BAK
EHEA RBE SR
BXx fERARE GRAREE k]
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month  not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
P2024F1 B1HRAS:  Balance as at January 1,2024 1,495 = = 1,495
EHEE TR Transfer to stage 1:
+-EAEEEREBA  12-month ECL - - - _
BHEEMRE - Transfer to stage 2:
FEMBEREREL lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BREEERAE — - - -
BREE R Transfer to stage 3:
FEEHERBELR  lifetime ECL credit-impaired
BEEEERRE - - - -
BARBANEMEE  Newfinandial assets originated or
purchased - - = =
DRIFHERNEREE  Finandial assets that have been
derecognised (763) - - (763)
MsH Write-offs - - - _
Y el 2 sH e & 5R Recoveries of amounts previously
written-offs - = = =
BHIEFE Net remeasurements (Including
(2ER2EBHNE() changes in risk parameters) (402) - - (402)
HNEFDE 4 &) Foreign exchange and other
movements (4) - - (4)
72024812831 A #9458} Balance as at December 31,2024 326 - - 326

RERLRIEST () RBRAT 2024555 Q20—
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27 IR AT ENEAME 27 OTHER ASSETS MEASURED AT

- AMORTISED COST (conminuen)
(a) RESHHATENHMEEZTER (@) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
EHREXEHENEH(Z) on other assets measured at amortised cost (continued)
—[&ER —PEER =[EE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

BHER BHER
+Z{@A P SE] BER
BHER REE BEE

BX (FARE FARE R
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month  notcredit-  ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
20231 A1ER&SR  Balance as at January 1,2023 3,790 - - 3,790
EBEFETBER Transfer to stage 1:
+-EATEHEREL  12-month ECL - - _ _
EREE R Transfer to stage 2:
FEHEREREX lifetime ECL not credit-impaired
BRELERRE - - - -
HYREE=IRE Transfer to stage 3:
ez i ?E,HEVFHTE%& lifetime ECL credit-impaired
E%’?Ja FR{E - - - -
BASEAFEREEE  Newfinandial assets originated or
purchased - - - -
BRILERNSRERE  Financial assets that have been
derecognised (614) - - (614)
k! Write-offs - - _ _
Yo [m 2 M sH e 2 %8 Recoveries of amounts previously
written-offs - - - -
Bt ERE Net remeasurements (Including
(ERB2HMNE ) changes in risk parameters) (1,682) - - (1,682)
’/‘7\\[ﬂﬁ\ﬁﬂ“ Foreign exchange and other
movements 1 - - 1
F20235 12 A31 B AEER  Balance as at December 31, 2023 1495 - - 1,495
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(B RFERRSD -

28 FTHESRmTHE

TETABREANREEINE - FIXRK
TS AMETHER - L
BERS - AEBEERITETAER
SEHMEETEFLIEREREEE
an o [F] B A5 2 BOMNR A LRI S
RPEHBEE LI ERE - ARERA
5 8 P X2 1 B B BRBE 10 R IR S2 Y
Rk EE - RREH  AEETES
AWBEZRHR - ANEBIFFMAITET
AREAGMNEEREMAA RGBT
BB o

TERAMTARERERE BHNITE

LAB RS FITH7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives include forward, swap and option transactions
undertaken by the Group in the foreign exchange, interest rate and
equity markets. The Group uses derivatives for trading activities and
sale to customers as risk management products. These positions
are actively managed through entering into offsetting deals with
external parties to ensure the Group's net exposures are within
acceptable risk levels. No significant proprietary positions were
maintained by the Group as at the reporting date. The Group also
uses these derivatives in the management of its own asset and
liability portfolios and structural positions.

The following table provides an analysis of the notional amounts

TANBESHMREEE -

and carrying amounts of derivatives of the Group as at the reporting
date.

2024F12H31H 2023128310

December 31,2024 December 31,2023

AREE AAEE AnEE  LREE
A BE B L£E2E BE =0
Notional Fair value Fair value Notional Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities amount assets liabilities

[ERAH Exchange rate contracts
= Forwards 548,565,634 6,926,046 5,999,957 183,131,161 948,040 1,042,805
HARE Options 1,021,147 35 12,096 368,336 37 3,259
pilpgect:i Interest rate swaps 35,527,709 996,263 380,807 24,295,655 993,036 257,137
Etka Currency swaps 12,254,108 102,500 95,481 6,050,160 30,087 24743
B Equity swaps 15,500 72 472 20,000 141 3,170
597,384,098 8,024,916 6,488,813 213865312 1,971,341 1,331,114

o RERLRIEST () RBRAT 2024555 Q23—



mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

.
29 EHEEH 29 HEDGE ACCOUNTING
(@ QAREEEH (@) Fairvalue hedge
R B A A &8 B AT IS5 7 The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in
XEPEYNCREENTRE fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities arising from
BERNAARBEZHETERR movements in market interest rates.
(=R
R2024F 12 A31H &2023F 12 A As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the amounts
318 EEEAREHTAMNIER relating to items designated as hedging instruments are as
BTN follows:
2024
BRESE
Carrying Amount
BESHE BE =Fi
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
TSI A Derivative financial instruments
FEimHf Interest rate swaps 21,552,634 801,516 (205,324)
2023
RHESE
Carrying Amount
HESE BE BE
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments
| 2= 4 5 Interest rate swaps 19,870,502 915,048 (196,263)
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29 HEDGE ACCOUNTING (conminuep)

(@) Fair value hedge (continued)

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the amounts
relating to hedged items are as follows:

2024
REEET
BENAR
EBEEERAE
Rt &8
Accumulated
amount of fair
value hedge
adjustment
included in the
carrying amount

REEH

Carrying amount

BE:
mARBEFELEZEHA

Assets:
Financial assets measured at FVOCI

Hit 2 EM w2 EE 15,873,331 (571,280)
BfE: Liabilities:
BEBRER Hedged Deposit (5,193,301) (4,898)
2023
REEER
BENRR
EBEEHRAE
FESHE Zite®
Accumulated
amount of fair
value hedge
adjustment
included in the
Carrying amount  carrying amount
BE Assets;
BARBEAESAEZHA Financial assets measured at FVOC
Hih 2 E KR SR E E 13,930,531 (644,625)
BfE: Liabilities:
WEBRER Hedged Deposit (5,173,155) 7,043
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29 Efigste 29 HEDGE ACCOUNTING (conmivuen)

(a) 2REEEHE) (a)
TRHE TEHZE2024%F128318
N2023F12A31B IEFERRE
HIEAMERTIEN AR BEE
B) - (ERERERE R ELE -

Fair value hedge (continued)

The below table sets out the changes in the fair value of the
hedged items and hedging instruments for the year ended
December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, used as the basis
for recognising ineffectiveness:

2024
REHRBHIHN
Wi, (B%) ERENY
Gains/(losses) attributable Hedge
to the hedged risk ineffectiveness
ENTA HREMEEB EHTH
Hedged Hedging
HREHEE Hedged items Hedging instruments items  instruments
AR BEEHEE  Fairvalue hedge relationship
BE Assets
WA BESERE  Financial assets measured  FI| I HA
SEAEMEER  atFVOC Interest rate swaps
WHNEREE 73,345 (74,781) (1,436)
=L Liabilities
HEHER Hedged Deposit MEE
Interest rate swaps (2,145) 2,121 (24)
EUEHELEME  Netgains/(losses) from
W3, (B%)BE  hedging activities 71,200 (72,660) (1,460)
2023
I B 1 2§ R 6
Wiz, (18%) Efmmt
Gains/(losses) attributable Hedge
to the hedged risk ineffectiveness
EHTA HEHIER EHTA
Hedging
WERIER Hedged items Hedging instruments Hedged items ~ instruments
AR BEEHEE  Fairvalue hedge relationship
BE Assets
WA BEHERE  Financial assets measured at - FI| K HA
SEEAEMEE  FVOC Interest rate swaps
WHNEREE 231,941 (227,453) 4488
=L Liabilities
WEMEK Hedged Deposit yAlES TR
Interest rate swaps 7,043 (7,005) 38
EHEEELEMZW  Netgains/(losses) from
&/ (B%)38E hedging activities 238984 (234,458) 4526
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29 EffgEst ) 29 HEDGE ACCOUNTING (conmmuen)
(a) AREBEEEHE) (@) Fair value hedge (continued)
TERMS TRFGEREEAE The table below summarises the notional amounts of the
PHEHRTEAERSR - hedging instruments by remaining contractual maturity:

- —@ANL, Z@EARL. -—-FHUE

FUR Z@AIUR  —FIUR  EEIUR EENE @
3 months 1year 5 years
or less orless orless
1 month but over but over but over Over
orless 1 month 3 months 1year 5 years Total
20245 As at December 31,
12A31H 2024
fTHE4RTI A Derivative financial
F&EH instruments
Interest rate
swaps 77,649 4,986,809 1,474,737 12,284,193 2,729,246 21,552,634
20235 As at December 31,
12A31H 2023
T4 4BIA  Derivative financial
Fl& a5 instruments
Interest rate
swaps 147,584 4,688,374 1,041,650 11,564,388 2,428,506 19,870,502
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30 FfE T 30 SUBSIDIARIES
202412831 » NEBENME A Particulars of the Group's subsidiaries as at December 31, 2024 are as
A2 HEMT : follows:
REEW dMREXLE AR RITROZFE BFRE TEXH
Place of
incorporationand  Particulars of
Name of company place of business  issued shares held Percentage held Principal activities
B EFE:
Directly  Indirectly
BIT(REA)BRAA Bk 600,008 & @A E(E 100% - HEERREARS
(TEITREAL 7 #6,000,0007C
CCB Nominees Limited (‘CCBN") ~ Hong Kong HKD6,000,000 of 600,000 100% - Custodian and nominees’
ordinary shares services
BITEHBRAA BB 500,000,008 & AR B & 100% - BHEEEH
(T1755]) 7%500,000,0007T
CCB Securities Limited Hong Kong HKD500,000,000 of 100% - Securities brokerage business
("CCBS" 500,000,000 ordinary
shares
BISMETERAR B 100,0008% & @A EE 100% - ERANRFEBEARH
(17155t )) 75110,000,0007T
CCB (Asia) Trustee Company Hong Kong HKD10,000,000 of 100% - Trustee and custodian
Limited (“CCBT") 100,000 ordinary business
shares
BOTMERELERAE & 10,000,000 AR EE 100% - RBRELESK
(T7RR ) 75#10,000,0007T
CCB (Asia) Insurance Broker Hong Kong HKD10,000,000 of 100% —Insurance broker services
Limited ("CCBIB") 10,000,000 ordinary
shares
BITBBMEERERARA B IRERREEES T 100% - REZK
([BITEBME])
CCB Properties (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD1 of 1 ordinary share 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited ("CCBPHK")
REARAR (5] Bk 100k EREE - 100% HERE
1007
Better Chief Limited ("BCL") Hong Kong HKD100 of 100 - 100%  Property investment
ordinary shares
EA(BR)BEBRAT EE 10,0000 & B EE - 100% EEEEREERH
([ EBERERE]) /8100007
Hong Kong (SAR) Hotel Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 of 10,000 - 100%  Hotel operation and
("HKSAR Hotel") ordinary shares management
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30 B2 F ) 30 SUBSIDIARIES (conminuen)
FIEMBARIERFBESHA - K17 All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The
BEEEAENEB AR EZREL H BT proportion of the voting rights in the subsidiary undertakings held
FEBREOINRE 55 o RRES directly by the Bank does not differ from the proportion of ordinary
ERFEHB AR LA IHERRER - shares held. There was no non-controlling interest for both years for

all of the subsidiaries.

31 REELENER 31 INTERESTIN A JOINT VENTURE
2024 2023
®1A1R As at January 1 1,856,180 1,871,923
JE A 4 7 Share of profits 14,982 9,257
fg B Dividend (14,000) (25,000)
M®12A31H8 As at December 31 1,857,162 1,856,180
T EErENRAD B ST E The joint venture listed below has share capital consisting solely of
IR WRAEERERE - R202445F ordinary shares, which is held indirectly by the Group. Particulars of
NANHE  GELEZFHBAT the joint venture as at December 31, 2024 are as follows:
-4 BRTR ERBEHE
NSIEE A o 3t 2 BRRAFFE EREsk FEXK HEME HEFE
Place of Percentage of
business/ ownership
Place of Particulars of held by the  Principal Nature of  Measurement
Name of company incorporation issued and paid up capital Group activities relationship method
ZEERRRE BE 10,0002 i (E(E 50% HIERE Btk Y
78#10,0007T
Diamond String Limited  Hong Kong HKD10,000 of 10,000 50%  Property Note Equity
ordinary shares investment
Mk - EHEFRACNEZEBRMERE - Note: Diamond String Limited’s principal activity is property investment and it
MEMFENMEZTERANITEEZR - is strategic to the Group's activities, as it is holding property for the Bank's
WEAREBAEBR A ZRMIEOEERER - = operation. It is a private company and there is no quoted market price available
NiEERRAARLART  ERMHIERE for its shares. As of December 31, 2024, the outstanding bank borrowings
THME - B ZE2024F12A31BHILFE - and shareholder’s loans to Diamond String Limited are HK$1.29 billion (2023:
AEBEERKRRERABEE 1298 HK$1.29 billion) and corresponding interest income in 2024 are HK$77.37
(20234 « A 129187 ) RABEF BUA million (2023:HK$81.11 million).
BART7737EBIT(2023F - BEs1E
BIT).
BIE2045F 12 A3 BILFE - ESHE There was dividend of $14 million paid by Diamond String Limited to
BERAFRMASERERS4EET the Group for the year ended December 31, 2024 (2023: $25 million).

(20235 : 25HETT) °
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31 REEDLENER = 31 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (conmuep)
(a) BELENREEE  ERFA (@) Contingent liabilities, guarantees and commitments in
1’ respect of joint venture
M2024F12 31 8 %2023 12 A There were no contingent liabilities, guarantees and
31H - KEEREHEFRE QA commitments relating to the Group's interest in Diamond
WERTEERSKEARE - ER String Limited as at December 31, 2024 and December 31,
ANAE o 2023.
(b) EAELEMBEERBE (b) Summarised financial information for a joint venture
T RENERRRFIN2024F The summarised financial information for Diamond String
12H318 %2023F 12 431 HHE Limited which is accounted for using the equity method as
BEREE  KEBHEBERE at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 is set out as
AER © below:
2024 2023
TRE Current
HEtneh&EE Other current assets 508,164 447768
B JFLEJ ﬁE,‘ﬁ%{E __________ Total current assets 508,164 447,768
TRAE Financial liabilities (43,585) (51,622)
 RBEMEAE 2 Total currentliabilities (43,585) (51,622)
FEFRED Non-current
S RVEE Financial assets 59,600 59,448
HEMmEE Other assets 1,281,354 1,344,693
 FRBEERE Total non-current assets 1,340,954 1,404,141
EREE Financial liabilities (1,741,311) (1,739,360)
Hib&E Other liabilities (37,733) (36,402)
 FhRBAMAE 2~ Total non-current liabilities (1,779,044) (1,775,762)
EEZRE Net assets 26,489 24,525
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31 REBMEWES -

(c)

(d)

31 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (conivuen)

E Z£2024%F 128318 KX2023%F () Summarised statement of comprehensive income for the
12A3MBLEFENEZE KR RMY year ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023
=z
2024 2023

ON Revenue 228,713 225,283
e KBk 8 Depreciation and amortisation (56,148) (55,906)
MEUA Interest income 3,283 3,300
FEXZH Interest expense (100,362) (105,236)
B A B ) Profit before taxation 40,763 27,034
=] Income tax expense (10,799) (8,519)
FERMNEEEM BT Profit for the year & total comprehensive

income 29,964 18,515
EENSEEASECENE (d) Reconciliation of summarised financial information
=2 REEENYEER presented to the carrying amount of its interest in a joint

venture

HBEEHBE Summarised financial information 2024 2023
M AITHZEESE Net assets as at January 1 24,525 56,010
FEHEM Profit for the year 29,964 18,515
BEPEREXHE Dividend paid (28,000) (50,000)
R12A31AZEERE Net assets as at December 31 26,489 24,525
REEPENER 50% Interest in a joint venture @ 50% 13,244 12,262

BELRFANREMENIK

Fair value adjustment of investment

BHZAREBEBE in property held by the joint venture
at the acquisition date 1,843,918 1,843,918
M12A3TBREEDEN Carry amount of interest in
ERXZEREER ajoint venture as at December 31 1,857,162 1,856,180
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32 AR REXFRIA 32 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

B STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) FEMREEBIE: (@) Current tax payable
2024 2023
REEHEBFETHER Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the year 1,109,225 841,483
BT E RIS Provisional Profits Tax paid (846,172) (476,625)
EFEFSRERES Balance of Profits Tax provision relating
to prior years 77,629 82,112
340,682 446,970
A 1 756 T8 2 5 Provision for tax in the Mainland China 7,902 984
JE & HATR I Current tax payable 348,584 447,954
(b) ELEBBHEERELHEEME (b) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
2024 2023
TE4R & M IBARR R R Deferred tax assets recognised
RIETH AR BE in the consolidated statement of
financial position 534,778 633,945
2024 2023
ER AP IEAR R R Deferred tax liabilities recognised
RIERIERE in the consolidated statement of
financial position 17,850 18,012
7202412 A31H K% 2023F12 A As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the majority
318 - K¥H B ERNELERIE of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised
BEMECHEABERSHER will be recovered after twelve months.

+ B AKYKE -
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B e STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
by EEXEBEEERELHREEE (b) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (continued)
(%)
KEEDHELEESTBAARNKIER The components of deferred tax assets recognised in
YR RE 7 TR B 2= B 48 X BB 0 AN the consolidated statement of financial position and the
£ movements during the years are as follows:
I k& 8I At
AEEE  RENE  ERRE  TARR b Eff BE
Accelerated  Investment Provision Mainland
Impairment tax  revaluation forstaff  withholding
allowances  depreciation reserve bonus tax Others Total
RNBEI A8 As at January 1, 2023 2718460 (22194) 395,985 139,605 3435 (156) 826,054
AFARERIIX  Charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss 50946 5,700 - 10306 - - 66,95
Rait2E Credited to the consolidated
WHEFHA statement of other
comprehensive income - - (24707) - - - (24707)
-0 Other - - - - (34354) - (34354)
P0BEIAIBR  Asat Decernber31,
W14E1 18 2023 & January 1, 2024 329,406 (16,494) 171,278 149911 - (156) 633,945
ARABERIE  Charged tothe consolidated
statement of profit orloss 4750 1,860 - (4,029) - - 2,581
EGREMZE Credited to the consolidated
WaFHA statement of other
comprehensive income - - (101,748) - - - (101,748)
20245128318 AsatDecember 31,2024 334,156 (14,634) 69,530 145,882 - (156) 534,778
&
REHE BEEX Hith wE
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
720231 A1H Asat January 1,2023 (3,710) 3,346 (18,786) (19,150)
EEABREEIX Charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss 132 - 1,006 1,138
20236128318 K As at December 31,2023 &
2024%1 A8 January 1,2024 (3,578) 3,346 (17,780) (18,012)
EERABRERYY Debited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss - - 162 162
2024512 H31H As at December 31,2024 (3,578) 3,346 (17,618) (17,850)

e MBHRME
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32 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
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33 EEEE 33 FIXED ASSETS
FR - AEBNEBEEEENREDCHE The carrying amounts of the Group's fixed assets and the movements
MEEHOT - during the year are as follows:
HE
BEY NELE HKERRE B
Furniture
Leasehold and
Buildings improvements equipment Total
B Cost:
20241418 As at January 1, 2024 2,818,069 657,851 1,663,020 5,138,940
®e Additions - 27,617 113,932 141,549
Wi Disposals - (16,609) (19,258) (35,867)
R2024F12H31H As at December 31,2024 2,818,069 668,859 1,757,694 5,244,622
ZHHE Accumulated depreciation:
R2024F1A18 As at January 1,2024 914,157 530,811 1,474,903 2,919,871
REFFHR Charge for the year 77,673 41,061 118,399 237,133
fif 35 Disposals - (16,609) (19,138) (35,747)
120245128318 As at December 31, 2024 991,830 555,263 1,574,164 3,121,257
BREFE : Net book value:
R2024%128318 As at December 31,2024 1,826,239 113,596 183,530 2,123,365
HE
BEY nERE  HKERERE Fak)
Furniture
Leasehold and
Buildings  improvements equipment Total
PR Cost:
R2023F1A18 As at January 1,2023 2,818,069 610427 1,567,259 4,995,755
e Additions - 58,273 112,345 170,618
g Disposals - (10,849) (16,584) (27433)
R2023F12A31H As at December 31,2023 2,818,069 657,851 1,663,020 5,138,940
ZEE Accumulated depreciation:
R2023F1 A18 Asat January 1,2023 836,403 503,456 1,353,229 2,693,088
REFGHR Charge for the year 77,754 38,204 138,143 254,101
ks Disposals - (10,849) (16469) (27318)
M2023F 124318 As at December 31,2023 914,157 530,811 1474903 2,919,871
FRFE Net book value:
M2023F12A31H As at December 31,2023 1,903,912 127,040 188,117 2,219,069
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34 ERAEEE 34 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
FAN - AEENFRAEEENERS The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the
BB : movements during the year are as follows:
HE LT BEY B b
Leasehold
land Buildings  Equipment Total
M2024%F1A18 As at January 1, 2024 521,506 780,980 466 1,302,952
=y Additions - 95,443 27,028 122,471
b k= Disposals - (11,778) - (11,778)
REFEITETIR Depreciation charge for the year (2,015) (225,674) (9,406) (237,095)
72024%F128318 As at December 31, 2024 519,491 638,971 18,088 1,176,550
HELTH BEY By 1B
Leasehold
land Buildings  Equipment Total
M2023F1H18 As at January 1, 2023 523,521 895,712 8,897 1,428,130
®E Additions - 115451 76 115,527
KEEIEIR Depreciation charge for the year (2,015) (230,183) (8,507) (240,705)
2023 12A31H As at December 31, 2023 521,506 780,980 466 1,302,952
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35 HEEE
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35 LEASE LIABILITIES

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during

T the year are as follows:
2024 2023
W1A1H As at January 1 853,346 978,624
18 = Additions 120,357 111,802
! Disposals (10,718) -
e H Interest expense 16,786 16,737
INE: Payments (255,228) (253,817)
MW12H31H As at December 31 724,543 853,346
HEEEHEE Total lease liabilities
mEh Current 219,208 225,660
FEMED Non-current 505,335 627,686
724,543 853,346

(a) fEREMEA
AEBATRMEHRE HXER
AIARRHEERY  ELHENF
HNF—=+_-%-

AEEBREISHEESHBRSIE
REEZEEE EREACRTS
BRERELITFELEEREE
BIZERIEL T BTN - A
Z2024% 12 A31 8 &2023%12 A
JIELEFER  EBEZETHE
HHEEBHEEANHNENER
THERERE At AEEFBE
HHAARRRESF RN E RRE
HEABWHEL -

AEENTBHOHERST @
ASZARNFEFEHE RKEE
REHE - AREAELHER
RIEHEE I RMEEEEEM
B IMFRHER -

R2024512 A31 8 2023128
318 AEBEEDEAEEE AR
EREENSENARKREEMNK
B o

(a)

Group as lessee

The Group has entered into future lease arrangements with
landlords for various buildings, and the terms of the leases
range from 1to 12 years.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. Management makes an overall assessment in
determining whether these extension options are reasonably
certain to be exercised. For the year ended December 31,
2024 and December 31, 2023, management has considered
to exercise certain extension options available in the lease
contracts which have commenced, and therefore, all future
cash outflows to which the Group is potentially exposed have
already been reflected in the measurement of lease liabilities.

The Group also has certain leases of storage room with lease
terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with
low value. The Group applies the “short-term lease” and “lease
of low-value assets” recognition exemptions for these leases.

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Group
had no future lease payments for lease committed but not yet
commenced falling due.
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35 HEEGEWw 35 LEASE LIABILITIES (conrinuen)
(b) ZIEABOH—EHARITHEESRE (b) Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
R12A31H
As at December 31
2024 2023
—FNR Within one year 232,195 240,507
E—FERF_F(FFE_F) In the first to second year, inclusive 199,098 199,572
EFRFE=F(F A”" =) In the second to third year, inclusive 149,500 158,931
F=FRFENF %’mi) In the third to fourth year, inclusive 99,363 126,888
ENFEERF(EERF) In the fourth to fifth year, inclusive 22,800 92,352
AEFLAE Over five years 51,055 73,855
RITIRR S R EE%E Total undiscounted cash flows 754,011 892,105
(0 EREZRIANEEEBSEN () The amount recognised in profit or loss in relation to
T leases are as follows:
BZ12831ALFE
For the year ended December 31
2024 2023
HEaENRESZH Interest expenses on leases liabilities (Note 11)
(k1) 16,786 16,737
TEECEHEAE Variable lease payments not included in the
FFENTEEENK measurement of lease liabilities
MHEEN ST Expenses relating to short term leases 172 94
KEEEEMRENSZHE  Expenses relating to leases of low value assets 305 205
36 HtEE 36 OTHER ASSETS
2024 2023
EEIRP Settlement accounts 865,123 160,378
EEEFAE Customer liability under acceptances 255,553 211,193
FE U BRE ZX Accounts receivables 614,180 2,064,304
RETS Refundable deposits 1,499,909 1,298,726
KR 333! Prepaid expenses 138,411 181,581
EEE Intangible assets 94,679 1,955
EHAh Others 147,729 161,546
3,615,584 4,079,683
HMEENAABEAEREEBEBEK The fair value of other assets approximately equals their carrying
BAER - amounts.
2202412 A31H %2023F12A31 For the year ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
ALFE  HtEEMQETREES there were no significant movements in the gross balances of other
SHMBEWNEHRERE 9& EBHIRE assets that resulted in significant changes to the expected credit loss
REEE o allowances.
o
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36 HttEE ») 36 OTHER ASSETS conmvuep)

(a) HttEENFEHERABEXRERBN (@) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
25 on other assets
TRIRTHMEEMNTEER The following table shows the reconciliation from the opening
BREFERFEVEF RGBT L balance to the closing balance of the expected credit loss
BR o B sF8() () ¥+ — 1@ A 18 & allowances on other assets. Explanation of the terms: 12-month
ERE%  FEHFEHERIEX ECL, lifetime ECL and credit-impaired are included in Note 8(a)
MEBEERREELRRE - ().

F-BR  E-RR  EZER

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

FEGEN wEDNRS

+=f8A ERB%X  ERE%

#H BREE RE#E
ERE%X GRHE GREE #5

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

12-month  notcredit-  ECL credit-

ECL impaired impaired Total
0451 R1RM & Balance as at January 1, 2024 1,195 - - 1,195
BYREERE
TZEABSEREL Transfer to stage 1: 12-month ECL = - - -
BYZE [ FEBBHER  Tandertostage2
BABREEERRE lifetime ECL not credit-impaired - - - -
BRRE-RE  FRENBHER  Tensfertostage3:
BAREEEERAE lifetime ECL credit-impaired - - - -
New financial assets
BEIBATEREE originated or purchased 75 = = 75
Financial assets that
BRI S RERE have been derecognised - - - -
ik Write-offs - - (3,983) (3,983)
Recoveries of amounts
DB eeoka] previously written-offs - - - -
EMiEFE Net remeasurements
(ERR2EHE) (Including changes in risk parameters) - - 3,983 3,983
SNEFE (2 Foreign exchange and other movements - - - -
2024512431 B 48R Balance as at December 31,2024 1,270 - - 1,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

36 OTHER ASSETS (conmvuep)

HtEENTERESHBRESEN (@) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
B (E) on other assets (continued)
—&& EEE F=MRE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
FESRE GEHES
+=faA ERBX  EREX
A BREE RE#E
ERBEX ERAE ERRE B8
Lifetime
ECLnot  Lifetime ECL
12-month credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
1R2023F1 A1 AR Balance as at January 1,2023 886 - - 886
BYEF R Transfer to stage 1:
TAREHEREX 12-month FCL - . . i
BYEZ MR
FESMBESECHEEAR Transfer to stage 2
REER ﬁ@ lifetime ECL not credit-impaired - - - -
BREE=
ﬁ%ﬁ%@?ﬁwnﬂ?ﬁ%& Transfer to stage 3:
BEREERAE lifetime ECL credit-impaired - - - -
RER New financial assets
BAMEREE originated or purchased 309 - - 309
BRI HERR) Financial assets that
tRAE have been derecognised - - - -
ik Write-offs - - (1,149) (1,149)
ez Recoveries of
e 2% amounts previously written-offs - - - -
EiEEE Net remeasurements
(BRB2EME () (Including changes in risk parameters) - - 1,149 1,149
HNENE A B Foreign exchange and other movements - - - -
R03F12A31 RS Balance as at December 31,2023 1195 - - 1,195
* 20245 2023 R - FIEEME * During 2024 and 2023, all other assets were initially classified in Stage 1
EsVNERE—RRE  WHERE and were not considered as credit-impaired at the time of origination or
SEARTERABELEER 7\@ purchase. Some were subsequently transferred into Stage 2 or Stage 3
B ARy REBSREREAN based on the result of credit assessments.

HERBAE _ERIFE=IER -
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37 RITNERMER

37 DEPOSITS AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

2024 2023

WITHFER Deposits from banks 3,606,138 3,658,036
WITHETF Takings from banks 10,136,504 6,355,987
13,742,642 10,014,023

38 EFER

38 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2024 2023
SEEATE A RERE P Demand deposits and current accounts 19,224,722 21,170,990
EEER Savings deposits 97,283,929 109,833,583
FEEMBAER Time and call deposits 254,518,457 248,885,771
Hihiz Kk Other deposits 734,666 1,183,487

371,761,774 381,073,831

39 OEHEBETNHENSHE 39 FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER

E

EIEHETNTHENSRMEEZARBE
EHRINT ¢

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by underlying
assets are shown as follows:

2024 2023
BEHRE Debt investments
AT HIB T ERE S Debt securities issued by
B Governments 300,000 1,313,735
RITNIFRITE RIS Banks and non-bank financial institutions 2,517,158 5,921,181
% Corporates 607,963 2,135,656
3,425,121 9,370,572

40 EERRIAEETEAH

40 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT

BESTABEZENESRAs FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2024 2023
EBUETER Structured deposits 17,290,359 6,368,794

2024128318 » BT AEAAE
B EHEZHTAEZNEHEE
MIRAeREAEEILZE RERKMAEF
EANIBE NN eREcEZBABE132
BEIT(2023F : BHg4mETL) - F
N BHRBFEERBREES(LFTER
EEMER AR EBENE L TEE -

As at December 31, 2024, the difference between the carrying
amount of financial liabilities designated at FVPL and the amount
of the Group would be contractually required to pay at maturity to
the holders is HK$132 million (2023: 84 million). During the years, the
changes in the fair value of the structured deposits attributable to
changes in own credit risk are considered insignificant..

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)



mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

41 BERTHMERRS 41 OTHER DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED
2024 2023
REHRKATTER Other debt securities issued
ERTEMERES at amortised cost 3,195,926 660,058
R2024F12 8318 @ IR KATE As at December 31, 2024, the fair values of other debt securities
WEETEMERELSZ AL ERE issued at amortised cost were $3,217 million (2023: $667 million). The
3217BE (20235 : 667EETT) © A fair value measurement methodology is disclosed in Note 9(a).
A EBEFEFENHETO @)
42 Hials 42 OTHER LIABILITIES
2024 2023
HERP Settlement accounts 284,449 176,003
JE SRR K Accounts payables 341,957 372,740
JERTA] S, Accrued interest payables - 2
A R Acceptances outstanding 255,553 211,193
fEETH & MEF| Accrued salaries and welfare 896,135 907,531
JERTHR T Amounts due to intermediate holding
ERARN TR companies 2,644,932 2,636,814
BEEEH XS AENFKIA Debt securities trade date payables - 356,099
JEZTE Accrued expenses 38,573 92,633
U ER 8928 & 3R S (B sE10()) Cash collateral received (Note 10(a)) 1,168,905 1,083,112
ERkEMEERA Expected credit loss allowances on loan
AENTBHERELX and other credit related commitments
i (FisE48(b)) (Note 48(b)) 227,961 228,449
H A, Others 165,574 192,732
6,024,039 6,257,308
BB FURKE N TEE S BB EELN The fair value of other liabilities, except for expected credit loss
EMEaEN AR BEEERMEERK allowances on loan commitments, approximately equals to their
BARR o carrying amount.
43 BA 43 SHARE CAPITAL
2024 2023
BEITRER Issued and fully paid
162,776,068A% (20234F : 162,776,068 (2023: 162,776,068)
162,776,0680% ) /& 5 & 38 AL HKD ordinary shares 6,511,043 6,511,043
440,000,000/% (20234 : 440,000,000 (2023: 440,000,000)
440,000,0008% ) A R M I 8 A% RMB ordinary shares 22,316,800 22,316,800
28,827,843 28,827,843
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44 BEfhfE= T H 44 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

2024 2023
HE A
Nominal value Description
SIE3ETT A[2024F 12 A 13AIRFEE K
EEMEKEEATHR
USDO.5 billion Fixed rate perpetual capital instrument
callable from December 13, 2024 3,901,108 3,901,108
SIEETT AJFA2025F 3 A26 AR E R A
EEFEKBEEARTE
UsDO.5 billion Fixed rate perpetual capital instrument
callable from March 26, 2025 3,876,493 3,876,493
10f83€ 7T A[R2029F 11 AsHIRR BRI
EEMEKEERTA
USD1.0 billion Fixed rate perpetual capital instrument
callable from November 8, 2029 7,773,550 -
101837 AIR2029F 12 H 16 HIRFEE A
EEMEKEEATHR
USD1.0 billion Fixed rate perpetual capital instrument
callable from December 16, 2029 7,773,955 -
23,325,106 7,777,601

MN2024F 128168 - ARITHIK B RE 2

On December 16, 2024 the Bank issued undated non-cumulative

TR 317 TEEAEETT(HE
R 77787 ) RiFA H B FERTE
IRMERT R - 2RI —REARTA
jfiﬁﬁ*IHHEIJH;ﬁE MTHS579J_E@$TE

» HE|2029%F 12 B16BE— RED
EIZ%Lt ZZD%%EM\—%Z,%TZIKIE?HE
fER BERFEERE— X FH

BHERNEREANAFTFHERNRH
E%H&/\Ibuti%ﬂﬁﬁlj%a’ﬂi
F= o

R2024F 11 A8H - A1THIBR BRI EETT
BRA - BT TEHEARIVEEZTL(EE
RAB77 71870 ) REH H R IERTE
IRMERT R - ZRIN—REARTA
I&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%a WﬁwwrmT

C BEI2029%F11 ASHE —RIEE A
Z%Lt ﬁﬂ%%§9|\—ﬂ&§$lﬁfﬁ?&ﬁ“
O A8RFEEEE—X FHE
BHEENERERNAFHERBE

Z5 W k& 00 b B E 4 ) 2= /9 B E A
= o

subordinated capital instruments with a face value of USD1.0 billion
(equivalent to HKS7.77 billion) net of related issuance costs. The
additional tier 1 capital instruments are undated and bear a 5.579%
coupon until the first call date on December 16, 2029. The coupon
will be reset every five years if the additional tier 1 capital instruments
are not redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing
five-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed initial spread.

On November 8, 2024 the Bank issued undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital instruments with a face value of USD1.0 billion
(equivalent to HKS7.77 billion) net of related issuance costs. The
additional tier 1 capital instruments are undated and bear a 5.705%
coupon until the first call date on November 8, 2029. The coupon will
be reset every five years if the additional tier 1 capital instruments are
not redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-
year US Treasury rate plus a fixed initial spread.
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44 BEffER T H )

20203 A268 + AR1THIBR AR %
TR BT THEEASEET(EE
RAB38 8B ) RFTA H B IERTE
RRERTH - ZBIN—REARTE
]Lxﬁ}ﬁﬂ FHA - MTE318J_E’JT

- BEI2025F3B26BE—NERAH
F,%Jt QD%§59|\—Z&§$IQ$%§E“
O ASgRFEEEE—X FHEE
BHESENERARANAFHERBEE
U 3 0 _E B E 4086 F = Y [E E A

zo

M2019F12 5138 » AITHIB MR 2%
ﬁ}ﬁ%$ BT THEASEET(AE
RER39BIT) AT B BRI IERTE IR
MEARTA- Ei%ﬁﬁl\—ﬁ&§$lﬂ1
RAFERARIER - BHEHH_E’J
HH2024F 128130 % — k@ﬁ%
1o ZZD%%E’JI\—i&ﬁZKIEdi%&ﬁ%
B ABAFEEEB— X FEER
BHESENERIRANAFHEREE
F ek 0 _E BT 91 5a F = B E T A
"o ZEBER2024F12A13HEE A
6.75[F °

BI—REARTEBKAMERRE
- ENREAREKAKEBITRE
BUBS A o 2B AR T AEEEZGRTT
F (BRI E = 1O M8 3 3 14 1
REEEMBEERAE T AR - 1
BRE - EHFRRREERK -

LAB RS FITH7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

44 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (conrinuen)

On March 26, 2020 the Bank issued undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital instruments with a face value of USDO0.5 billion
(equivalent to HKS$3.88 billion) net of related issuance costs. The
additional tier 1 capital instruments are undated and bear a 3.18%
coupon until the first call date on March 26, 2025. The coupon will
be reset every five years if the additional tier 1 capital instruments are
not redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing five-
year US Treasury rate plus a fixed initial spread.

On December 13, 2019 the Bank issued undated non-cumulative
subordinated capital instruments with a face value of USDO0.5 billion
(equivalent to HKS$3.90 billion) net of related issuance costs. The
additional tier 1 capital instruments are undated and bear a 4.31%
coupon until the first call date on December 13, 2024. The coupon
will be reset every five years if the additional tier 1 capital instruments
are not redeemed to a fixed rate equivalent to the then-prevailing
five-year US Treasury rate plus a fixed initial spread. The coupon rate
reset to 6.75% on December 13, 2024.

These additional tier 1 capital instruments are perpetual and
subordinated, and the coupon payments may be cancelled at the
sole discretion of the Group. The capital instruments will be written
down at the point of non-viability on the occurrence of a trigger
event as defined in the Banking (Capital) Rules. They rank higher than
ordinary shares in the event of a winding-up.
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45 RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

General reserve

General reserve is appropriated from the retained earnings for
future use.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income until the financial
assets are derecognised and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for the measurement of these
financial assets at fair value.

Regulatory reserve

Regulatory reserve comprises reserves maintained in
accordance with Hong Kong regulations. At Group level,
it includes a regulatory reserve of $753 million (2023: $573
million) to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes. Movement in
this reserve is made directly through retained earnings and in
consultation with HKMA.

Other reserve

Other reserve is used to record the corresponding amount
of the share options and bonus rewards granted by the
former parent company to the Bank's employees. The
options and rewards granted are classified as equity-settled
share-based payments and the amount recognised in other
reserve represents capital contribution from its former parent
company and is not distributable.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve arises as a result of the acquisition of a majority
of the corporate banking business (“Acquired Business”) of
CCB Hong Kong Branch (“HKBR"). This amount represented
the difference between the net book value of the Acquired
Business and the consideration paid.

Retained earnings

The Bank and its financial subsidiaries are required to maintain
minimum capital adequacy ratios under their respective
regulatory jurisdictions. The minimum capital requirements
could therefore potentially restrict the amount of retained
earnings available for distribution to the shareholders.

All reserves, except for general reserve and retained earnings,
are not available for distribution.

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)



mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

46 KRITEHBIR R EREES 46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

E3) AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK
(@) FA20245%F12H31HK2023F12 (@) Statement of Financial Position of the Bank as at December
B31 B ARITEEAR R T 31,2024 and December 31, 2023
2024 2023
BE ASSETS
HEMERITR Cash and balances with banks and central
RRIRITEVAETF banks 34,863,843 46,954,059
FHERTTRAE Placements with banks 37,534,839 40,632,740
EAnEBEFER Financial assets measured at fair value
HEBt AIBZ=MERMEE  through profitor loss 4,037,977 1,906,328
WRIEHEBE ANSREE  Finandal assets held under reverse
repurchase agreements - 2,023,967
THESBTHE Derivative financial instruments 8,024,916 1,971,341
RITER Advances to banks 7,305,833 265,597
EEERNE HERE Advances to customers and trade bills 275,688,645 259,717,847
BARBESERESEE A Financial assets measured at fair value
HE2EW SN E/EE through other comprehensive income 144,765,736 128,717,611
IR AR ANET B EHMEZE  Other assets measured at amortised cost 722,500 1,576,306
RETBRARIRKRE Investments in subsidiaries 526,000 526,000
IEERITAE B Deferred tax assets 534,778 633,945
& E & B Fixed assets 1,899,421 1,988,731
EREEE Right-of-use assets 703,605 829,481
Hih & E Other assets 3,747,632 4,117,719
BEEAE Total assets 520,355,725 491,861,672
aE LIABILITIES
RITHTFERRET Deposits and balances of banks 13,742,642 10,014,023
BEFER Deposits from customers 372,582,577 381,976,637
O iEE NS Financial assets sold under repurchase
TRUEE agreements 3,425,121 9,370,572
PTEemI A Derivative financial instruments 6,488,813 1,331,114
BERBEARBENER Financial liabilities designated at fair value
HEBt AIBmEmMBE  through profitor loss 17,290,360 6,368,794
BETEMERE S Other debt securities issued 3,195,926 660,058
HEBE Lease liabilities 724,504 853,332
JETE BT TR Current tax payable 337,439 434,882
HibBE Other liabilities 3,521,781 3,666,961
BEAH Total liabilities 421,309,163 414,676,373
s EQUITY
&7 Share capital 28,827,843 28,827,843
HtgEmTH Other equity instruments 23,325,106 7,777,601
] Reserves 46,893,613 40,579,855
A RE Total equity 99,046,562 77,185,299
EENEERE Total equity and liabilities 520,355,725 491,861,672
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46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK

(CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of Financial Position of the Bank as at December
31,2024 and December 31, 2023 (continued)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on March 21, 2025.

ZHANG Jun

Executive Officer

KWOK Pui Fong Miranda

(b) Reserve movement of the Bank

Non-Executive Director

Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief

Details of the changes in the Bank's reserve between the

FEFHIMT beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
RE
LERE EfRE EERE  HtRE  SHRE  RERN oL
Investment
General  revaluation  Regulatory Other Merger Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total
0245 Balance as at
1A1BER January 1,2024 750,956 (458,060) 572,887 15913 62,262  39,635897 40,579,855
NUERGE Changes in equity for 2024
EREH Profit for the year - - = - - 601,632 6,011,632
Et2EbE Other comprehensive
(BHiz) income, net of tax = 594,103 = - - = 594,103
FEREWEEE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - 594,103 - - - 6,011,632 6,605,735
XTE MRS Coupon paid for other equity
TEANES instruments - - - - - (291,977) (291,977)
EERE Requlatory reserve = = 180,544 = = (180,544) =
B014E Balance as at December 31,
NA3BMER M 750,956 136,043 753,431 15913 62262 45175008 46,893,613
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46 KRITEHBIR R EREES 46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B ) AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK
(CONTINUED)
(b) AITREEZ2EE () (b) Reserve movement of the Bank (continued)
LaRE EfRRE  EERGE  HuBE  AUREE  REEA z%
Investment
General  revaluation  Regulatory Other Merger Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
0B3E Balance as at
1H1BR &R January 1,203 75095 (1694648) 909,600 15913 62060 35563064 35607147
Q3FEEEF 0 Changes in equity for 2023;
ERgH Profitfor the year - - - - - 409266 402966
A2 ENE Other comprehensive
(BHite) income, net of tax - 1,236,588 - - - - 1,236,588
EFREWREE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - 1,236,588 - - - 4029266 5,065,854
THEMER Coupon paid for other equity
TEARNER instruments - - - - - (293,146) (293,146)
EEGRE Requlatory reserve - - (336713) - - 336713 -
03E Balance as at December 31,
ANBEMESR a3 750956 (458,060) 572,887 15913 62060 39635897 40579855

o RERLIRIEAT () RBRAT 2024555 Q47—



mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

47 EXBAELR S 47 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
RER NEBEHEHERTERA During the year, the Group entered into transactions with related
RBhHEHEEFETTZESS B parties in the normal course of its banking business including
BE  ALLEHREEFER  FKIE lending, acceptance and placements of inter-bank deposits,
IRD - WEREG - BHFLELERFHM correspondent banking transactions, rental transactions, securities
TTETEAESS - GESTHHNEEBER brokerage and derivative transactions. The transactions were priced
BEETHETEHENHEBTSEINERM at the relevant market rates at the time of each transaction.
E o
(@) REANEXRBEELIRZHEER (@) The amount of material related party transactions during
RBEENKRESZHERY W the year and outstanding balances at the reporting date
T : are set out below:
RAERA R (M) EE) PE BELERKENT
Intermediate holding
companies (Note 52) Fellow subsidiaries Joint venture
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
MEYA Interest income 1,841,015 1709728 62,472 62042 - -
MEXH Interest expense 192,267 330698 103,587 40453 5,101 5,831
FEELESMA Fees and commission
(MzE2) income (Note 12) 541,219 517,156 - - - -
FEERFEL Fees and commission
GEIN) expense (Note 12) 10,270 2465 = - - -
LT UN Other operating income 38,450 20571 14,964 5346 = -
BeBR Operating expenses 1,958 2025 - - 95,039 117,446
FEBNASWATERIERS Fees and commission income mainly represented the fees
RSN BIR A AN B RS received from intermediate holding company for advisory and
FrgER /& A ° support services provided.
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47 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (conminuen)

REANEXRBELIRZBER (@)

RBEAWKREZERERY M
T )

The amount of material related party transactions during
the year and outstanding balances at the reporting date
are set out below: (continued)

RN ERAF(M5E52) BRKEAR BELERBENT
Intermediate holding
companies (Note 52) Fellow subsidiaries Joint venture
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

EREHE Amounts due from:
BEAEFTR Cash and halances with banks and

PREITIET central banks 1165303 4125151 - 109 - -
FHERTHE Placements with banks 34,227,582 40581474 - - - -
RFERR Advances to customers and

UL trade bills = - 2,180,466 . - _
BRLABEHEREE Financial assets measured at

STARMZENER fair value through other

eREE comprehensive income - - - 237495 - -
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments 4,760,864 101231 = - > -
RRELE Right-of-use assets - - - - 325506 542,554
EthEE Other assets 667,765 1623861 2% 3 -
Ef&H Amounts due to:
ROINGERNER Deposits and balances with banks 7,003,740 2,345,775 40,861 13 - -
REHFR Deposits from customers - - 3,166,108 1742406 = -
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments 4,476,031 226,789 = - = -
B HE T HER Financial assets sold under

EREE repurchase agreements 2,517,158 1523590 = - - -
HEAR Lease liabilties - - - - 372,390 428918
EthafR Other liabilities 2663057 2644917 4,192 - 24,648 20,147
REER RAE Contingencies and commitments:
Y SEBMABEER Transaction-related contingencies 38,554 4229 - - - -
HfEdE Other commitments - - 839,955 1537,044 - -
fTESRMIA: Derivative financial instruments:

(2%eH) (notional amount)

ERAH Exchange rate contracts 537,550,018 28,920,021 - - - -
ESE Interest rate swaps 621,184 818602 - - - -

FE2024%F » NEBLAHEBIRIE
HoBRFEREFERNIER
NE - 2BEAEBEI60BE T
(20234 : B#E4493HBTT) ° &£
2024F F12023%F + AT ERR A A
REBEEFPERERAEHEH -

During 2024, the Group sold certain advances to customers of
HKS$ 1,600 million (2023: HK$4,493 million), to its intermediate
holding company at agreed price. There is no purchase of
advances to customers from intermediate holding company in
2024 and 2023.
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47 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (conminuen)

(a)

The amount of material related party transactions during
the year and outstanding balances at the reporting date
are set out below: (continued)

The Group may enter into transactions with entities directly or
indirectly owned by the Mainland China government through
its government authorities, agencies, affiliations and other
organisations (“state-owned entities”) in the normal course of
business. These transactions are entered into on terms similar
to those that would have been entered into with non state-
owned entities. These transactions include but are not limited
to:

- Lending and deposit taking;

- Inter-bank balances taking and placing;

- Insurance and securities agency;

- Custody services;

- Sale, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds;

- Purchase, sale and leases of property and other assets;
and

- Rendering and receiving of utilities and other services.

The Group's pricing and approval processes for major products

and services do not depend on whether the customers or

counterparties are state-owned entities. Having due regard to

the substance of the relationships, the Group is of the opinion

that none of these transactions are material related party
transactions that require separate disclosure.
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47 ERBELTR S =) 47 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (conminuen)

(b) EERBREEAS

RER - REBRAEE N EE
BRARMNEENAREEAER
HEHBRE VI R ER B M EH
EHIREAFENRRIRBEE
WME - WEXAEETHOEFR -
EERENMFREAEREEKB
RRREMER - W R EE
AT (ER) BEMES
EITE R LR 5 R EFRREUAR
[l o 35422 5 /U5 [ EL e 18 48
EHRR - TREEA T REFE -

(b)

Directors and key management personnel

During the year, the Group provided credit facilities to and
accepted deposits from the directors and key management
personnel of the Group and its holding companies and
their close family members and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them. The credit facilities and
deposits were provided and taken in the ordinary course
of business and on substantially the same terms as for
comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing, or
where applicable, with other employees. These transactions
did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or
present other unfavourable features.

2024 2023

8% Loans 27,829 40,506

BB F B U A Interest income earned 809 872

yed Deposits 208,217 243,208

BT EF B Interest expense paid 8,791 7,044
FM-Fek Compensation - salaries and

Hth 52 HAtE 7 other short-term benefits 28,855 27,167

(0 EFER
RBEBB(RAAEH)(F6228)
FE3BMNMAEI( AR (KREES
MIBmER)RBIDFEIR - ARE
FERZHFBREWT

()

Loans to Directors

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to Section
383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)
and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefit of Director) Regulation:

2024 2023
M12A3THEBAES R Aggregate amount in respect of principal
FIER &R 4a%E and interest as at December 31 18,712 28,878
FRNEEAER The maximum aggregate amount
FEMEREERERE outstanding in respect of principal and
interest during the year 30,712 31,783
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48 HEER RIERIAEZ 48 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS

HE AND LEASING ARRANGEMENT
HEBEBENMBEAESTEENSD The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
RBmnT significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments to extend
credit:
2024 2023
E&ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁlﬁ B Direct credit substitutes 35,231 56,451
RSB EBIEE Transaction-related contingencies 3,607,576 3,173,537
Eﬁi‘%ﬂ%ﬁ AR BEE Trade-related contingencies 759,719 1,283,388
H b Other commitments
AAEERAEREEM which are unconditionally cancellable
BB BEUH or automatically cancellable due to the
deterioration in the credit worthiness of
the borrower 48,930,640 51,009,753
RE|EIH —F AR with an original maturity under one year 2,093,219 1,117,015
RE|EFH —F LA L with an original maturity over one year 39,945,553 34,588,302
95,371,938 91,228,446
NEBBEMAEREEZEMRBEHN T Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related
B BEEHE - BRAREEE- instruments which include letters of credit, guarantees and
ELEEEEEENT A AR commitments to extend credit. The risk involved is essentially
ERXFREBETFTEEIHEREERTAE the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to
HEEERRIER o B - BT 5T customers. These transactions are, therefore, subject to the same
BRARFHBERNEBNEER credit application, portfolio maintenance and collateral requirements
FR E% CHEEBECEEHAANERRER as for customers applying for the loans. The contractual amounts
F o ANSHERBIEEANTBEREEH represent the amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn
TEHX BEETEHFZEEAENR upon and the client defaults. As the facilities may expire without
BEE c ANBBEREERRER being drawn upon, the contract amounts do not represent expected
WIRAIEEE - MANSBI TR future cash flows.

RIEHR R KR ETE
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48 FBEEE  AKEREEZR
B

(a)

HEHE-KEFE/EEA

AEBEALAA  BAEEHR
AREVENFERIIULERE
AR EEHEMNERHRA
FESF(2023F  1FE5F) -
RNEBMEF2024F12A31BILE
EHEANEERABOEETT

4 —

(20234 : 37AETT) °

M12A318 - RETATREER L
EHE  RRHHEBEN KA
T

48 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS
AND LEASING ARRANGEMENT (conrinuen)

(a)

Operating leases — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into operating leases, as a lessor, on
the usage of the Group’s office premises rental. These leases
have terms of between 1 and 5 years (2023: 1 and 5 years).
Rental income recognised by the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2024 was $49 million (2023: $37 million).

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases as at December 31 were, as follows:

2024 2023
—FR Within one year 21,684 34,734
FE—FBEE_FIN After one year but within two years,

(8F—%F) inclusive 4,966 18,320
FE_EJREBE=FINAN After two years but within three years,

(B8 =F) inclusive 410 4,966
FZFEZBBENFZA After three years but within four years,

(E%MmF) inclusive - 410

27,060 58,430
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48 FBEEE  AEREEZR
B

(b) ERRHMEEHEBEAZNES
EREXREFENEH
TRIRTEREEMEEER
A EHRERBRERHFY)
EFRBENER - M EEs@K
Bt _EARBEREL 78

48 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS
AND LEASING ARRANGEMENT (conminuen)

(b) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
on loan and other credit related commitments

The following table shows the reconciliation from the opening
balance to the closing balance of the expected credit loss
allowances on loan and other credit related commitments.
Explanation of the terms: 12-month ECL, lifetime ECL and

HRMERBRNE EEEAR

EfEHL R -

credit-impaired are included in Note 8(a)(x).

e ERE E=RE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
RELNEY REHES
+=f8A FEREX ERBR%
BHEA BRBEEH RERE
BX HE ERRE fam
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit-  ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
F004%F1 B 1 BEER Balance as at January 1, 2024 194,109 34,340 = 228,449
EBEE-RA Transfer to stage 1:
+-AREHERIEL 12-month ECL 18,926 (18,926) - -
BYEE[AE Transfer to
FRORHERRXRE stage 2:
ABEERRE lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (1,202) 1,202 = =
BREERE Transfer to
FESRRHERBELR stage 3:
BEECHRE lifetime ECL credit-impaired (234) (279) 513 =
A New commitments
BB A F G originated or purchased* 86,403 1,393 - 87,796
BEIE Commitments that
TR have been derecognised (51,376) (4,104) - (55,480)
i Write-offs - - _ _
Recoveries of amounts
WEEHE 5 previously written-offs - - - -
BHEFE Net remeasurements (Including
(BEE2E0E) changes in risk parameters) (43,487) 12,500 (513) (31,500)
ONERH 2 Foreign exchange and other movements (1,304) = - (1,304)
2024512831 B ER Balance as at December 31,2024 201,835 26,126 - 227,961
o
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48 FBEEE  AKEREEZR
B

48 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, COMMITMENTS
AND LEASING ARRANGEMENT (conrinuen)

(b) EXRNREMEEHBERARGENTAL (b) Movement in change in expected credit loss allowances
EREXEENES(Z) on loan and other credit related commitments (continued)
E—RE ERE =R
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
BT “‘“’Hﬂﬁﬁﬂ
+={87 ERBX EREX
REER BREE REEE
Bk ERRE EARE fa ]
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
Eézoza@ H w EI E‘J%ﬁﬁ% Balance as at January 1, 2023 149,309 35,33 - 184,542
BBE3 Transfer to stage 1:
f:{lﬂ %EHM 2Rl 12-month ECL 16,180 (16,180) - -
BREE R
FEREHEREXE Transfer to stage 2
REEEARE lifetime ECL not credit-impaired (880) 880 - -
BREEIRE
FEHBHERELR Transfer to stage 3:
BRLEEARE lifetime ECL credit-impaired (208) (239) 447 -
RS New commitments
YN e originated or purchased* 42978 1276 - 44254
BEIE Commitments that
o have been derecognised (27952) (7,508) - (35,460)
HhisH Write-offs - - - _
WEE Recoveries of amounts
M 28 previously written-offs - - - -
g quz/%‘%E Net remeasurements
(BEBR2ENEL) (Including changes in risk parameters) 15,129 20880 (447) 35562
SNERE M E) Foreign exchange and other movements (447) Q) - (449)
MR2023F 12431 AR e Balance as at December 31, 2023 194,109 34,340 - 228449
* 20244 K 2023F A+ FT A B HUK * During 2024 and 2023, all loan commitments were initially classified

AERNDBRE—RE - WERE
AR WA REEEEAR
B EPEHORAERSRIRERF
HAERBAE _RRAE=IER -

49 BEAREIE

R12A31 BB REN T X ARELE A M
R NI BB EAAYEN T -

in Stage 1 and were not considered as credit-impaired at the time of
origination or purchase. Some were subsequently transferred into Stage
2 or Stage 3 based on the result of credit assessments.

49 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at December 31, not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

2024 2023
BET4) B R BERE Y Expenditure contracted but
_ not provided for 128,861 103,908
EREERTHNAXS Expenditure authorised but
not contracted for 29,273 20,976
158,134 124,884
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50 AEREREBRMET 50 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) REBANHERPKETEHNEE (@) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash outflow from
ESREEERRK operations
2024 2023
BT Operating activities
eyl Operating profit 7,031,649 4,790,459
HE Adjustments for:

IS ON Dividend income (1,866) (5,792)
e Depreciation 474,228 494,806
ez 8 §E HEt ] Net charges on expected credit losses 217,580 957,972
BB U [E IEE’]W% B3 Written-off of loans and advances (2,361,129) (289,158)

BAREBE u‘l’iﬂﬁ f8)zt A Amortisation of premium/discount on financial
Hip 2K EmEE assets measured at fair value through other
BR8Py comprehensive income (1,672,526) (1,077,116)
RERKATTEN Amortisation of premium/discount on other assets
HEERRE measured at amortised cost
ik 13 - (665)
BT EMERESN Amortisation of discount on other debt securities
P oy issued (3,495) 417
AREEHAER Fair value adjustments 529,482 14,507
HERDABEAEEHES Netgains from disposal of financial assets
st AR A 2 E W E R measured at fair value through other
SRIEERRFE comprehensive income (146,187) (71,178)
FEBRAABEERTH Net gain attributable to the hedged risk in respect
EMBEEMFERRRDY of the hedged item under fair value hedge
i (73,345) (231,941)
EREH s & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 1,155,070 (1,149,194)
5,149,461 3433117
REEEGEM) B (Increase)/decrease in operating assets
T Fh SR 85 17 RO 4577 A1 FR 2 B B Balances and placements with banks with original
A=EA FHRITEETF  maturity beyond three months and balances with
NG RHERITHIA central banks (6,586,794) (5347,517)
RITER BPEFRK Gross advances to banks, advances to customers and
BHERESE trade bills (20,880,020) 9,808,597
REBAB=EA A_E 2R 42 Financial assets measured at fair value through profit
F{E.ﬁr;ﬂ/ L @)zt AJB  orloss with original maturity beyond three months
HNEREE (2,667,854) 814,871
MTEERIA Derivative financial instruments (6,053,575) (23,953)
Hiw&E Other assets 460,041 (1,881,257)
(35,728,202) 3,370,741
meaB/ORY) B Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
RITHNFERFET Deposits and balance with banks 3,728,619 (4,331,980)
LG FNHENSRMEE  Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (5,945,451) 643,047
BEEFE#R Deposits from customers (9,312,057) 28456,677
MEL@MIT A Derivative financial instruments 5,157,699 487,169
BRITHEMEBERES Other debt securities issued 2,539,363 (19,603)
BEREANEE Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
AABRNEREE profit or loss 10,404,896 6,181,387
HihBE Other liabilities (232,781) (3°248811)
6,340,288 28,167,886
(24,238,453) 34971,744
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

50 B ERERMT 2 50 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (conminuen)

(b) HEBRSHREXRARNESHNE (b) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
SEZEEY statement of cash flows
2024 2023
HEMAERITRAPRIEITA  Gross cash and balances with banks and
ETrgase central banks 34,752,533 46,954,750
RENE A A =18 A AR Placements with banks with original
7 MR T IR maturity within three months 2,701,158 12,272,928
YR EE AMNSEEAE  Financal assets held under reverse
repurchase agreements - 2,023,967
REEH & =18 AR Financial assets measured at fair value
BEAnBEFEAHEY through profit or loss with original
AFABERNEREE maturity within three months 93,466 616,859
BRI E A=A URiZ Financial assets measured at fair value
AR BEFEBEEEEET A through other comprehensive income
Em2mlmmemEE with original maturity within three
months 11,095,968 11,313,228
48,643,125 73,181,732
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

50 SRS REERTME ») 50 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (conminuen)

() EBZEHMBRRKRYEER (c) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement of
financial position

2024 2023
e MAERITRPLRIEITA  Cash and balances with banks and central
w17 (P EE21) banks (Note 21) 34,863,923 46,954,109
R TRIE(M15E22) Placements with banks (Note 22) 37,534,839 40,632,740
YR EE AMNSEEAE  Financial assets held under reverse
(BF&E23) repurchase agreements (Note 23) = 2,023,967
BARBESERBEEEET A Finandal assets measured at fair value
BaremEE (FE2s) through profit or loss (Note 25) 4,037,977 1,906,328
AR BESERBEZEE A Finandal assets measured at fair value
Ht2EWarnemEE through other comprehensive income
(Bi3F26) (Note 26) 144,765,736 128,717,611
IRESAK AT EREMEZE  Otherassets measured at amortised cost
(HiE27) (Note 27) 722,500 1,576,306
AR RAEEE  Amounts shown in consolidated
statement of financial position 221,924,975 221,811,061
B REHAA A Less: Amounts with an original maturity
=& A LA E#93kIE beyond three months
FHERTTRAE Placements with banks (34,946,606) (28,359,812)
BARBENEAEESE Financial assets measured at fair
ABHIHEREE value through profit or loss (3,944,511) (1,289,469)
BARBENEAEESE Financial assets measured at fair value
AHt2EKEN e mEE through other comprehensive
income (133,669,768) (117,405,674)
REBRKATENHMEE Other assets measured at amortised
cost (722,500) (1,577,801)
T8 HR{= 1B L e Expected credit loss allowances 1,535 3427
FARERERIRNIES K& Cash and cash equivalents in the
BeEEY consolidated statement of cash flows 48,643,125 73,181,732
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(BRAFRIFERRSN - ABHEET JTHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

50 B ERERMT 2 50 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (conminuen)

(d) FABMETEEBNDN (d) Analysis of changes in financing activities during the
year
HESE
Lease liabilities
20241 A1 B & Balance as at January 1, 2024 853,346
A& EEmmntaiRe Cash outflow from financing activities (238,442)
FEZH Interest expense 16,786
PEREEREREN Interest paid classified as operating cash flow
EXfIHLE (16,786)
HHEBEEMBHIEIRESEE Non-cash movement related to lease liabilities 109,639
72024412 A31 BHY 4584 Balance as at December 31, 2024 724,543
HEBE
Lease liabilities
R2023F 1 A1 B & Balance as at January 1,2023 978,624
A& EEmmntaiRe Cash outflow from financing activities (237,080)
FEZH Interest expense 16,737
PEREEREREN Interest paid classified as operating cash flow
EXfIHE (16,737)
HAEBEEMBHIEIRESEE Non-cash movement related to lease liabilities 111,802
R2023F 12 A31 B & Balance as at December 31,2023 853,346
(e) FRERBNBMETZTEH (e) Non-cash investing and financing activities
E2024F N - AEREMEEIR The Group's major non-cash investing and financing activities
PRENREZHBREHERTE include gain on disposal of fixed assets and share of profit of a
BEWGANEESEECENR joint venture in 2024. During the year, the Group had non-cash
Mo RFRNEAEEENIER net additions to right-of-use assets of $111 million (2023: $116
FIEMA11TAETT(2023F - million) and non-cash movement related to lease liabilities as
M6E&TT) » REFRHTEE50(d) A disclosed in Note 50(d).
HEBERANIEREES -
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(BB RIFERRSN - LABEE T THI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

51 EEHEE > 2 EZEE 51 ASSETS PLEDGED, ASSETS TRANSFERRED

E - REWEERMm

AR IERANCEEZSRE
EREERENERAE

AND COLLATERAL RECEIVED

Transferred financial assets not qualifying for full derecognition and
their associated financial liabilities

2024 2023
HEAEN HEEED
CEZEE KREEE 2EEEE KEEE
WEREEE (ME39) HEREERE . (FEEs39)
Carrying Carrying
Carrying amount of Carrying amount
amount of associated amount of of associated
transferred liabilities  transferred liabilities
assets (Note 39) assets (Note 39)

(o] B fh Repurchase agreements

3,711,489 3,425,121 10,180,130 9,370,572

EXFRREREERRITAKL
BEREFNEERTH IBRANE
B IBRXSYUTFREDE RS
EERRNEEES  ARRERS
EERAAMEE  HEEAREE
RUtER A BEFEARZESHA
Ht2HARameREELBHER
i f2 BR 7R &= (B A R 2R B AR Bl E (B A%
MECEBREECEENHEBAE
TR BA TSRS 2R R RERR © E IR HETT UL
ER5 AEERXZHATEERE
B HEXBERAZEFCEREE -
AEERHFCER T ADRALER
LR EERBRETIZER X5
HFMERELTRANEEBREE -

& WEUE 7 fm
FIEERmMEET 2RI OB ZE
ETETARESER  ZERHR
PREHZERTETARESN —RK
RABH GRFETT

H 1E2024F 128318 » A AETE
HTHESBERZEEROARE
fE(2023 : 2,085ABIT) ° B 1F2024%F
12831HM2023F 128310 » WESE
BHESBERCERM -

The financial assets shown above include amounts transferred to
third parties that do not qualify for derecognition are mainly debt
securities held by counterparties as collateral under repurchase
agreements. As the substance of these transactions is secured
borrowings, the collateral assets continue to be recognised in full
as financial assets measured at fair value through comprehensive
income and the related liabilities, reflecting the Group’s obligation
to repurchase the transferred assets for a fixed price at a future date,
are also recognised on the statement of financial position. As a result
of these transactions, the Group is unable to use, sell or repledge
the transferred assets for the duration of the transactions. The Group
remains exposed to interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk
on these pledged instruments. The counterparty’s recourse is not
limited to the transferred assets.

Collateral received

Assets accepted as collateral related primarily to reverse repurchase
agreements and derivative margining. These transactions are
conducted under terms that are usual and customary to reverse
repurchase agreements and derivative margining.

At as December 31, 2024, the fair value of collateral permitted to sell
or repledge in the absence of default is HKSNil (2023: 2,085 million).
As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there was no
collateral actually sold or repledged.
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52

53

54

IMMEDIATE PARENT AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At as December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Bank’s
immediate parent is CCB Overseas Holdings Limited ("CCBOHL"),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong. CCBOHL is controlled by
CCBC. Central Huijin Investment Ltd. is the controlling party of CCBC,
and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation
which is a wholly state-owned investment and management
company. The Group’s intermediate parent, CCBC, which is a
listed bank incorporated in the Mainland China, produces financial
statements available for public use.

COMPARATIVES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the
presentation and disclosures in the current year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events after the reporting period.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

#HZE2024F12A31BIEFE | For the year ended December 31, 2024
(BRAERIFERASN - ABEETITHIIR) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

RAEMBRRMELA TRER XM TN
B RAMACGRITR(WE) AR MR

The notes to the consolidated financial statements and the following
unaudited supplementary information are prepared to comply with the

&l o Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
1 EANRKEHEE 1 OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ASSETS
(a) BH=EAULNETET - T (a) Gross advances to banks, advances to customers and

FERREZRBHAE

trade bills overdue for more than three months:

#2024512A31H 20235124316
As at December 31, 2024 As at December 31, 2023
HEFER HEFER
BmEHot BEANL
% on total % on total
advances to advances to
banks and banks and
customers customers
=AML AEAUA Six months or less but over three months 75,136 0.03 540,591 020
NEAME  —FEHUA One year or less but over six months 104,494 0.04 395,238 015
—FpAE Over one year 357,252 0.13 634,336 024
BEA=AAAFMEREE  Total gross amount of advances
overdue for more than three months 536,882 0.20 1,570,165 0.59
e REAERELS Expected credit loss allowances
BHERERER made in respect of the above
overdue advances 433,552 1,484,278
ROBHETMEEMRE  Netrealisable value of collateral held
MR FRE against the overdue advances 170,651 160,525
BRASERNEERSY Covered portion of overdue advances 131,234 127,195
BRASERNEERSY Uncovered portion of overdue advances 405,648 1442970
536,882 1,570,165

M2024512 8318 © R BHE
FEZXMBFENERBARFEFEAT
B EREEHE(2023F © T
BENEEYE) -

As at December 31, 2024, collaterals held with respect of
overdue advances to customers are mainly commercial
properties and residential properties (2023: commercial
properties and residential properties).

R20245%12 A31 8 & 2023128
318 - WEE BB =E A LR

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there were
no advances to banks and trade bills overdue for more than
three months.
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(BRAFRIRERRSN -

1 CRERKEAEE»

(b)

(c)

REARTENR  FEFERKRE
ZEE

HZE2024F 12831 HIEFE | For the year ended December 31, 2024
LAE#SFIT57R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Rescheduled advances to banks, advances to customers
and trade bills:

2024 2023

HRITER RIRTER

REFER REFER

BEHo BEADL

% on total % on total

advances to advances

banks and to banks

customers customers

REHXPER Rescheduled advances to customers 54,442 0.02 58,191 002

REBEHEEFTEREARERARRK
AR B R IR IR E R R
AMEKLEEAXEFEENE
Ko BEERDLERTHERK
HHAITM S BRIFEEME -
REAFTPENRCHKRERBY
BB=EAWEBF A LB S

2024512 318 &20235F 128
310 WEKLEMHNBRITER R
EH5EE -

202412 A31H K2023F 124
318 » BRUAERTIAN - WEEEAD

Rescheduled advances are those advances which have been
restructured or renegotiated because of deterioration in
the financial position of the borrower, or the inability of the
borrower to meet the original repayment schedule and for
which the revised payment terms are non-commercial to
the Bank. The rescheduled advances are stated net of any
advances that have subsequently become overdue for over
three months and reported as overdue advances as above.

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there were
no rescheduled advances to banks and trade bills.

(c) Other overdue and rescheduled assets

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there were
no other overdue and rescheduled assets, other than the
above mentioned.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank has complied with the requirements set out on the
Supervisory Policy Manual Module, CG-1 “Corporate Governance of
Locally Incorporated Authorised Institutions” issued by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority.

There are five special committees under the Board of Directors,
namely Executive Committee, Strategy and Corporate Governance
Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Risk Committee. There are nine key functional
committees, of which Asset and Liability Committee, Fintech and
Digitalisation Promotion Committee, Safety Production Committee,
Accountability Committee, Corporate Banking Committee and
Retail Banking Committee directly report to Executive Committee,
while Risk Management Committee, Credit Committee and Internal
Control, Compliance and Operations Committee jointly report to
Executive Committee and Risk Committee.

(@) Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibilities to
the shareholders, depositors, creditors, employees, other
stakeholders, and banking supervisors of the Group in
ensuring that the business and operational functions of
the Group are managed in a prudent, professional and
competent manner and in conformity with relevant laws and
regulations. Key specialised committees are established to be
responsible to and report to the Board of Directors, and assist
the Board of Directors in performing its duties according to
the authorisation of the Board of Directors. The functional
committees are established to ensure that such operational
functions, as well as efficient management of the main types of
risk arising out of the business, are effectively carried out. The
Board of Directors held four meetings in 2024.

The key functions and powers of the Board of Directors are set
out below:

- Determining the Bank’s development strategy, and
supervising its implementation;

- Deciding on the business plan, investment plan and risk
capital distribution plan of the Bank;

- Preparing annual financial budget and final accounts of
the Bank;
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conmnuep)

(a)

Board of Directors (continued)

The key functions and powers of the Board of Directors are set
out below: (continued)

Preparing profit distribution plan and planning for
making up losses of the Bank;

Preparing plans for the increase or reduction of the
Bank’s share capital, issuance of the Bank's convertible
bonds, subordinated bonds, corporate bonds or other
negotiable securities and listing;

Preparing plans for the Bank’s major acquisitions;

Preparing plans for merger, division, dissolution and
liquidation of the Bank;

Within the scope of shareholder’s authorization, deciding
on the Bank's equity investment, bond investment,
asset acquisition, asset disposal, asset written-off, asset
mortgage, other non-commercial banking business
guarantees and external donations;

Deciding on the setting up of the Bank’s internal
management divisions;

Deciding on the setting up and withdrawal of
subsidiaries/offices;

According to the shareholder’s requirements, appointing
or ceasing to appoint senior management members and
determining their remuneration, reward and penalty;

Overseeing the appointment and cessation of other
senior management member, key personnel and risk
control personnel of the Bank, and their distribution
proposal of remuneration and any subsequent
adjustments, to ensure that they are fit and proper to
manage and supervise the key business and internal
control functions;
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2 TEEB® 2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conminuep)

(a) EFE(#) (@)
ExgnI2BEnT - (&)

Board of Directors (continued)

The key functions and powers of the Board of Directors are set
out below: (continued)
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Formulating the Bank's basic management systems, and
supervising the implementation of these systems;

Deciding on risk management policies and internal
control policies of the Bank, formulating risk
management system and internal control system of
the Bank, and supervising the implementation of such
systems;

Reviewing the Bank’s sustainability strategies, goals and
priorities as well as material sustainability related policies
and the environmental, social and governance issues
which are material to the Bank and the related measures,
and overseeing the Bank’s sustainability performance;

Making proposal for the engagement, dismissal or
retention of auditors to the Shareholders’ General
Meeting, and determine their remuneration and related
arrangements;

Reviewing and supervising matters relating to major
related party transactions;

Receiving and reviewing work reports of the Bank’s
senior management, and supervising, checking and
assessing his/her work and adopting accountability
system;

Assessing and evaluating the duty performance of
directors, senior management members, the Board of
Directors and its individual Special Committee;

Regularly evaluating and continuously improving
corporate governance of the Bank, and conducting a
regular evaluation of the performance of the Board of
Directors;
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conmnuep)

(a)

Board of Directors (continued)

The key functions and powers of the Board of Directors are set
out below: (continued)

Assessing the ongoing suitability of each director at least
annually, taking into account the director’s performance
of duties at the Board of Directors and the respective
special committees who is sitting, whether the director
could devote sufficient time, and whether the director
is involved in any potential conflicts of interest, etc.,
and other relevant factors as appropriate, where the
performance of individual director does not meet
expectations, if there is involvement of serious concern
on a director’s integrity, the Board of Directors should
take timely and appropriate action; propose to the
shareholders the arrangement on the re-appointment of
directors;

Formulating the amendments to the Articles of
Association of the Bank, and formulating other systems,
rules and measures of the Board of Directors and their
amendments;

Formulating the capital planning and relevant systems
on capital adequacy ratio assessment and management
of the Bank, and supervising the implementation of such
systems;

Formulating systems for the management of accounting
consolidation of the Bank and its subsidiaries, and
supervising the implementation of such systems;

Formulating the Bank's regulatory disclosures policy and
supervise the implementation of such policy;
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(a) EFE(#) (@)
ExgnI2BEnT - (&)

Board of Directors (continued)

The key functions and powers of the Board of Directors are set
out below: (continued)
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Considering to delegate all or any part of the authorities
of operation and management granted to the Bank
through “Shareholder Proposal” to the Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank and allowing the Chief Executive
Officer of the Bank to further delegate all or part of his/
her relevant authority to other personnel of the Bank
provided that the aforesaid delegation should be made
in accordance with the mechanism set up in the relevant
policy or by way of authorisation document; authorizing
the Chief Executive Officer to execute the adjusted
authorization after receiving the "Notice of Adjustment
to the Shareholder Proposal” from the shareholder and
reporting such adjustment to the Executive Committee,
provided that if the relevant adjustment of authorization
is material (e.g. increasing the type of authorization
or authority power, etc.), such material adjustment of
authorization should be reported to the Board; and

Exercising other functions and powers vested by laws,
regulations, rules, and relevant provisions of the relevant
regulatory authorities, and the Articles of Association
as well as those authorised by the Bank's ultimate sole
shareholder, CCBC, and/or the Shareholders’ General
Meeting.
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE conmnuep)

(a)

Board of Directors (continued)

Members of the Board of Directors, who come from a variety
of different backgrounds, have a diverse range of business,
banking and professional expertise. As at December 31, 2024,
the Board of Directors comprises an Executive Director and six
Non-executive Directors. Of the six Non-executive Directors,
four are Independent Non-executive Directors (“independent
directors”).

In order to promote sustainable development and to
diversify the composition of the Board of Directors, the Bank
has in place a policy on the selection and appointment of
directors. For nomination of directors, the Board of Directors
shall consider both capabilities and professional ethics of
the candidates, and at the same time, take into account the
requirement of board diversity. The candidates should be
complementary including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service of persons
with diversified backgrounds. The final decision shall be
based on the candidates’ overall competence and possible
contributions to the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
implementation of the selection and appointment policy for
directors which is approved by the Board of Directors.
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(b) BITEEE (b) Executive Committee

WITZEgYHESEERE - The Executive Committee is responsible to the Board of
EREERA Directors. The main duties and powers of the Executive
Committee are:

b

— EBEFexiimiiEsEn: -~ Matters assigned by the Board of Directors;

5 Hl E RITEBUE . Research and formulate the Bank's specific
ERRUNRESEH measures to better implement the relevant policies
B R A B E R and guidelines of shareholder and the Board of
i Directors;

EBEVIEBETEZRE . Prepare and propose matters which are required
EEEM TRNE to be submitted to the Board of Directors for
15 - A - approval or discussion, including:

- ERREWND

Significant investment or asset disposal;

2l

- BARSERAD - Capital arrangement proposals, capital
IREHEEARS planning and allocation guidelines;
EERXEE
5l

- KAWBAE - Any subsidiaries/offices establishment and
MER - RER withdrawal;
$ s

— R HESE - Any programs of medium term bonds or
Bk FEER listed warrants;
£
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

(b) Executive Committee (continued)

The Executive Committee is responsible to the Board of
Directors. The main duties and powers of the Executive
Committee are: (continued)

- Matters assigned by the Board of Directors: (continued)

Prepare and propose matters which are required
to be submitted to the Board of Directors for
approval or discussion, including: (continued)

- Report the potential impacts of significant
changes in internal rating policies and rating
override cases;

- Report on the scope and performance of
internal control systems yearly;

- Recovery Plan;

- Engagement, retention or dismissal of
external auditors;

- The direction of climate-related
development strategies, risks and
opportunities and report its working
progress and performance;

- Conduct preliminary review of matters
relating to major related party transactions;
and

- Other matters requiring approval by the
Board of Directors.
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(b) BMITZEEG(E) (b) Executive Committee (continued)
WL EeHEgseas  H=E The Executive Committee is responsible to the Board of
DR EERA (,.Afé") Directors. The main duties and powers of the Executive

Committee are: (continued)

- EFEEXHOMEBEEIE: - Matters assigned by the Board of Directors: (continued)
(%)

EZENEBHRITZES Review and approve the composition and terms
MBEZESNKE of reference of functional committees directly
2

AR E T E408 - reporting to Executive Committee, including:
7=
- BEEBREZE —  Assetand Liability Committee;
~
— SRREEHT ~  Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion
ftEBREET Committee;
- TEHEEZB - Safety Production Committee;
- BMEERZES8 ~  Accountability Committee;
- RAEBERZ - Corporate Banking Committee
BE
- TEXBEREZ ~  Retail Banking Committee
B
— ERBEEZLE - Risk Management Committee;
- EEZEE®: R - Credit Committee; and
- RNEZEEREEZR - Internal Control, Compliance and Operations
8g o Committee.
%?ﬁt&'ﬂﬁ_iﬁ#ﬂﬁéﬁ . Approve matters that exceed the authority of
eTEBKELTED functional committees and working committees/
&%* iA/If’E working units but within the authority delegated
AR EIER - B X by the Board of Directors to Executive Committee;
TEFERTEIE
PRAEET ;
EENENEEE . Review and approve matters related to the
MEEEE Resolution Planning; and
EmEEEERE . Other matters assigned by the Board of Directors
12/ EHNEE o for review or handling.
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

Executive Committee (continued)

The Executive Committee is responsible to the Board of
Directors. The main duties and powers of the Executive
Committee are: (continued)

- Matters of Business Management:

Analyse the macroeconomic situations and policy
environment, conduct thematic research on
strategic topics and formulate strategic plans;

Direct asset and liability management;

Direct system development of internal
management and control;

Direct and supervise major issues related to the
management of subsidiaries;

Review or approve the Bank's major management
systems and regulations, including but not limited
to the systems of the committees;

Study and review the Bank's schemes of
organizational structure and functional
committees’ setup, as well as allocation of
divisional functions;

Review the annual financial budgeting and
financial reports;

Supervise the operations of internal rating systems;

Approve matters related to significant fixed asset
acquisitions, significant finance expenditures, as
well as charity donations made by the Bank;

Decide compromised compensation in significant
cases, the compensation expenditures in
significant litigation and penalty matters from
external regulators within the authorization from
the Board of Directors; and

Handle/review other management matters of
importance.
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(b) BITEEE(E) (b) Executive Committee (continued)

WITRESHESFEAS HX
ZRERERS (&)

The Executive Committee is responsible to the Board of
Directors. The main duties and powers of the Executive
Committee are: (continued)

Matters of Authorization and Human Resources
Management:

- BRREAZEEESNR: -
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BILEEEE AR
EIBEENEE

M ER SRR - A6
FI8 8 AN EZ R
BEIR

RTENUNERITEE £
W OREARTE
B2 EALERR

54
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Determine and revise functional committees’ and
senior management’s authority and delegation of
authority;

Review the proposal of the independent non-
executive directors nominated by the Bank,
the appointment and cessation of other senior
management members, General Manager, Deputy
General Manager, and ad-hoc staff of the Bank,
and the adjustments of division of responsibilities
among members of senior management;

Investigate and recommend to the Risk
Committee/Audit Committee the appointment
and cessation of heads of internal control functions
of the Bank;

Investigate and review the assessments and
corresponding rewards and punishments for
representatives of each line of business and
division;

Decide to use the title of the Bank to report,
compliment, and grant honors to group(s) or
individual(s); and

Handle/review other matters of authorization and
human resources management.

BRERTEZESHITIEME] - #
TEEERRTESREEIR
FAERK - B1TE B 202024 F
0 Eﬁ‘f’@/ﬂ’;\% °

According to the terms of reference of the Executive
Committee, the Executive Committee shall be composed of
executive directors and all executive vice presidents of the
Bank. The Executive Committee held 14 meetings in 2024.
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

()

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee

The Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee is
responsible to the Board of Directors and the main duties and
powers of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee

Preparing the Bank's strategy and development plan,
supervising and evaluating the implementation of plan,
and providing suggestions to the Board of Directors;

Examining the Bank’s annual operation plan and fixed
asset investment budget, and submitting them to the
Board of Directors for consideration;

Examining the report on implementation of annual
operation plan and fixed asset investment budget;

Evaluating coordinative development of various
businesses, and providing suggestions to the Board of
Directors;

Examining significant organisational adjustment
and institutional scheme of the Bank, and providing
suggestions to the Board of Directors;

Examining major investment and financing plan of
the Bank, and providing suggestions to the Board of
Directors;

Supervising the implementation of the relevant
resolutions of the Shareholders’ General Meetings and
board meetings;
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee (continued)

The Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee is
responsible to the Board of Directors and the main duties and
powers of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee
are: (continued)

- Regularly receiving and reviewing the reports of
senior management and making suggestions on
operation management, as well as formulating rules for
implementation to facilitate execution;

- Ensuring that the Bank has committed adequate
efforts, time and resources according to compliance
requirements;

- Formulating and regularly reviewing whether the Bank
is in compliance with the laws, regulations and codes on
corporate governance, and making suggestions to the
Board of Directors; and

- Other matters authorised by the Board of Directors.

According to the terms of reference of the Strategy and
Corporate Governance Committee, the Strategy and Corporate
Governance Committee shall be composed of at least three
directors. The Chairman of the Strategy and Corporate
Governance Committee shall be taken by the Chairman of
the Board of Directors. Members other than the Chairman
of the Strategy and Corporate Governance Committee shall
be appointed by the Board of Directors. The Strategy and
Corporate Governance Committee held four meetings in 2024.
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(d)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee serves as the “eyes and ears” to the
Board of Directors in monitoring compliance with the Group’s
policies and other internal and statutory regulations. It provides
oversight of the Group's internal and external auditors and
thereby assists the Board of Directors in providing independent
review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process
and internal control system of the Group.

The main duties and powers of the Audit Committee are:

Supervising financial reports of the Bank, and examining
the Bank’s accounting information and disclosure of its
major events;

Supervising and evaluating internal control of the Bank,
including internal rating systems related issues of the
Bank;

Supervising and evaluating external audit of the Bank,
proposing to the Board of Directors on engagement or
replacement of independent audit firm, and responsible
for the communication and co-ordination between
external auditors and internal auditors;

Paying attention to improper acts which may occur,
reviewing and ensuring the Bank with proper
arrangements in place for fair and independent
investigation of improper acts and for appropriate
follow-up actions.

Approving the appointment or cessation of the Head of
Internal Audit Division, participating in the assessment of
the person in charge of the Internal Audit Division;

Approving the internal audit charter prepared by the
Internal Audit Division and its regular updates;

Receiving and reviewing the work report of the person
in charge of the Internal Audit Division; inspecting,
monitoring and assessing the internal audit function;
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(d) BIFZEEE(E) (d) Audit Committee (continued)
EZEEMNETEREERA - The main duties and powers of the Audit Committee are:
(#&) (continued)
— REEEEMARNIPETE Urging the management to provide adequate resources
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to and appropriate standing of internal auditors;

Reporting to the Board of Directors its work and
maintaining communication and co-operation with
other special committees;

Discussing the problems faced in the financial audit and
suggestions, and any matters proposed by the auditor
for discussion (without the presence of the management
at the meeting);

Reviewing and approving the scope of audit, its
frequency, internal audit plan and the needs for human
and financial resources after identifying the coverage of
business risks to ensure audit coverage is appropriate to
risk exposures and resources;

Reviewing the audit report and ensuring that the senior
management (together with the monitoring division)
take actions as necessary to tackle the internal control
weaknesses, areas that do not comply with the laws,
regulations and policies, or issues identified by other
auditors/internal auditors in a timely manner,

Reporting to the Board of Directors significant audit
findings, and making relevant suggestions;

Engaging intermediary agencies to provide professional
advisory services and assist the Audit Committee in

making professional judgment; and

Other matters authorised by the Board of Directors.
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

(d)

(e)

Audit Committee (continued)

According to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Audit Committee shall consist of at least three directors,
shall only be composed of non-executive directors, the
majority of whom shall be independent directors, and as
a whole shall have adequate experience in audit practices,
financial reporting and accounting and shall possess a
collective balance of skills and expertise. Members of the
Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall be appointed
for the Audit Committee to take charge of the work of the
Audit Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
shall be an independent director with a background in
accounting, banking, or other relevant financial industry. To
ensure independence, the Chairman of the Audit Committee
shall not be the Chairman of the Board of Directors or of any
other committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall
be elected by more than half of the members of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee held four meetings in 2024.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible
to the Board of Directors and the main duties and powers of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are:

- Organising the formulation of standards and procedures
for the election of directors and senior management
members of the Bank, and submitting the proposed
procedures and standards to the Board of Directors for
approval;

- Proposing to the Board of Directors on candidates
for directors and chief executive officer (include the
alternate chief executive) of the Bank;

- Proposing to the Board of Directors on candidates
for members of special committees of the Board of
Directors;
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

(e)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible
to the Board of Directors and the main duties and powers of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are: (continued)

- Reporting to the Board of Directors the resignation or
retirement of the members of the Board of Directors
and special committees of the Board of Directors, and
proposing to the Board of Directors for acceptance and
approval;

- Examining the candidates for senior management
members of the Bank nominated in accordance with
rules of shareholder and making suggestions to the
Board of Directors;

- Formulating development plans for the senior
management members of the Bank and fostering plans
for key backup talents;

- Making recommendations in respect of the Bank’s
remuneration policy and practices to the Board of
Directors to ensure the remuneration policy is consistent
with the legal and regulatory requirements;

- Organising the preparation of performance evaluation
methods and remuneration plan for directors of the
Bank, and submitting them to the Board of Directors for
review;

- Organising the preparation of performance evaluation
methods and remuneration plan for senior management
members of the Bank and submitting them to the Board
of Directors for approval;

- Organising performance evaluation on directors,
proposing the distribution of remuneration of directors,
and submitting it to the Board of Directors for review;
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the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are: (continued)

- Organising performance evaluation on the senior
management members, proposing the plan of
distribution of remuneration and any subsequent
adjustments for these senior management members,
and submitting it to the Board of Directors for approval;

- Overseeing the performance evaluation on other senior
management members, key personnel and risk control
personnel of the Bank, and approving their distribution
proposal of remuneration and any subsequent
adjustments;

- Supervising the implementation of the Bank’s
performance evaluation system;

- Ensuring a regular (at least annual) review of the Bank's
remuneration system and its operation is conducted
independently of management and the result is
submitted to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority as
required;

- Reporting to the Board of Directors any material issues in
relation to the remuneration system on a regular basis;

- Reviewing corporate level’s remuneration adjustments
and performance-based bonus with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
of Directors from time to time, assessing whether such
bonus involves any unidentified business interests, and
submitting it to the Board of Directors for approval

- Proposing to the Board of Directors on the change,
appointment or re-appointment of directors and the
succession plan of directors;
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(e)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible
to the Board of Directors and the main duties and powers of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are: (continued)

- Selecting suitably qualified and experienced individuals
as candidates for directors, reviewing the resume of
candidates for directors and evaluate the qualification
of the candidates for directors in accordance with
Section 4 of the Corporate Governance Document
- Supplementary Policy, submitting proposal of
appointment of directors to the Board of Directors for
approval;

- Reviewing on whether existing individual director
remains qualified for his/her post on a regular basis (at
least annually), taking into account each of the director’s
performance of duties at the Board of Directors and the
respective special committees who is sitting, whether
the director could devote sufficient time, and whether
the director is involved in any potential conflicts of
interest, etc.. If a director ceases to be qualified or fails
to fulfil his/her responsibilities, reporting details and
recommending the appropriate action should be taken
to the Board of Directors;

- Recommending to the Board of Directors on the
appointment and cessation of senior management
members; strategic personnel structure adjustment
plans; or personnel adjustment plans that required to be
submitted to the regulatory authorities;

- Overseeing the appointment and cessation of other
senior management members, key personnel and risk
control personnel of the Bank to ensure that they are fit
and proper to manage and supervise the key business
and internal control functions;
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(e)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible
to the Board of Directors and the main duties and powers of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are: (continued)

Examining and approving relevant compensation to the
executive directors and senior management members
for loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure such compensation is consistent with provisions
of relevant contracts; if it fails to abide by relevant
agreements, relevant compensation shall be proper and
reasonable, and recommending the compensation plans
to the Board of Directors;

Examining the compensation to non-executive directors
and independent directors for loss or termination
of office or cease of appointment to ensure such
compensation is proper and consistent with relevant
laws and regulations, and recommending the
compensation plans to the Board of Directors;

Examining and approving compensation for dismissing
or removing relevant directors due to their misconduct
to ensure such arrangement is consistent with provisions
of relevant agreement; if it fails to comply with the
relevant agreements, relevant compensation shall
be reasonable and proper, and recommending the
compensation plans to the Board of Directors;

Reporting its decisions or suggestions to the Board of
Directors unless such report is not allowed by laws or
supervisory regulations;

Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board of Directors (including skills, knowledge and
experience), and putting forth recommendations on
proposed adjustment of the Board of Directors to
implement corporate strategy of the Bank;
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible
to the Board of Directors and the main duties and powers of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are: (continued)

- Regularly reviewing the contribution required from a
director to perform his/her duties and powers to the
Bank, and whether he/she is spending sufficient time
performing them;

- Advising and assisting the Board of Directors in
establishing the Bank's culture and behavioural standards
that promote prudent risk-taking and fair treatment of
customers;

- Formulating or reviewing important human resources
management policies, and submitting them to the Board
of Directors for approval;

- Formulating the manpower plans, and submitting them
to the Board of Directors for approval, and to ensure
sound mechanism for the Board to track and reviewing
the effectiveness of the plans; and

- Other matters authorised by the Board of Directors.

According to the terms of reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee should be composed by majority of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Members of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee shall be appointed by the
Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee shall be taken by an Independent
Non-executive Director, and shall be elected by all members of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and reported
to the Board of Directors for approval. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee held four meetings in 2024.
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2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

(f)

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee is responsible to advise the Board of
Directors in carrying out its risk management responsibilities,
in order to ensure an adequate oversight of the Bank’s overall
risk management framework and to promote regular and
transparent communications within the organisation in respect
of bank-wide risk management issues.

The main duties and powers of the Risk Committee are:

Examining the Bank’s key risk management policies
according to the overall strategy of the Bank, and
supervising and evaluating implementation and
effectiveness of these policies;

Reviewing and recommending the risk appetite
framework, the narrative, risk appetite thresholds of the
Bank's risk appetite statement to the Board of Directors
for approval; reviewing the performance of the Bank
relative to the established thresholds on a quarterly basis;

Reviewing and recommending the recovery plan to the
Board of Directors for approval;

Approving the key policies of internal rating systems,
ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements on
the design and procedures of internal rating systems,
quantification of risk parameters, IT system and data
management, validation and application of internal
rating; and exercising the oversight in implementation of
these policies;

Reviewing the effectiveness of internal rating systems on
an annual basis;
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(f)

Risk Committee (continued)

The main duties and powers of the Risk Committee are:
(continued)

- Approving other key matters in relation to internal rating
systems;

- Providing guideline to the formulation of risk
management system of the Bank;

- Supervising and evaluating the setting, organisation
and effect of risk management division, and making
recommendations for improvement;

- Reviewing the systems and procedures be in place for
identifying, measuring, monitoring, evaluating, reporting
and controlling connected party exposures, to ensure
that the Bank complies with legal obligations under the
Banking (Exposure Limits) Rules in relation to exposures
to connected parties and ensuring an appropriate
balance between the benefits and risks of intragroup
transactions and exposures;

- Reviewing the Bank’s risk report including strict
compliance with any related prudential, statutory and
regulatory limits and relevant requirements, as well
as material risk exposures approved by the senior
management members/Committee members; carrying
out regular evaluation on the Bank's risk position; and
giving opinions on the improvement of the Bank's risk
management;

- Approving the appointment and cessation of heads of
internal control functions (excluding the Head of Internal
Audit Division) of the Bank;
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(f)

Risk Committee (continued)

The main duties and powers of the Risk Committee are:
(continued)

- Evaluating relevant work of heads of internal control
functions (excluding the Head of Internal Audit Division);

- Discussing the risk management strategies of the Bank
based on the existing laws/regulations/regulatory
requirements with due regard to its own business scale,
nature and complexity etc., and making suggestions to
the Board of Directors;

- Ensuring that comprehensive and integrated
management is adopted with respect to the definition,
identification and management of major risks:

Formulating a set of definitions applicable to the
whole entity with respect to different types of risks
faced by the Bank;

Comprehensively monitoring existing risks across
the entity where the entity covers all branches
under the Group where the Bank has management
rights; and

Ensuring that potential risks involved in the
Bank's existing and new businesses are effectively
identified, understood and assessed.
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(f)

Risk Committee (continued)

The main duties and powers of the Risk Committee are:
(continued)

- Approving the risk management framework that
is in line with the Bank’s business objectives, risk
appetite and profile, and ensuring that the framework
is duly implemented and maintained by the senior
management members:

Monitoring and reviewing the risk governance
structure of the Bank and approving the key
risk management policies; ensuring the sound
operation of risk management and various internal
control functions; whether in terms of decision-
making or reporting structure, maintaining
effective independence from the business divisions
that involve risks; possessing adequate power,
resources, professional knowledge and expertise
to perform its duties;

Approving the policy level limits; and

Ensuring that the Bank has a sound stress-testing
system and reviewing the results of stress-testing
program.

- Regularly reviewing the risk management framework
to ensure the Bank has a suitable structural system
to manage its risks arising in the course of business
development and arising from the changes in external
market environments;

- Ensuring that the information system and its
infrastructure are provided with adequate resources to
cope with the Bank’s risk management and reporting
needs;
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(f)

Risk Committee (continued)

The main duties and powers of the Risk Committee are:
(continued)

Regularly review and approve the Bank’s fair valuation
policies; exercise oversight over the implementation
of effective valuation processes and procedures in
accordance with these approved policies; ensure any
fair valuation issues raised are reviewed and properly
addressed; review the governance structure regularly to
ensure it remains appropriate;

Reviewing and recommending to the Board of
Directors to approve the establishment of the Bank’s
policies related to climate risks, and overseeing its
implementation and regularly reviewing the policies to
ensure the Bank's climate policies have been effectively
implemented and met the relevant climate policies and
targets at the time being;

Supervising the compliance of core businesses,
management systems and major operation activities of
the Bank;

Reviewing the compliance policies and receiving report
on implementation, to ensure that compliance risks are
effectively managed;

Reviewing matters relating to major related party
transaction and giving opinions to the Board;

Providing guideline to the formulation of the compliance
risk framework of the Bank;

Supervising and evaluating the setting, organization and
effect of Legal and Compliance Division, and making
recommendations for improvement;
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(f)

Risk Committee (continued)

The main duties and powers of the Risk Committee are:
(continued)

- Reviewing the on-site examination report of Hong
Kong Monetary Authority and reporting the significant
findings;

- Reviewing the Bank’s legal and compliance report
including, but not limited to, reporting of (a) regulatory
incidents, (b) regulatory developments, (c) regulatory
examinations, (d) progress of compliance reviews, (e)
progress of Hong Kong Monetary Authority driven
control self-assessments, (f) anti-money laundering
activities and related controls, and (g) progress of
litigation cases affecting the Bank;

- Ensuring that the compliance function is provided with
adequate resources; and

- Other matters authorised by the Board of Directors.

According to the terms of reference of the Risk Committee,
members of the Risk Committee shall be appointed by the
Board of Directors. The Risk Committee shall be composed
of at least three directors and collectively possess relevant
technical expertise and experience in risk disciplines, the
majority of whom shall be independent directors. The
Chairman shall be an independent director with a background
in accounting, banking or other relevant financial industry or
expertise in risk management. The Chairman shall not be the
same person as the Chairman of the Board of Directors or of
any other committee. The Chairman shall be elected by all
members of the Risk Committee and reported to the Board of
Directors for approval. Other than members of the Committee,
the Deputy Chief Executive overseeing Risk Management
Division, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Compliance Officer, Chief
Risk Officer, Head of Risk Management Division, Head of Legal
and Compliance Division, Head of Internal Audit Division, Head
of Compliance and Head of Financial Crime Compliance of the
Bank shall sit in on meetings of the Risk Committee as ex officio
members. The Committee held four meetings in 2024.
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(9)

(h)

Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCQ") is a functional
committee under the Executive Committee. Its main function
is to base on the annual business plan, financial budgets,
strategic development targets and risk appetite approved by
the Board to formulate strategies over the Bank’s asset and
liability structure and capital allocation, and to ensure the
Bank's business is operated within the acceptable risk tolerance
level, so as to achieve the annual and strategic development
goals approved by the Board.

ALCO members include Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer as the Chairperson, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief
Banking Officer, Chief Operating Officer, the Head of
Finance Division, Risk Management Division, Credit Division,
Credit Management Department, Treasury Division, Data
Management Division, Digital Banking Division, Corporate
Banking Division, Institutional Banking Division, Commercial
Banking Division, Transaction Banking & Capital Market
Division, Transaction Banking Department, Consumer Banking
Division, Private Banking Division and Credit Card & Consumer
Finance Division.

Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion Committee (formerly
known as: Fintech Committee)

The Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion Committee is set
up to act as a functional committee under the Executive
Committee with the following scope and responsibilities:

- Responsible for formulating the overall plan for the
Bank's financial technology construction and digital
operation development, and responsible for researching
and approving strategic development plans, and
optimization adjustments for financial technology
innovation, data governance, intelligent operations,
channel coordination and other matters;

- Responsible for the top-level design and organizational
promotion of financial technology and digital
transformation strategies and the construction of
reusable and shared capabilities such as data middle
office and business middle office; formulate the bank’s
financial technology working mechanism and various
development measures;

RERLIRIEST () RBRAT 2024555 Q9N ——



AEBRHAMBER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HZE20245F12 A31BIEFZ | For the year ended December 31, 2024

(B4 RIEERASN - ABEE T ITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

2 EER® 2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conmmuen)

(h TERMREBFLEREES
(FidA  TRNRZEES)(#E)
TRMXEHFLEREZEER
HITZEE TRUNBEZE
g HER@BLRBENOT
(&)

- BEMRETERPHRER

MBF L EEBERKEE
KR - SN BE A RERY

- BEREATNRE BT

HEHSRBRNIEE
K-HESEREBRABKE
&

- EHTIZRPHEEER
&

- REEMERBEATNEEH
BOBEREENR - HBH
BEBREZTNER 2
BRI R - MIREIRE
FERRBEMT A - FH
BRE  BEBELEFERS
8 EREEE - EBH
IRRENER - EEEDEE
REERNMERAER - HE
BUBEEEE

- HIEHEREREEBR R
SRR - B R
EBR  RESRPHXEH
AR
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Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion Committee (formerly
known as: Fintech Committee) (continued)

The Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion Committee is set
up to act as a functional committee under the Executive
Committee with the following scope and responsibilities:
(continued)

- Responsible for studying and approving resource
allocation policies related to financial technology
construction and digital operations, and promoting agile
organizational transformation;

- Implement the work requirements from Head Office,
the Governments, and regulatory agencies on financial
technology, and promote the construction of major
special projects tasks;

- Approve major financial technology policies and
implementation governance/regulations;

- Responsible for implementing the data governance
requirements of the head office and regulatory agencies,
promoting the implementation of data strategy in CCBA,
establishing a data governance system, researching
data application development strategies and directions,
reviewing major issues such as data governance and
data security, popularizing data culture, promoting data
capability building, managing CCBA data governance
resources and implementation performance, and
leveraging the value of data assets;

- Formulate relevant resource allocation policies,
coordinate financial technology R&D, operation and
maintenance and supporting resources, and coordinate
financial technology innovation resources;
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(h)

Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion Committee (formerly
known as: Fintech Committee) (continued)

The Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion Committee is set
up to act as a functional committee under the Executive
Committee with the following scope and responsibilities:
(continued)

Coordinate and solve major problems encountered
in the development of financial technology and data
governance, integrate the audit reports of internal and
external audit institutions, and the supervision reports of
external regulatory agencies, analyse and evaluate the
effectiveness of the Bank’s financial technology policies,
and make suggestions for improving the system and
measures;

Promote the research and application of new
technologies, explore and establish a sustainable
financial technology innovation model, and promote the
operation of the Bank's financial technology innovation
mechanism;

Approve for new/renovated large-scale projects (i.e. total
project investment exceeds HKD 10 million (inclusive))

Responsible for determining annual strategic projects,
promoting the implementation of strategic projects,
coordinating and promoting the resolution of major
project issues

Guide and promote the bank’s financial technology risk
management, explore the establishment of a sustainable
financial technology innovation model;
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Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion Committee (formerly
known as: Fintech Committee) (continued)

The Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion Committee is set
up to act as a functional committee under the Executive
Committee with the following scope and responsibilities:
(continued)

- Evaluate the results of financial technology application
and overall financial technology service performance;

- Ensure that financial technology control is in place
and comply with relevant policies, guidelines and
governance structures formulated by local regulatory
agencies and the Head Office;

- Supervise the Data Governance Committee, and manage
the implementation, resources and performance of data
governance; and

- Other important matters to be undertaken by the
committee.

Membership of the Fintech and Digitalisation Promotion
Committee is appointed by the Senior Management. Currently,
the Committee consists of ten members with the Deputy Chief
Executive overseeing Fintech/Data Governance Division as
the Chairperson, Deputy Chief Executive overseeing e-Banking
Division and Chief Operating Officer who is co-managing
the daily operation of Fintech/Data Governance/e-Banking
Division as the Vice Chairperson. Other members are Head of
Fintech Division, Head of Data Management Division, Head
of eBanking Division, Head of Operations Division, Head of
Legal & Compliance Division, Head of Finance Division and
Head of Human Resources Division while Fintech Division
Representative is the secretary to the Committee.
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Safety Production Committee

The Safety Production Committee implements and regulates
the decisions, arrangements, guidelines, policies, laws and
regulations regarding work safety. The main duties and power
of the Safety Production Committee are:

- Study and review production safety work plans,
programs, management systems, operating procedures
and major emergency plans;

- Improve and implement the safety production
responsibility;

- Regularly to hearing the reports on production safety
and organize and promote the implementation of
production safety work;

- Resolve the major production safety issues and
problems;

- Organize the joint inspections and supervise the major
hidden dangers;

- Other matters that consideration for production safety;

According to the charter of the Safety Production Committee,
the Chief Executive Officer shall serve as the Chairman of the
Safety Production Committee, the Deputy Chief Executive
that in charge of security and safety or technological security
shall serve as the Vice Chairman, and the members shall be
the heads of the Executive Office, Finance Division, Human
Resources Division, Risk Management Division, Legal and
Compliance Division, Consumer Banking Division, Credit
Card & Consumer Finance Division, Digital Banking Division,
Operations Division, Data Management Division and Fintech
Division.
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Accountability Committee

The Accountability Committee is a functional committee under
the Executive Committee. It is responsible for coordinating
and reviewing matters related to accountability within the
delegated management authority of the Bank. In addition,
Accountability Working Group is established under the
Accountability Committee. The major responsibilities of the
Accountability Committee include:

- Reviewing and implementing the Bank's regulations,
policies, and plans related to accountability;

- Receiving reports on the implementation of the Bank's
accountability system submitted by the Accountability
Working Group;

- Receiving reports on the accountability pursuits in
response to cases with the risk level of serious or very
serious submitted by the Accountability Working Group;

- Reviewing and determining the accountability
attribution and the accountability pursuits for cases with
material risks, significant operational losses and non-
compliance issues;

- Reviewing the accountability attribution and the
accountability pursuits for cases involving division
head level, and reporting to the Executive Committee
or seeking Executive Committee’s final approval as
required;

- Reviewing on appeals and complaints within its
authority;

- Handling other matters that require review and decision-
making by the Accountability Committee.

The Accountability Committee is chaired by the Deputy Chief
Executive in charge of the Legal and Compliance Division. The
permanent members include the Head of Risk Management
Division, the Head of Legal and Compliance Division, the
Head of Human Resources Division, and the Head of Finance
Division. The temporary members include Division Heads
responsible for investigating and verifying relevant violations,
Division Heads assisting in due diligence investigations, and
the head of Audit Division.
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(k)

Corporate Banking Committee

Corporate Banking Committee is a functional committee
under the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors
and is responsible for the overall coordination of the Bank’s
corporate business strategy. The resolutions of the Corporate
Banking Committee act as guidance on the operation and
management of the Bank's corporate business sector. The
main functions of the Corporate Banking Committee are as
follows:

Handling and facilitating strategic requirements and
decisions of the Head Office and the Management,
and delivering the Head office’s strategy in the Bank’s
corporate business sector;

Formulating corporate business development strategy;

Formulating the master plan, annual plan, reward and
punishment programs in the Bank's corporate business
sector;

Contributing to important matters such as resource
allocation, revenue distribution and team building in the
Bank's corporate business sector;

Studying comprehensive regulations and promoting
product innovation as well as system construction in the
Bank's corporate business sector;
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(k) Corporate Banking Committee) (continued)

Corporate Banking Committee is a functional committee
under the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors
and is responsible for the overall coordination of the Bank’s
corporate business strategy. The resolutions of the Corporate
Banking Committee act as guidance on the operation and
management of the Bank's corporate business sector. The
main functions of the Corporate Banking Committee are as

follows: (continued)

- Reviewing integrated marketing proposals and
promoting collaboration among different sectors in the

Bank;

- Tracking and analyzing the key performance indicators in

the Bank's corporate business sector;

- Reviewing other corporate business-related issues.

Corporate Banking Committee is chaired by Deputy Chief
Executive overseeing Corporate Banking. Members include
Head of Corporate Banking I Division, Deputy Head of
Corporate Banking | Division, Head of Corporate Banking
[l Division, Head of Institutional Banking Division, Head of
Transaction Banking & Capital Market Division, Head of
Transaction Banking, Head of Treasury and Head of Commercial

Banking.
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Retail Banking Committee

The Retail Banking Committee is a functional committee
established under the Executive Committee of the Board of
Directors. Its core mandate is to coordinate and oversee the
Bank’s retail business line, including integrated planning,
implementation supervision, and risk monitoring. The
Committee also serves for coordinating critical cross-
departmental initiatives within the retail sector and across
business units, and reviewing major operational matters within
its authority. Key responsibilities include:

- Overseeing the implementation of strategic directives
from the Head Office and senior management regarding
retail business development, ensuring effective
execution of decisions made by the CCB Personal
Finance Management Committee and Board Executive
Committee;

- Formulating and monitoring annual operational plans
with defined key performance indicators for the personal
business line;

- Establishing cross-departmental performance evaluation
metrics and designing competitive sales incentive
schemes to enhance sales force effectiveness;

- Driving key customer segment expansion strategies
and accelerating priority initiatives including cross-
border finance, scenario-based finance, and digital
transformation;

- Optimizing resource allocation across retail business
units through integrated planning;

- Developing risk control frameworks in response to major
market shifts and regulatory changes, while overseeing
rectification of issues identified through audits and
compliance reviews;

- Promoting employee conduct standards and fostering a
compliance-oriented organizational culture;

- Addressing other strategic matters within the
Committee’s governance authority.
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Retail Banking Committee (continued)

The Retail Banking Committee is chaired by the Deputy
Chief Executive who leads the retail business sector, with the
Executive Vice Chairman role assumed by the Chief Retail
Banking Officer. Member departments comprise the Consumer
Banking Division, Private Banking Division, Credit Card &
Consumer Finance Division, Commercial Banking Division, and
Digital Banking Division. Daily operations are managed by the
“Retail Banking Committee Office”.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee is set up as a functional
committee to assist both the Executive Committee and the
Risk Committee in the oversight of risk management matters.
The Risk Management Committee acts as a central forum for
overseeing the Bank’s overall asset quality as well as resolving
all important risk related or governance issues on credit risk,
operational risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
strategic risk, reputation risk and climate risk. Two working
committees namely Special Assets Management Committee
and Product Risk Committee are established under the Risk
Management Committee. The major responsibilities of the Risk
Management Committee include:

- Ensuring a comprehensive and integrated management
approach is adopted within the Bank with respect to the
definition, identification and management of major risks;

- Ensuring the Bank’s risk profile is in line with the risk
appetite and strategies set under the direction of the
Executive Committee, the Risk Committee as well as
China Construction Bank Corporation (the Bank’s Credit
Advisor);

- Ensuring the risk management framework is properly
implemented and maintained and is adequate for the
scale and complexity of the Bank's business operation;

- Approving or reviewing new or major changes in
risk policies and processes to ensure they adequately
accommodate the updated market conditions,
economic trends and specific risk profiles/factors of the
Bank, as well as due compliance of any relevant laws and
regulations;
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Risk Management Committee (continued)

The Risk Management Committee is set up as a functional
committee to assist both the Executive Committee and the
Risk Committee in the oversight of risk management matters.
The Risk Management Committee acts as a central forum for
overseeing the Bank's overall asset quality as well as resolving
all important risk related or governance issues on credit risk,
operational risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
strategic risk, reputation risk and climate risk. Two working
committees namely Special Assets Management Committee
and Product Risk Committee are established under the Risk
Management Committee. The major responsibilities of the Risk
Management Committee include: (continued)

Approving or reviewing various risk limits, parameters
and thresholds, as well as risk assessment tools to ensure
pertinent risks are addressed/mitigated;

Approving the Terms of Reference for the working
committees under the RMC, namely Special Assets
Management Committee and Product Risk Committee;

Acting as a central forum to review, discuss and resolve
matters across different risk areas;

Approving or reviewing major risk assessment/
monitoring reports from respective risk areas and
committees of the Bank;

Ensuring the effectiveness and continuity of the
operation of internal rating systems and effective
integration of internal rating systems into the daily
credit risk management processes by monitoring the
performance and risk prediction of the application and
reviewing the results of validation on a regular basis;

Approving credit programs with legal and compliance
considerations;

Overseeing overall asset quality of the Bank through
exceptional reporting and trend analysis as deemed
appropriate by the Credit Committee;

PERIRT(EH) B ERAT 2020558 (o) ——



AEBRHAMBER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HZE20245F12 A31BIEFZ | For the year ended December 31, 2024

(BRAFRIFERRSN -

2 EER®
BREEEES(Z)
RREERELZESAHBBNITEZE
ehEBEECEERBERES
ERRELZES - & ﬁEﬁ;a
CEEEPEBARITHEEEE
E%M&%R%ﬁikﬁf

(m)

C XBRERR - SRR
mu@)l“fﬂ CAERER - RESR
EA BERARARRIRER - &

ERELZEg N EMEIEERZE
E'a%%%éFgﬁéﬁa
E mE R §E% o B E IE%E\

SRANUTZEE : (&)

— FHHERBEBENAREM
RRXBHAFEHESIE - B
FERE SDRIABUR - BRI
PREE,AEEEE - BRIEE
EMER M EBENRKRE
i

- %Bﬂl EmE s EaNTRE

B/ BB BIBER

&JEE%%‘J—’%DE*M&Z%
R

- BERERBREEBRSE
@%T%%T’Eﬂ RERITA
fﬂaﬁﬁiu&iriﬂ‘%?i‘“ﬁ

s

- %Fyﬁﬁ? BEERAIRMNE

- FEHHPKREEEEZES
RREFBEEEHEBENEKR
=18 ;

- BAZEREEINEEZSE

HARREE G R, HHIT
ZESMENMRE

LAERSFITHI7R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

(m)

Risk Management Committee (continued)

The Risk Management Committee is set up as a functional
committee to assist both the Executive Committee and the
Risk Committee in the oversight of risk management matters.
The Risk Management Committee acts as a central forum for
overseeing the Bank's overall asset quality as well as resolving
all important risk related or governance issues on credit risk,
operational risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
strategic risk, reputation risk and climate risk. Two working
committees namely Special Assets Management Committee
and Product Risk Committee are established under the Risk
Management Committee. The major responsibilities of the Risk
Management Committee include: (continued)

- Approving or reviewing stress testing related matters
including stress testing policies, stress testing limits/
triggers, the results of the stress-testing programme and
any necessary remedial actions as reported by stress
testing function;

- Reviewing and recommending the Recovery Plan Policy
and Resolution Planning — Core Information Collection
Policy to the Executive Committee of the Board of
Directors for review/approval.

- Acknowledge the operational risk management (ORM)
key matters including ORM tools and reports as well as
the Annual Business Continuity Report;

- Reviewing the risk positions and trends of the Bank, etc,

- Reviewing material issues relating to impairment
allowances as reported by the Special Asset
Management Committee;

- Facilitating the regular reporting of respective risk areas
to the Risk Committee and/or the Executive Committee.

4‘ CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK (ASIA) CORPORATION LIMITED 2024 Annual Report o)



AEBRHAMBER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(BRAFRIRERRSN -

HZE20245F12 A31 B IEFZ | For the year ended December 31,2024

LAE#SFIT57R) | (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

2 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (conminuep)

Risk Management Committee (continued)

The Risk Management Committee is set up as a functional
committee to assist both the Executive Committee and the
Risk Committee in the oversight of risk management matters.
The Risk Management Committee acts as a central forum for
overseeing the Bank's overall asset quality as well as resolving
all important risk related or governance issues on credit risk,
operational risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
strategic risk, reputation risk and climate risk. Two working
committees namely Special Assets Management Committee
and Product Risk Committee are established under the Risk
Management Committee. The major responsibilities of the Risk
Management Committee include: (continued)

- Review and endorse the new product approval policies
& procedures, and material matters on risk issue relating
to new product as reported by the PRC; and

- Act as a reporting line for the Bank to oversee and
manage the technology risk of the Bank within the
Technology Risk Management Framework.

The Risk Management Committee is chaired by the Deputy
Chief Executive overseeing Risk Management, and members
include the Head of Risk Management Division, the Head of
Credit Division, the Head of Legal and Compliance Division,
Head of Finance Division, Head of Credit Management
Department, Deputy Head of Risk Management Division and
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Credit Committee

The Credit Committee acts as a functional committee to assist
both the Executive Committee and the Risk Committee on
loan quality maintenance, authority delegation, credit related
policy-making and maintenance, credit approval and credit risk
management issues. The major responsibilities of the Credit
Committee include:

Ensuring that the Bank’s credit risk profile is in line with
the risk appetite and strategies set under the direction
of the Risk Management Committee, the Executive
Committee, the Risk Committee as well as CCB (the
Bank’s Credit Advisor);

Approving or reviewing new or major changes in
credit related policies and processes to ensure that
they adequately accommodate the updated market

conditions, economic trends as well as due compliance
of any relevant laws and regulations;

Approving or reviewing various credit related risk limits,
parameters and thresholds, as well as credit programs,
products, risk assessment tools to ensure pertinent risks
are addressed/mitigated,;

Reviewing or approving authorizations related to credit
approval authorities;

Reviewing and approving credit actions or applications
within its delegated credit approval authority;

Reviewing the mapping of internal credit ratings;
Reviewing the result of portfolio reports;

Approving loan assets classification related matter;

Overseeing overall credit quality of the Bank; and

Facilitating reporting to the management.
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Credit Committee (continued)

The Credit Committee is chaired by the Deputy Chief Executive
overseeing Credit Approval or the Chief Risk Officer or Head
of Credit Division or Deputy Head of Credit Division, and
members include the Head of Risk Management Division,
Head of Credit Division, Chief Approver, Deputy Head of Credit
Division, Deputy Head of Risk Management Division, Senior
Approver of Credit Division and designated individual credit
approver(s).

Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee

The Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee
(“ICCOC") is a functional committee under the Executive
Committee ("EC") and the Risk Committee (“RC") to assist
both the EC and the RC to identify, assess, oversee and
monitor the Bank's internal control function, operation risk
and compliance matters, to regulate the business operation
management mechanism and to improve the operation
quality, adequacy and efficiency. This committee is charged
with the responsibilities for:

- Providing advice and proposal to the Management
regarding major compliance and internal control issues;

- Identifying, analysing and evaluating the Bank's overall
compliance risks or significant internal control defects,
such as emergencies, significant cases and internal
control weaknesses, so as to monitor the implementation
of respective remedial action, enhancement and control
over the identified risks and defects;

- Reviewing and approving the annual compliance plan,
annual reports concerning the implementation of the
plans, main rules and regulations that affect the Bank,
and significant non-compliance matters, significant fraud
incidents and/or suspicious transactions or activities;

- Reviewing the adequacy and efficiency of the internal
control system and ensuring fit and proper rectification
measures;

- Approving membership and Terms of Reference for
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Financing
of Terrorism Compliance Committee ("AMLCC") and
Investment & Insurance Working Unit (“I&" Unit");
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Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee
(continued)

The Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee
("ICCOC") is a functional committee under the Executive
Committee ("EC") and the Risk Committee ("RC") to assist
both the EC and the RC to identify, assess, oversee and
monitor the Bank's internal control function, operation risk
and compliance matters, to regulate the business operation
management mechanism and to improve the operation
quality, adequacy and efficiency. This committee is charged

with the responsibilities for: (continued)
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Approving items submitted from AMLCC or &I Unit;

Formulating and approving operational policies,
procedures and guidelines pertaining to all business
activities of the Bank to ensure on-going operational
efficiency, cost-effectiveness and adequate controls,
as well as compliance with all applicable regulatory
and operational risk management requirements and
standards;

Formulating, announcing and reviewing delegation of
operational authorities to staff of different levels so as to
ensure responsible staff shall discharge daily duties and
responsibilities in a legitimate and adequately controlled
manner. Delegation of authorities shall be approved by
the Board of Directors and/or the functional committee;

Reviewing and approving standard service charges
and fees in relation to payments, products and services
offered by the Bank to ensure fairness and market
competitiveness;

Formulating and approving management policy,
process and guidelines to ensure the effective operation
and sufficient monitoring of outsourced activities to
ensure due compliance with all relevant regulatory and
corporate guidelines and standards;
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(o)

Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee
(continued)

The Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee
("ICCOC") is a functional committee under the Executive
Committee ("EC") and the Risk Committee ("RC") to assist
both the EC and the RC to identify, assess, oversee and
monitor the Bank's internal control function, operation risk
and compliance matters, to regulate the business operation
management mechanism and to improve the operation
quality, adequacy and efficiency. This committee is charged
with the responsibilities for: (continued)

- Approving the account opening at the third-party
financial institutions in the Bank’s name and solely for
its own operations purpose, and the mechanism on
approving and managing customers transaction limits in
all electronic channels;

- Facilitating regular reporting of important matters
monitored and discussed to the RG;

- Overseeing and managing operational risk and business
continuity related matters of the Bank;

- Overseeing related party transactions ("RPT")
management of the Bank with CCB, guiding the Bank to
establish and continuously enhance the mechanism for
management of RPT;

- Reviewing and approving the Policy of RPT Management,
and other key matters in relation to RPT.
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(o) Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee

(continued)

The Internal Control, Compliance and Operations Committee
("ICCOC") is a functional committee under the Executive
Committee ("EC") and the Risk Committee ("RC") to assist
both the EC and the RC to identify, assess, oversee and
monitor the Bank's internal control function, operation risk
and compliance matters, to regulate the business operation
management mechanism and to improve the operation
quality, adequacy and efficiency. This committee is charged

with the responsibilities for: (continued)

According to the terms of reference of the ICCOC, the Deputy
Chief Executive in charge of Compliance and Operations
shall be appointed as the Chairman of the Committee. Other
members of the Committee shall be comprised of Head of
Corporate Banking Divisions, Head of Institutional Banking
Division, Head of Treasury Division, Head of Consumer Banking
Division, Head of Commercial Banking Division, Head of Private
Banking Division, Head of Transaction Banking and Capital
Market Division, Head of Operations Division, Head of Fintech
Division, Head of Finance Division, Head of Risk Management
Division, Head of Legal and Compliance Division, Head of
Credit Card and Consumer Finance Division, Head of Digital
Banking Division, Head of Data Management Division, and

Head of Corporate Administration Department.

3 RISK MANAGEMENT

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events. The
Group recognises the risk as a distinct risk which is inherent in every
aspect of the Group's businesses and activities which should be

managed in a structured and systematic manner.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuep)

Operational risk management (continued)

The Group implements a centralised risk management framework
and formulates operational risk management policy to provide
a bank-wide definition of operational risks and set out the
requirements on the identification, assessment, reporting,
monitoring and mitigation of operational risk. The Board level Risk
Committee is responsible for the oversight of risk matters including
operational risk. The Risk Management Committee and Internal
Control, Compliance and Operations Committee are the executive
bodies to assist the Risk Committee in the daily management of
operational risk related issues including the review and approval
of operational risk management policies, discussion and resolution
of operational risk matters as well as the supervision of the Bank's
business continuity process.

The Group implements the “Three Lines of Defence” in its
operational risk management framework. Every unit, business and
supporting units alike, are functioning as the first line of defence
responsible for its own operational risk management in carrying
out their daily activities. Operational Risk Management under Legal
and Compliance Division together with certain units involved in
management of internal process, people and system are the second
line of defence responsible for the design and implementation of
the operational risk management policies, mechanism, tools and
methodologies in their responsible areas. Internal Audit is the third
line of defence which conducts periodic reviews and independent
audits of the Group's operational risk management process. The
purpose is to ensure due compliance with established operational
risk management policies and procedures, and to evaluate the
effectiveness of the operational risk management process and
control mechanism. The results of these reviews and audits are
regularly reported to the Board level Audit Committee for effective
oversight and monitoring.

The Group regularly reviews and enhances the Business Continuity
Plan of all critical banking services. It also maintains data processing
back-up sites and facilities to support business operations during
disastrous events. To ensure practicality of the plan, drills on
contingency plans for certain critical business functions are
performed annually with satisfactory results.
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COMMERCIAL BANKING OFFICE

Kowloon Bay

11/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay
Tel: 2903 8366

PRIVATE BANKING

Central (Private Banking)

21/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road, Central
Tel: 2903 8335

Central (Private Wealth)

3/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road, Central
Tel: 2903 8335/3918 6883

SME CENTRES

Causeway Bay

3/F, Circle Plaza, 499 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
Tel: 3718 7928

Mongkok

1/F, 788 Nathan Road, Mongkok

Tel:3718 7568

Kowloon Bay

G/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay
Tel: 3718 7373

Sheung Wan

1/F, 238 Des Voeux Road, Central
Tel: 3918 6388

CONSUMER BRANCHES

Central

6 Des Voeux Road, Central

Central CCB Tower

G/F, CCB Tower, Central

Sheung Wan

G/F-2/F, 238 Des Voeux Road, Central

Sai Wan
Shop 1, G/F, 489 Queen'’s Road West, Sai Wan
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CONSUMER BRANCHES

Wanchai

B/F to 1/F, Nos. 183-187 Johnston Road, Wan Chai
Causeway Bay

G/F, Circle Plaza, 499 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
Happy Valley

37 Sing Woo Road, Happy Valley

North Point

382 King's Road, North Point

Taikoo Shing

Shop 001 and 58-60 (Premier Banking Center), G/F, Cityplaza 2,
18 Taikoo Shing Road, Taikoo Shing

Tsimshatsui

Shop A1, A2, B, C G/F & 1/F, Comfort Building, 86-88A Nathan Road
Yaumati

556 Nathan Road

Mongkok Chun Yee Building

G/F, Chun Yee Building, No. 733 Nathan Road

Mongkok Nathan Road

788 Nathan Road

Tai Kok Tsui Olympian City

Shop 109, 1/F, Olympian City 2, Tai Kok Tsui

Mei Foo

Shop N46, G/F, Mei Foo Sun Chuen, Stage 6, Mei Foo
Hunghom Whampoa

Shop A3, G/F, Yuen Wah Building, Whampoa Estates, Hunghom
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CONSUMER BRANCHES

Hunghom Ma Tau Wai Road
G/F, 100 Ma Tau Wai Road

Kwun Tong Hoi Yuen Road

56 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong

Kowloon Bay CCB Centre

G/F, CCB Centre, 18 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay

Tsuen Wan
G/F, Shop No. G21-22, Citywalk Phase 1, Tsuen Wan

Shatin Plaza

Shop 7, 16B &17, Level 1, Shatin Plaza

Ma On Shan

Shop No. 2111B, Level 2, Ma On Shan Plaza
Tai Po

Shop 9B, G/F, 1 On Chee Road

Sheung Shui

67 San Fung Avenue

Yuen Long

68 Castle Peak Road

Tin Shui Wai

Shop 1110, 1/F, One Sky Mall
Tuen Mun

Shop 9, G/F, Tuen Mun Town Plaza 2

Tseung Kwan O
Shop 190, Level 1, Metro City 3
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China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
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28/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong
B Tel 39186939

www.asia.ccb.com
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